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Company Structure

/\ =248
NRIRE
As at 31 March 2018 HRZ-Z—/\F=A=+—H

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS INVESTMENT HOLDINGS 1000 Management shares
(voting, non-redeemable)

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS ASSET MANAGEMENT

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FUND MANAGEMENT

52,590.74 Participating Shares
INVESTMENT HOLDINGS (non-voting, redeemable)

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

INVESTMENT & MONEY LENDER INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

China 0il Resources Group Ltd

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS INVESTMENT HOLDINGS INVESTMENT & MONEY LENDER

INVESTMENT HOLDING BROKERAGE

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group
Limited (Formerly know as
"PetroAsian Energy
Holdings Limited")
(Cayman Islands)

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS INSURANCE BROKERAGE

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

HK Listed

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS OIL EXPOLITATION BUSINESS

COAL TRADING OIL TRADING

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS OIL EXPOLITATION BUSINESS

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT HOLDINGS EXPLOITATION DRILLING

INVESTMENT HOLDINGS

Notes: 1.  Company was incorporated on 3 July 2017.
2. Company was incorporated on 20 April 2017.
3. Company was incorporated on 20 April 2017.
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To Our Shareholders

On behalf of Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited (the “Company”),
| wish to hereby present the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended March 31,
2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the past year, our three key business segments of Commodity
Trading, Crude Oil and Financial Services have faced greater
headwinds, the result of unique challenges faced by the respective
operations, along with increasingly unpredictable macroeconomic
conditions. The Group’s revenue for the year decreased 60% to
approximately HK$ 5,536,378,000. The gross profit decreased 53% to
approximately HK$ 146,472,000.

COMMODITY TRADING BUSINESS

In respect of Commodity Trading, our core business was impacted by a
decline in trading volume of the Group’s non-oil products, particularly
plastic material products, chemical products, display driver IC products
and Indium Tin Oxide (“ITO") products. Furthermore, a drop in oil
output raised oil prices, which in turn led to a modest reduction in
the trading volume of our oil products. To improve the performance
of this segment, we have been gradually expanding our customer and
supplier base, as well as augmenting our portfolio of non-oil products
to encourage profit growth and mitigate risk. Going forwards, we will
seek to broaden both our market and business scale.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted S
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

CRUDE OIL BUSINESS

With reference to the Crude Qil operation, we have sought to diminish
our risk and loss exposure by fine-tuning our development plan.
Consequently, we have elected to slow down exploration activities
at the oilfield project in Fularji District, near the Qigihar City of
Heilongjiang Province, China. This is in response to the current glut of
oil on the international market, which has suppressed oil prices.

FINANCIAL SERVICES SEGMENT

As for the Financial Services segment, our major areas of activity,
mainly comprising money lending, securities brokerage and asset
management had varying fortunes during the year. Progress made
on the money lending front has included the securing of licenses
in Hong Kong by two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, while the operation team has established a credit policy and
loan approval process to reduce credit-related risks. As regards the
Securities Brokerage business, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, i.e. China-Hong Kong Link Securities Company Limited,
which obtained a license to conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities)
regulated activities back in 2015, has since served as placing agent,
co-lead manager and underwriter for several listed companies in
Hong Kong. Yet another indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, namely, China Hong Kong Link Asset Management Limited,
which obtained a Type 9 (asset management) license in 2017, has
subsequently obtained a Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated
activities license from the Securities and Futures Commission. It
is therefore well equipped to raise the performance of the Asset
Management business. What is more, we have invested seed money
into funds managed by the Asset Management segment to further
advance its development.

It is worth noting that the Group also engages in insurance brokerage
services through People Insurance Broker Limited (“People Insurance”),
which it acquired in August 2016. Among the range of brokerage
services that People Insurance is licensed to transact, include general
and long-term insurance.
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PROSPECT

Going forward, we are committed to strengthening all of our
business operations, which, in view of the increasingly challenging
macroeconomic conditions, will call for prompt and decisive action. As
an advocate of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Bay Area initiatives, we
view the plan as complementary to and catalysts for the development
of our businesses. We will therefore overlay the said initiatives with our
own strategies, so that long-term stable growth is realized and which
leads ultimately to value creation for our shareholders.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
members of the Board, the management and the entire Tou Rong
Chang Fu workforce for their dedication and diligence during the
past year. | wish to also extend my appreciation to all of the Group's
business partners and shareholders for their unwavering support.

Huang Guobiao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 November 2019
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R -#HERERHRS

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the second Environmental, Social, and Governance (the ESG)
report by the Group, highlighting its ESG performance, with disclosure
reference made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix
27 of the Listing Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

This ESG report covers the Group's overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the commodity
trading, chemical products, property investment, money lending and
securities brokerage businesses in the offices situated at Hong Kong
(Admiralty and Wan Chai with additional office in Wan Chai added
in the reporting scope starting October 2017), Macao and Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, Mainland China from 1 April 2017 to 31 March
2018 (“reporting period”), unless otherwise stated. Total floor area
coverage for the Group was 1,164 m?.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on for this ESG report, key stakeholders namely customers,
suppliers, sub-contractors, employees, creditors, shareholders and the
community have been involved in regular engagement sessions to
discuss and to review areas of attention which will help the business
meets its potential and sustainable growth and be prepared for future
challenges.

STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our environmental,
social and governance approach and performance. Please
give your suggestions or share your views with us via email at
enquiries@trcf.com.hk.

THE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ON ESG

We are committed to minimising the impact that running our business
has on the environment and we encourage our stakeholders to do
the same. During the year, we have complied with all applicable laws
and regulations to act in a socially responsible manner. To protect our
global environment, we have been striving to pursue recycling and
resources conservation.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @ R ZEEHR A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
I%i% ‘%ig}glk B/ #&m

To provide a safe and healthy workplace, as well as a dynamic work AR E TiRH—EAZ 2@ ENTIESIAR
environment for our employees, we place great importance to our  Foi A D TIERE B EERELMHA
human resources management and safety management. Last but not HEREERLZE2ER - — 52 BRARE
least, we believe that active communication is the key to building FERHER  REBNEE L P FEEDNES
better relationships with our stakeholders. Though we do not maintain ~ # - @& I R EZ ERZH - I
a wide range of business partners, we are committed to maintain 77EﬁiﬁiﬂaﬁE’\J%Tﬁ%iﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁ1ﬁ¥ﬁ%
regular and transparent communication with our stakeholders on all EIFFEIRIE - H & M EARBSEETER

ESG related issues of our business.

A. Environmental A. RIE

During the reporting period, the Group did not note any cases RmEHRRRN REBWREREMAE
of material non-compliance relating to air and greenhouse gas Fﬁ?i&mﬂ RESHE Y - mKIR R+
emissions, discharge into water and land, and the generation of BEY UREEEEREEEER
hazardous and non-hazardous waste as required by the national %EKL&I%&%@%&{?—&&WE’U%
and applicable laws and regulations. e

A1. Emissions Al #HH

A1.1 Air Emissions Al.1 ZEmBEL

During the reporting period, air emission was mainly
from fuel consumption by the Group’s owned
vehicles and there was no involvement in direct
emissions related to gaseous fuel consumption.

Vehicle Operations

Petrol was used for the Group’s passenger private
cars for clients and employees’ business commuting.
A total of 0.14 kg of sulphur oxides (SOx), 6.08 kg
of nitrogen oxides (NOx) and 0.44 kg of particular
matter (PM) were emitted.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted o4
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R -#HERERHRS

A1.2 Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Al.2 BERBEHM

Scope of
Greenhouse Percentage of
Gas Emissions Emission Sources Emission in tCOze Total Emission
BERE
BERBHHEE PR ER (M- gE{tHREEF) HENERDIL
Scope 1
&=
Direct Emission Combustion of Fuel for 24.89 21%
BEHEK Mobile Combustion Source
— Petrol

B IRERIREDE R — U
Scope 2
& E2
Energy Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity 74.60 64%
B IR P 2 HE B ENHERE
Scope 3
gE3
Other Indirect Emission Paper Waste Disposal 5.27 15%
HAth ) B AR BHREE

Business Air Travel 12.38

i z= Z ik
Total 117.14 100%
#at
Notes: Ff & :

- tCO2e represents tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
greenhouse gases.

- Emission factors were made reference to Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules and their referred documentation as set out by
the Stock Exchange, unless stated otherwise.

- Combined margin emission factor (average) of 0.63 t-CO2/
MWh was used for purchased electricity in Mainland China.

- Emission factor of 0.905 kg CO2e/kWh was used for
purchased electricity in Macao.

There were 117.14 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide,
methane and nitrous oxide) emitted from the
Group's operations in the reporting period, with an
intensity of 0.10 tCO2e/m?.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIZ-HERERRE

Business Air Travel

During the reporting period, employees from the
Group have travelled to Hong Kong and various
provinces in Mainland China for site visits and
investigating new business opportunities.

A1.3 Hazardous Waste

The Group’s business did not involve generation of
any significant hazardous waste, approximately 1 kg
of waste electronic product and computer hardware
from the office were collected by licensed supplier
during the reporting period.

A1.4 Non-hazardous Waste

Non-hazardous waste from the Group's operation
was mainly office paper. A total of 1.10 tonnes of
paper was consumed for daily office operations.

Al1.5 Measures to Mitigate Emissions

The Group encourages employees to take public
transportation rather than the Group’s vehicles
for business commuting in order to further reduce
our impact on local air emission and related GHG
emissions. For business air travel, as the Group
keeps exploring business opportunities to enlarge
its shareholders’ wealth, travelling outside Hong
Kong is essential and vital to the sustainable growth
of the Group’s business. Nevertheless, the Group
will monitor employees’ travel and will consider
alternative transportation or communication
channels when necessary.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited N
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIZE-HERERBRE

A1.6 Waste Handling and Reduction Initiatives Al.6 BEFERBDEZEYIE I

Commercial waste from the offices were managed
by the building management. Employees are
encouraged to print paper on both sides and reuse
recycled papers for their draft works. All waste
cartridges were returned to suppliers.

A2. Use of Resources

A2.1 Energy Consumption

The Group’s business operations resulted in a total
energy consumption of 176,643 kWh, with intensity
of 152 kWh/m? from the use of electricity and petrol.

REWRANENHEEREDE
ZRAEETEERSE - HM
SZEBIFRERESIE I
SEE AL ATRE S e
FrEEERSE ®EMHE
5o

A2. HFREHA

A2.1 BERFEE

AEENEKEEELD
BERE A E B176,643T
B HEEE MTHBERE
EBREBIS2TEE T

Consumption

EE

(in kWh)

Energy Consumption Sources BE IR #E B 2ROR (AT R ERE)

Electricity £ 95,183

Petrol i 81,460
Electricity B

Electricity consumption by the Group was 95,183
kWh during the reporting period.

AEERREHENEEE
%95,183 T FLf -

2017/18 2016/17

—2-t/-N\f ZEB-X/-tF

(in kWh/m?) (in kWh/m?)

(AFEE/ (ATFEK/

Electricity Intensity HERE 77 RE) FrkED)

The Group REH 81.78 77.81
Petrol i

A total of 9,192.44 litres of petrol were consumed RS HR - AEE AR E
by the Group's vehicles for clients and employee KEP REEMNBEEAES
commuting in the reporting period. A F£9,192.44 2 FF o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIZ-HERERRE

Water Consumption

Water supply was managed by the building
management for all offices and included in the
management fee, hence no such data is being
presented in this report.

Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

The Group reminds the employees to switch off
all the lights, computers, monitors and equipment
before leaving work. Moreover, energy efficient
electrical appliances are also encouraged such as
purchasing refrigerators with Grade 1 energy label
under the Mandatory Energy Efficiency Labelling
Scheme by the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department.

Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

The Group’s business did not involve any significant
use of water, hence no information related to water
use efficiency initiatives is being presented in this
report.

Packaging Material
The Group's business did not involve any use of

packaging materials, hence no data nor information
is being presented in this report.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited N
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A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

Overall the environmental impact from the office-based
operation was not significant during the reporting period.
Nevertheless, in addition to complying with relevant laws
and regulations, the Group commits to continue making
effort to reduce the use of resources such as electricity
and fuel consumption of vehicles and their impacts to the
natural environment.

Social

The Group relies on its employees and business partners to
consistently follow applicable laws and industrial good practices
to maintain its goodwill. The vision of the Group is to become
a leading supplier and trading company. The Group is a value-
based organization. The value is mainly derived from integrity
which provides the common framework for its management
style, decision making and working behaviour. Therefore, the
Group aims at meeting the highest standards of corporate
behaviour in all aspects of our business and operations. The
foundation of the Group is integrity: to be open, honest and
trustworthy in dealing with all stakeholders namely, customers,
suppliers, sub-contractors, employees, creditors, shareholders
and the community as a whole.

1. Employment and labour practices

B1. Employment

During the reporting period, there were no major
changes in policies relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity and
anti-discrimination for the Group's office operations.
The Group did not note any cases of material non-
compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
employment during the reporting period.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @ R ZEEHR A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R -HERERME

The Group had a total number of 76 employees RZE-NF=ZA=+—

as of 31 March 2018 (83 as of 31 March 2017), in H - A&EBaHEMRIH

which 97% of them were full time employees and (ZE—+F=A=+—

3% were part-time employees. H#&83%)EER HH97%
BEBEE 3% AFEIE
5.

WORKFORCE BY AGE GROUP

BERARNE NS T

13% 3%

25%

37%
22%
® 1825 ©® 2635 © 3645 46-55 56 or above
18-255%  26-355%  36-455%  46-55p%  S6EREUAL

WORKFORCE BY EMPLOYMENT TYPE

54%

REREREINST

29%

17%

Senior Management @ Middle Management Other Employees

SAREEE

hREERE HithfE 8

WORKFORCE BY GENDER
BURESHNET

34%
66 %

® Male Female
B i

WORKFORCE BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGION
BESAHNET

43% 53%
i'
4% -
® HongKong @ Macao Mainland China
BE JRFT R A,
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The Group’s Employment Policy has listed out
details about employee’s responsibility, probation
period, hours of work, salary, several types of leave
(annual leave, sick leave, compensation leave,
compassionate leave, maternity leave, marriage
leave, jury service and court attendance), mandatory
provident fund scheme, bonus, employee share
option, service award, medical benefits and
compensation insurance. Employees can always refer
the information from the Employee Handbook.

Appraisal

The Group adopts a performance management
system to instil a performance culture and a
performance based annual salary adjustment
policy. Tasks and targets are discussed annually
among department heads and employees. Annual
performance appraisal is conducted to encourage a
dialogue between the employees and the Group so
to evaluate individual employee’s task and targets
and their deliveries, behavioural performance in the
aspects of work attitude, time management and
corporate objectives. The performance appraisal
would be used as one of the criteria to consider
employee’s promotion.

Equal Opportunity

The Group follows the guidelines in the
Sex Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance, the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and the Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance. The Group commits to being an equal
opportunity employer and will not tolerate any
illegal discrimination or harassment based on sex,
race, religion etc., so each employee should respect
the others who come from a different culture. The
Group also seeks diversity at all levels and aim
to create a work environment for all employees
to develop and contribute to their full potential.
Furthermore, the Group supports human rights
consistent with the United Nations Declaration of
Human Rights.
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Environmental, Social

Turnover

A total number of 13 employees left the Group
during the reporting period, contributing to turnover
rate of 17%. Annual turnover rates (categorized by
age group and gender) during the reporting period

and Governance Report
RIB-HERERRS

MR =

RBEHERN NEBEEH#
B1I3BEEBE RKAEXA
17% - RIS EEANEF
MK E (RFERBR R IR

are as follows: o)

Annual Turnover Rate 56 and
by Age Group 18-25 26-35 36-45 46-55 above
RERAERE DN 565% &
EEREE 18-255% 26-355% 36-455% 46-555% Bt
2017/18 100% 37% 47% 1% 10%
ZZT—+ /- N\F

Annual Turnover Rate by Gender Male Female
BRUERESNEERAKE B zi
2017/18 16% 50%
—E—+ /= N\F
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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B2. Employee Health and Safety
The Group aims to provide employees a safe and
healthy work environment by following applicable
environmental, safety and health rules. Immediate
reporting should be made to the Administration Unit
for any accident occurs at the Group’s premises.
Basic first aid medical supplies are available in the
pantry. There is a non-smoking policy that employees
may use designated areas for smoking. The Group
also maintain goodwill in compliance with its quality
processes and safety requirements. All inspection
and testing documents are handled in accordance
with all applicable specifications and requirements.
In return, all employees are expected to perform
their work in a safe manner, free of the influence
of alcohol, illegal drugs or controlled substances
which are not tolerated in workplace. The Group
did not note any cases of material non-compliance
in relation to health and safety laws and regulations
during the reporting period.
Occupational Health and Safety Data
BERRERZ28E
Work related fatality
E T EREMmE T
Work injury cases >3 days
TEEE (ZKN3H)
Work injury cases <3 days
ITHER(PRIENRIR)
Lost days due to work injury
BIGELXIIERH
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Development and Training

In the reporting period, a total of 11 employees
attended internal training course on insider
dealing and disclosure of insider information and
external training courses on safe management on
hazardous chemicals and enterprise income tax
and settlement. A total of 33 training hours was
conducted during the reporting period. The Group
also encourages employees to take up conferences,
workshops, seminars, and getting recognitions from
external professional and technical institutes which
are relevant to the jobs and development of the
employee through reimbursement and providing

RIB-HERE

B3.

subsidy.

/I:lfFE(:l

R K 1z
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2017/18
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Percentage of Employees Trained RERESHNSHEEIES
by Gender Ao
- Male -3 21%
- Female — 13%
Percentage of Employees Trained REBEH &SNS EEI
by Employee Category EEEDL
- Senior Management SREEE 18%
- Middle Management —FRERE 23%
— Other Employees —HfhEE 14%

Average Training Hours Completed per
Employee by Gender
- Male
— Female

Average Training Hours Completed per
Employee by Employee Category
— Senior Management
— Middle Management
— Other Employees
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Labour Standards

All employment and recruitment strictly abide by the
Employment Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong,
the Labour Relations Law of Macao, the Labour Law
and Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China. All employees must show the original
supporting documents to prevent illegal labours
when joining our Group and a copy of documents
will be kept by Human Resources Department, to
ensure no child nor forced labour in the Group’s
business operations. As stated in the Employee
Handbook, directors and employees must comply
fully with all applicable laws, rules and regulations
that govern the Group's business conduct in Hong
Kong, Macao and Mainland China, and any other
regions or countries in which the Group conducts
its business, including but not limited to securities
laws, Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
environmental laws, insider trading and other
market misconduct laws. The Group did not note
any cases of material non-compliance with laws and
regulations regarding labour standards during the
reporting period.
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Operating Practices

B5.  Supply Chain Management

10 suppliers were engaged for the commodity
trading business, in which 8 from Mainland China,
1 from Singapore, 1 from Hong Kong and 1 from
Taiwan.

RE -HERERRE
2. EEEH
B5. HREREE
ORHEFRAULERRE S
X% Hopsx kBT ENA

o TRRBEF I 1RK
BEEMREKBAEE-

SUPPLIER BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGION
BB EE D WHER

10%

10% i\

10%

70%

® HongKong @ Mainland China Taiwan Singapore
B8 FEA, B et

The Group ensures fair dealing with suppliers and
contractors through open tendering or an approved
selecting process which are solely based upon price,
quality and need. The Group will duly observe the
contractual terms with suppliers and contractors.
Therefore, maximum use of competition and careful
selection of capable and responsible suppliers and
contractors are pursued. The Group has standard
practice on obtaining multiple quotations from
suppliers before making decision as well as engaging
independent risk and asset management company
to carry out credit report of the suppliers when
necessary.
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B6.  Product Responsibility

During the reporting period, the Group did not note
any cases of material non-compliance with laws and
regulations regarding health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided.

Intellectual Property Rights

All directors, management team and employees must
protect the Group’s tangible and intangible assets and
ensure their proper and efficient use. such assets include,
but not limited to trade name, trademarks (logos),
patents, copyrights and confidential information. The
Group also supports the use of copyrighted products
according to the copyright regulations. Employees must
not bring in any fake or copied program, software or
materials including computer software, books, audio
and videotapes, journals and magazines which are not
copyrighted materials.

Customer Privacy

Unless prior approval is obtained, employees shall
not disclose any information relating to the Group,
customers, intangible assets, business secrets or any
price-sensitive information which may come to their
knowledge during the course of their employment or
after termination of their employment.

Every computers and servers in the Group's offices
had been installed anti-virus programs in order to
protect all confidential data. The program will be
updated periodically, make sure that most of the
virus can be screened out. Each employee has a
unique login information to prevent third parties
using the computers. The Group has dedicated
IT department to monitor the network and the
computers to ensure the stability of the network and
run smoothly.
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Anti-corruption

There were no concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees and the Group did not note any cases of
non-compliance with laws and regulations on money
laundering or corruption during the reporting period.

At stated in the Employee Handbook, bribery and
corrupt practices, unlawful or unethical behaviour
are strictly prohibited by the Group. Any personal
gain acquired from normal business activities such as
customers’ rebate, suppliers’ cash reward, or others
in similar nature should be immediately reported
within one week to local general manager, local
Board of Directors, and Chief Executive Officer of the
Group.

Whistle-blowing System

The Group has a whistle-blowing system that states
all directors, management team and employees
can be whistle-blowers. The whistle-blowers should
make their complaint to Chief Executive Officer or
any Executive Director of the Group. He/she should
have reasonable ground and evidence to believe that
the person being reported has violated or committed
a breach of the laws, Listing Rules, Code of Conduct
or Group policies or regulations applicable to the
Group and its business operations. Depending on
the severity and circumstances, the Chief Executive
officer, any Executive Director or the Board of the
Group, may follow up with investigations and
consequential actions for the person(s) involved in
the violation.
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Community Investment

The Group supports many charitable community
programmes by making corporate donations and
encouraging employee contributions to a number
of charitable organisations. During the reporting
period, the Group has contributed a total of
HK$117,000 donations to Love Foundation Limited,
The Community Chest as well as Federation of New
Territories Youth Foundation Limited, with a focus
on social welfare, particularly providing support to
the elderly, women, youth and children. In particular,
the donation to Federation of New Territories Youth
Foundation Limited was to support the Second Inter-
school Competition and Integrated Abilities of Senior
Secondary Student relating to the Belt and Road
Initiative, which promoted teenagers’ interests in
social affairs and to widen their horizons.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW ON CONSOLIDATED OPERATING
RESULTS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group achieved a revenue
of approximately HK$5,536,378,000 (2017: HK$13,832,372,000)
and a gross profit of approximately HK$146,472,000 (2017:
HK$312,721,000), representing a decrease of 60% and 53% from
the year of 2017 respectively. The decrease in the Group's revenue
and gross profit was mainly attributable to decrease in revenue of
commodity trading segment.

The Group recorded consolidated operating loss of approximately
HK$148,709,000 (2017 (restated): profit of HK$132,476,000)
representing a decrease of 212% from the year of 2017. Operating
loss of the Group was mainly attributable from decrease in revenue
of commodity trading segment, impairment losses of intangible assets
and property, plant and equipment in crude oil segment.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Commodity trading

In the reporting period, the commodity trading business contributed
the majority revenue of the Group, amounting to approximately
HK$5,500,164,000 (2017: HK$13,802,960,000) which accounted for
99.3% of the Group's revenue (2017: 99.8%), representing a decrease
of 60% as compared with the year of 2017. This was mainly due
to decrease in trading volume in non-oil product lines in particularly
plastic materials products, chemical products, display driver IC products
and Indium Tin Oxide (“ITO") products during the reporting period.

On account of reduction of output, the oil price was rising. The
demand and supply of oil product in both China’s domestic and
international market are basically balanced. And there was a slight
increase in the demand for petroleum products compared to last year.
However, due to the decrease in crude oil production, the volume of ail
and chemical products decreased. For the reporting period, the trading
volume of oil products of the Group decreased slightly as compared
with last year. The reduction in trading volume of plastic products
was the main reason for the reduction of total trading volume of the
Group.
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SRR E SR

To reduce the reliance of few major customers and suppliers, the
Group has recently put in place measures to gradually diversify both its
customers with more diversified product lines as well as securing new
suppliers.

As for the oil products trading, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$2,867,748,000 for the reporting period (2017:
HK$3,046,253,000), representing a decrease of 6% as compared with
2017. A total of 40,634 tons (2017: 86,800 tons) and 637,839 tons
(2017: 818,371 tons) of oil products were traded in China and other
Asia Pacific countries respectively and maintaining steady gross profit.

To ensure a steady profit growth in commodity trading business
and achieve risk diversification, our operating teams carried out
non-oil product lines for trading since July 2015 such as plastic
products, ITO products and display driver IC products. During the
reporting period, revenue of approximately HK$2,630,149,000 (2017:
HK$10,691,436,000) was generated from these product lines.

The commodity trading segment also includes trading of chemical
products, the Group strived to maintain its loyal customers and
suppliers for chemical products trading business during the reporting
period. The revenue of approximately HK$2,267,000 was recognised
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$65,271,000),
representing a decrease of 97%.

Looking forward into the next year, our operation teams will put
effort to expand markets and the business scale, including the trading
transactions of more new product categories such as non-ferrous
metal, and aim to lead the Group’s commodity trading business into
a new field and increase the Group’s competitiveness in the field of
commodity trading.
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Crude oil

The Group owns 96% interest of an indirect subsidiary 2575 M@
MR A HAZEAFRET AR, which owns an oilfield project in
Fularji District near Qigihar City of Heilongjiang Province of China
("Qilfields™).

During the reporting period, the modification works to the Qilfields has
carried out in accordance to the local fire safety requirements in order
to fulfill the qualification for the renewal of the (% &4 EFF Al fE)
for the forthcoming operation in the Oilfields. The inspection of the fire
safety modification has been completed and the Oilfields obtained the
acceptance from the relevant governmental department for the PRC
fire safety modification in November 2018.

During the reporting period, the supply in the international oil market
was still ample. International oil prices continued to fluctuate at a
low level. In view of the low oil prices and high production cost,
the management considered to diminish the risk and loss by fine
tuning the development plan in the Qilfields and slowing down the
oil exploitation process in the Qilfields since last financial year. The
management expected that the development progress will be further
delayed.

Financial services

The financial services segment includes money lending, securities
brokerage and asset management businesses.

(a) Money lending

Two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company have
obtained the money lending licences in Hong Kong. During
the reporting period, interest revenue was approximately
HK$15,941,000 (2017: HK$20,499,000), representing a decrease
of 22% and maintained a steady profit.

The licensing of money lenders and regulation of money-lending
transactions are governed by the Money Lenders Ordinance,
Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong. The market of money
lending business by licensed money lenders in Hong Kong is keen
and competitive. In order to optimise the funding use in business
but also to ensure the compliance of the related laws and
regulations, the operation team has established a credit policy
and loan approval process to minimise the credit risk.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited % @& = 5 &

BIEE W&k D
R

AEBEEE -BEENBLARAEERED R
b AMAEERET AR ZI6%EE - MM
BRAAGELUNTPEEEICEERAT
ENBEMAEE (DAAL) -

RBEHE mESETRERBEMEN R
EREET ARTEHRAENBLEEEY (B2
FEFAR) mREE BN E2RED X
BUWIHAER ZE—NF+— AEEF
HR % 2 EE 2 AR BT B PT A B UK -

REHRE - BRAHTSHEDATR -
SORERFEELONE - EMERB RS EERK
oBLE-HBFEER EREZEBBMA
2R 8 K R AR 0 i R SR AR LA RR KR
SRR ER - EEERY BERERSE -
IR

£ wh AR 75

CRBHBEOBEEER BHELCLREEE
EF X

(a) E#

ARFMERAEE2ENBARENE
EBRMEAER - RRE M FIB
U A4 78 #15,941,0007T ( —E—+
4 ##20,499,0007T) R 22 %0 4
BEEFE-

BEANBEREHERBEIZNEER
BEEDIF13BEMEANGPIFTHRE
BAREREAZREXETSHER
BEHN - BEBEZEHZERER
[ B R STARRR A R EUA R - 2
BESEEERRREREMESF A
BIEERREERE-

Annual Report 2017-18 =% —

29



30

Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR E SR

(b) Securities brokerage

(9,

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, namely
China-Hong Kong Link Securities Company Limited (“CHKLS"),
has obtained a licence by Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activities on 30 September 2015. The Group commenced the
business on 30 March 2016. During the reporting period,
CHKLS mainly provided securities brokerage, underwriting and
placements services. CHKLS has successfully acted as placing
agents, co-lead managers and underwriters for several listed
companies in Hong Kong. During the reporting period, CHKLS
has generated revenue of approximately HK$15,973,000 (2017:
HK$5,749,000) to the Group, representing an increase of 178%.

Asset management

To cope with the development strategy of stepping into the
financial services market in Hong Kong, a newly acquired
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, namely China
Hong Kong Link Asset Management Limited (“CHKLAM"),
has successfully obtained a licence by Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong to carry out type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities on 16 February 2017. On 7
May 2018, CHKLAM also successfully obtained a licence by
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong to carry out
type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities.

During the reporting period, the Company invested seed money
into the funds, which were self-established and managed by our
Group's asset management segment, the performance achieved
34% of return during the reporting period, approximately
HK$18,522,000 was recognised in the “Changes in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL" of the consolidated income statement.
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Insurance

In August 2016, the Group entered into a shares purchase agreement
with two independent third parties to acquire 100% equity interests in
People Insurance Broker Limited (“People Insurance”). People Insurance
is carrying out insurance brokerage service in Hong Kong with the
licence to transact all types of general insurance business and long
term insurance business in Hong Kong. During the reporting period,
the insurance brokerage income was approximately HK$1,372,000
(2017: HK$929,000) representing an increase of 48%.

Business Outlook and Future Prospect

In 2018, the performance of global economy is expected to grow
stronger when the economic environment continues to improve. The
economy of the PRC is expected to keep growing in a stable way, with
its reported growth domestic growth rate of 6.8% in the first-quarter
2018.

As Mainland China rolls out its “One Belt One Road” Initiative and
closer ties evolve between Mainland China and Hong Kong financial
markets. China continues to promote the progress of marketization of
the financial systems. As the economic development of Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Bay Area comprising nine cities in the Pearl
River Delta together with Hong Kong and Macau is in the pipeline,
Hong Kong's leading position as an international financial centre
for providing professional consultancy, legal and financial services
will definitely be highlighted, and its economic growth will be fully
benefitted. In the meantime, the market anticipates that the central
government will launch more easing measures for stable growth so as
to motivate the growth of economic data and make a turnaround of
the negative market sentiment.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Group has elected to
early adopt HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, which results in changes
in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The Group has applied the
standard retrospectively and restated the comparative figures.

Revenue and operating review

The Group recorded a consolidated revenue of approximately
HK$5,536,378,000 (2017: HK$13,832,372,000), representing a
decrease of 60% from the year of 2017. The Group’s loss for the
year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$199,630,000 (2017 (restated): profit of approximately
HK$95,188,000). Basic loss per share of HK$2.63 cents (2017
(restated): basic earnings per share of HK$1.27 cents). The decline
of the Group’s results was mainly due to the decrease in revenue in
commodity trading segment, impairment losses of intangible assets
and property, plant and equipment in crude oil segment and increase in
interest expenses on bonds.

Allowance for credit losses on trade receivables

The Group's largest customer within the commodity trading segment
which has a significant outstanding trade receivable balance due to the
Group with gross carrying amount of HK$551,620,000 as at 31 March
2018 was assessed for allowance for credit losses individually. The
management assessed for the allowance for credit losses for lifetime
by estimating default rate taking into account historical and forward
looking information. As at 31 March 2018, impairment allowance
of HK$47,000,000 was made on the trade receivables due from
the Group’s largest customer. Subsequent to 31 March 2018, with
management’s follow up actions to chase the outstanding receivable,
the trade receivable due from the Group’s largest customer has been
fully settled by the customer in June 2018.
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Impairment assessments on property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

During the year ended 31 March 2018, based on the impairment
assessments on oil properties and construction-in-progress and oil
exploitation licences relating to the crude oil segment, representing
an individual cash generating unit (“CGU"), performed by the
management, the recoverable amount of the CGU is estimated to
be lower than the carrying amounts of these property, plant and
equipment and intangible asset. Accordingly, impairment loss of
approximately HK$42,706,000, HK$17,904,000 and HK$92,310,000
are recognised for oil properties, construction-in-progress under
property, plant and equipment and oil exploitation licenses under
intangible assets respectively, on a pro rata basis with reference to the
carrying amount of these assets before impairment, for the year ended
31 March 2018.

Working capital

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's current assets were
kept at approximately HK$1,126,094,000 (2017 (restated):
HK$1,011,382,000) whilst current liabilities were approximately
HK$158,993,000 (2017: HK$338,470,000). The current ratio, being
the proportion of total current assets against current liabilities, was 7.1
(2017 (restated): 3.0). The Directors consider that the present working
capital level is conservatively sufficient to meet the upcoming operating
needs.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flows and facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong Kong
and in China.

The Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$348,923,000 as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$278,866,000). The
Group had cash and bank balances which were mostly held in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s outstanding bank borrowings
and bonds were approximately HK$29,477,000 (2017: 32,818,000)
and HK$619,771,000 (2017: HK$439,227,000) respectively, while
total assets were approximately HK$1,371,502,000 (2017 (restated):
HK$1,391,626,000).

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted S

EEENRR AN

ME BERREUREFEE ZBE
AL

HE-_Z—N\F=ZA=+—HLEFE BE
BEEEHHEF M B (EBEBEEEEN
([ReELEBEM]))HEBZERH éE&EL
TR RA MR A F T2 R AR -,
SEEBEMZAKES %mmﬂ&m%:%%
BMERSEBEARBERLEE 2 REE Al B
HE-Z-N\FEZA=+—BIEERADH
RHBEE VX BERRBETELEIR
MEFEEE N2 ABRARTUE 22%F
EERNBERNNRE AR L O EERRRE
518 4978 %542,706,0007T ~ 75 #17,904,0007T
% 7#5#92,310,0007T

uuk

L BES

JJLA )\EF )E] + El Z’XE.ZUILQE
E,\Eﬁ?ﬂ%M1,126,o94,0007z<_T—t¢
(#&ZE75) : #%1,011,382,0007T) * MiREHE
& %) 575 #158,993,0007T ( =B —+4F: 6
#:338,470,0007T) ° B L X (ARRBEE
HARHEBEILR)BIIN(ZE—HF (K
F75)):30) - EEREBEAEABEESKER
SPHLA] R S E T R R E AT o

RBETRUBER

AEE—REBABELRSRERNER
Rz T EERBITMRTEZEERER
RHES-

AREBR T N\FZA=+—HZEER
IR1T4E 84 BB 1348,923,0000T (& —+
F % 1#278,866,0007T) o AEE IR KR
ITRBRBHUBERARERES -

R_E—NFZA=+—8 AEBE K E
BIRTTIEE REFH D B A LE29,477,000
(ZZ—+t 4 :8%32,818,0007T) &
BE619,771,000 (ZEFE—tF: B
439,227,0007T)  MEELBEN RAEE
1,371,502,0007C ( Z T —tF (KLEH) 78
#1,391,626,0007T) °

FU F“n/t/i

RmREREERATF]

Annual Report 2017-18 —ZT—+&— \FFEERE

33



34

Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR E SR

The gearing ratio, calculated by dividing the total borrowings by the
total assets, was 47% as at 31 March 2018 (2017 (restated): 34%).

Pledged assets

As at 31 March 2018, the Group pledged the following assets to
secure the Group's trading facilities:

(1)  Corporate guarantee executed by the Company for an unlimited
amount (2017: same);

(2) Investment properties with carrying values of HK$103,887,000
(2017: HK$106,118,000).

INFORMATION ON CRUDE OIL RESERVES AS
OF 31 MARCH 2018

During the reporting period, the management appointed APEX
Reservoir Service Inc. ("APEX") as independent professional technical
valuer (the “Technical Valuer”) to evaluate the estimated oil reserve
and recoverable amount of Qigihar oilfield for impairment assessment
purpose as of 31 March 2018.

The reserves evaluation performed by APEX was conducted in
accordance with Petroleum Resources Management System (the
“PRMS"), an internationally recognised reserve standards and
guideline. The evaluation subject was petroleum asset (the “Asset”)
owned by the Company in Fulaerji Oilfield, including Fu 710, Fu
718 and Meilisi 723. The management of the Group has accepted
the newly calculated reserve and a set of technical and economic
parameters proposed by APEX (including discount rates, oil price
and cost projections, and oilfield development plan) as the basis for
recoverable amount calculations. According to the PRMS definition,
the oil reserve should be classified into Proved reserve (“P1"); Probable
reserve (“P2") and Possible reserve (“P3"). Based on management
internal assessment of reserve, the total 1P, 2P (“sum of P1 and P2")
and 3P (“sum of P1, P2 and P3") reserve of Qigihar oilfields as of 31
March 2018, are approximately 522,000 tons, 1,311,000 tons and
1,904,000 tons respectively.
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Report on crude oil reserve FhfEERS
Proved Probable Possible Total
reserve reserve reserve  oil reserve
RERE BMEH#HE WEERHE BAARE
('000 tons) (000 tons)  ('000 tons) (‘000 tons)
(Fm) (Fm) (Fug) (Fug)

Crude oil reserve FmE#E

As at 1 April 2016 R-Z—RENA—A 602 922 447 1,971
Adjustment to estimation* HEET AR IE* (56) (98) 217 63
As at 31 March 2017 R-E—+tF=A=+—H 546 824 664 2,034
Adjustment to estimation* HHET R IE* (24) (35) 71 (130)
As at 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=ZA=+—H 522 789 593 1,904

* During the year ended 31 March 2018, adjustments were made due to the crude oil
price depreciation and the change in market condition (2017: due to the crude oil
price appreciation.)

Reserve evaluation criteria

The volumetric estimate method was used to calculate hydrocarbon in
place and then recover using the huff and puff recovery method and
oil reservoir fire-flooding thermal-ignition method. As at 31 March
2018, APEX has used the deterministic method (as opposed to the
probabilistic method) to calculate the reserves estimates, in which three
discrete scenarios were delineated to represent high, medium and low
cases.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at end of
the reporting year.
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EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
AND INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s business transactions are mainly denominated in United
Stated dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Most of the Group's
bank borrowings are interest bearing at floating rate basis. The
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
The Group also uses derivative financial instruments to manage interest
rate exposures for hedging purpose only.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has an aggregate of 76 (2017: 83)
employees of which about 23 (2017: 25) were located in mainland
China while the rest were based in Hong Kong, Republic of Kazakhstan
and Macau. The employees’ remuneration package includes salary,
bonus and share options. Pursuant to the Group’s remuneration policy,
employees are rewarded on the basis of merit and market conditions
and in accordance with the statutory requirements of the respective
jurisdiction where the employees locate.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of any
dividend during the year (2017: Nil).
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Corporate Governance Report

This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents the corporate
governance matters during the year covering the financial year ended
31 March 2018 (“CG Period”) required to be disclosed under the Rules
Governing the Listing of the Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (“Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the corporate
governance codes of the Company.

During the CG Period, the Company has adopted and complied with
all the Code Provisions set out in the Code except for the deviations as
follows:

The Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) of the Company
are not appointed for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Company'’s Articles of Association.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 March 2018, the Board comprised a total of seven Directors,
with four Executive Directors ("EDs”) and three INEDs. Two of the
INEDs have appropriate professional qualifications in accounting, or
related professional management expertise, which is required by the
Listing Rules. During the CG Period, six regular Board meetings were
held.

During the CG Period, the composition of the Board, and the
respective attendances of the Directors are presented as follows:

B

RIB-N\F=ZA=t—H EFEaHEHE
tUEE MUATES ([RTEER
B FRTES - P MAIB L IFNTT
EEHALTRAMAENEEGFTEEXE
%R EEEEMIME - NEEE RN
B ARRBITTAREFTGEHEH-

NOEEEAHE BEEeNEARRESEEAH
BB

Director Board Capacity Attendance
= Exg549 HE=
Mr. Li Zhenjun (vacated on 14 March 2019) ED & Chairman 6/6
FREEA (RZZE-NF=A B HHEE) WITEEHRER
Mr. Poon Sum (retired on 28 August 2017) ED & Honourary Chairman 3/3
EBREE(RZZE—EFNAZTNARER) WITEEHRIEBER
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED & Chief Executive Officer 6/6
=EREE MITEERITHRAAR
Mr. Poon Wai Kong (re-designated to ED & Chief Financial Officer 6/6
Non-executive director on 4 January 2019)
EBERLEE (RZZ—NLE—ANA WITESEHERVBE
BERERFENTESR)
Mr. Hu Dehua (resigned on 15 February 2018) ED 5/5
HEEEAE (RZE—\FZA+HAFT) HITES
Mr. Wu Zhou (appointed on 26 March 2018 and ED 0/0
resigned on 7 December 2018)
RMEE(RZZE-NF=ZA_TBEZER HITEE
RZZE—N\FE+_HLBHET)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 5/6
BR1GIER e A4 B IFMITES
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 6/6
REB T E BYEHITES
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 6/6
EEREE B EMITES

The Board held six meetings during the CG Period to discuss and/or
approve the financial performance/results of the Group, report, discuss
and/or resolve for the ordinary business and operation matters, and
the corporate development and decisions. At least 14 days’ notice is
given for all reqular Board meetings together with the meeting agenda
such that all Directors are given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda.
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The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective supervision over the
management. Daily operations and administration are delegated to the
management. During the CG Period, none of the Directors above has
or maintained any financial, business, family or other material/ relevant
relationship with any of the other Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the CG Period, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held separately by Mr. Li Zhenjun and Mr.
Wong Kwok Leung respectively.

The separation of duties of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility for
running the board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility for
running the Company’s business. Details of the duties of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are available on the
Company's website.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
on 21 June 2013 and amended with effect from 1 January 2019. A
summary of this Policy, together with the measurable objectives set
for implementing this Policy, and the progress made towards achieving
those objectives are disclosed as below.

SUMMARY OF THE POLICY

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. In designing the Board's composition,
the Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of services. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

IMPLEMENTATION

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition under major
diversified perspectives was summarised as follow:

THEER

ANENTEBIZ - RIS T(CBERERE
BEETERMER Fik XERBEER-
Bk HELR BB MR NMRGFH - &R
BRAZBNRERAAEESIRHNTRM
TEHIRE ©

AT

RARERS BEeET2ZbER A
BBt an R

Gender

R

%8

Year of Services 0-10

RS54

1 2 3 4

=)

FhRAa R

5 6 7 8 9

Number of Directors EE&H
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was formed on 21 March 2005 and has
adopted specific written terms of reference in accordance with the
provisions set out in the Code which are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The role and function of the
Remuneration Committee includes:

o to make recommendations to the board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.

° to review and approve senior management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

o to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.

o to consider salaries paid by comparable companies with
reference to time commitments and responsibilities and
employment terms and conditions for overseas staff.

o to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

o to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate.

. to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors.
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TRERMSE

o to ensure that no director or any of his or her associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

. to consult the chairman and/or the chief executive about
remuneration proposals of the Remuneration Committee for
other executive directors. The Remuneration Committee should

o  EREMNESFRKHEMNBEANSZHE
BEEERGOHM-

s FMZEESRMHEMRITERNHINE
BHAETER/KEBTBAE-1NE
2 HFHEE RS KBELEEER

have access to independent professional advice if necessary. R

During the CG Period, the Remuneration Committee held two physical R EEAHE FHEES TR BT TH
meetings. The composition of the Remuneration Committee and the X&&H -FHMEESNERKIREZESKERH
respective attendances of the committee members are presented as  HEBRT
follows:
Member Committee Capacity Attendance
RE ZEE5H R R
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu Chairman of the committee 2/2
EERRLE ZEEXR
Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 2/2
PR a1 BR S A B IEHITES
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 2/2
R\ EE B IEHITES
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung (appointed on 26 March 2018 ED & Chief Executive Officer 0/0

and resigned on 28 January 2019)
HERAE (RZE-N\FZAZTAEZEK MITE R FRITAER

et e H N H B )
Mr. Poon Sum (retired on 28 August 2017) ED 0/0
EREE(RZE—EFNAZTNBREME) HITES

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu was appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee on 26 March 2018.

The summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee
for the financial year under review included:

J to review the current remuneration policies and appraisal system;

o to recommend to the Board the director’s fee for the year ended
31 March 2018; and

o to consider and approve the remuneration of the directors and
senior management.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors for
the financial year under review is set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The share options granted to/or entitled by the Directors during
the financial year under review are inscribed in the section headed
“Directors’

Interests in Equity or Debt Securities” of the Directors’

Report.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to CG Code Provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in
the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company'’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board.
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TEERWE

The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
amendments of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure their compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance
notes are also issued to Directors where appropriate to ensure their
awareness of best corporate governance practices.

The Directors are continually updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate them to discharge
their responsibilities.
programs are to be arranged for Directors, Directors also participate in
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director or further enhancement of their professional development by
way of attending training courses or via online aids or reading relevant
materials.

If necessary ad hoc seminars and training

All Directors have participated in relevant trainings and have provided
the relevant records to the Company. Through participations in those
training courses, Directors have been able to improve and update their
knowledge and skills.

Company Secretary'’s Training

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Company Secretary must
take no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The Company Secretary provided his training records to
the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending in-house briefings, attending
seminars and reading relevant guideline materials for the financial year
ended 31 March 2018.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the reporting
period.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S REMUNERATION

During the CG Period, the remuneration of the members of the senior
management excluding directors by band is set out below:

/\~ '/‘-I\-

fl= /El#ﬁl:l

SREERE 2 I

REEERBRE  REEFUMIINZ SREBEK
BZ¥HMEESRIWT

Number of individuals

Remuneration band e E A8
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 7B #8500,001 7T 2 78 #1,000,0007T 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 75 #1,000,0017C &8 % 1,500,0007T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7 #51,500,0017C 27 #2,000,0007T 1

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
three were Directors of the Company. Further particulars regarding the
remaining two individuals with the highest emoluments as required to
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee was formed on 26 November 2011
and has adopted specific written terms of reference (re-adopted by
the Board with effect from 1 January 2019) in accordance with the
provisions set out in the Code which are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination Committee
was appointed by the Board and consists of three non-executive
directors and two executive director of the Company. The meetings
and proceedings are governed by the provisions contained in the
articles of association of the Company for regulating meetings and
proceedings of the Directors. The role and function of the Nomination
Committee include:

o To review the performance of the Board and ensure that the
Board and its committees consist of Directors with appropriate
balance of skills, diversity and knowledge of the Company to
enable that the Board is able to function.

J To assist the board in its succession planning for the board and
senior management.
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EERRE

To review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. When
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the board, the
Committee shall take into consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience in accordance with the
board diversity policy adopted by the Company from time to time
to achieve Board diversity.

To draw up, review and update, as appropriate, the diversity
policy for the Board’'s approval making due regard to the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and to review and
update the objectives that the Board has set for implementing
such policy.

To develop, review and implement, as appropriate, the policy,
criteria and procedures for the identification, selection and
nomination of candidates for directors for the board’s approval.
Such criteria include but are not limited to the potential
contributions a candidate can bring to the board in terms of
qualifications, skills, experience, independence and gender
diversity.

To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.

To assess the suitability of independent non-executive directors,
including but not limited to the individual’s independence,
whether the individual would be able to devote sufficient time
to the board having considered whether he/she is holding his/her
seventh (or more) listed company directorship, the perspectives,
skills and experience that the individual can bring to the Board,
and how the individual contributes to the diversity of the Board.
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To make recommendations to the board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for Directors
and senior management, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive, taking into account all factors which the Committee
considers appropriate including the challenges and opportunities
facing the Company and skills and expertise required in the
future and ensure that senior management succession planning
is discussed at the board at least once annually.

To ensure the Company's awareness of the importance of
leadership skills and its programs in providing leadership training
in order to enhance the competitiveness of the Company and to
ensure the Company's future succession.

To evaluate the needs for, and monitor the training and
development of, Directors.

To develop procedures for the performance evaluation of the
board committees:

(i) review and assess the skills, knowledge and experience
required to serve on various board committees, and make
recommendations on the appointment of members of
board committees and the chairman of each committee;

(i)  recommend candidates to the Board to fill vacancies or
new positions on the Board committees as necessary or

desirable;

(iii)  review feedback on the role and effectiveness of the board
committees and make recommendations for any changes.

To consider other matters as defined by the board.
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TEERWE

The selection criteria for Directors are comprise the candidate's
experience in business relevant to the Company or in corporate
management, or in relevant profession and must be able to contribute
effectively to achieve the objectives of the Company. Any committee
member may propose suitable candidates for directorship for
discussion and approval by the Nomination Committee, after which the
Board will consider and, if appropriate, approve such nomination.

For the CG Period, the Nomination Committee had held two physical
meetings for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on appointment and re-appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

During the CG Period, The composition of the Nomination Committee
and the respective attendances of the committee members are
presented as follows:

EEREANHESLEBEBREANAR

MABEBREEE I%i*ﬁﬁiﬁ’ﬂ%%%ﬁg

BH&R RUARS ﬁ*ﬁ%{i‘@ﬁﬁf@ﬁi@ﬁ?

B EMEZEEKNBHAREEEAR A

REZEGIWMEEL BHiZ- é%AHﬁ%J‘E
K (@ E ) EZBERE -

REEERHR REZESERLRITTM
REF EEREEREREENESTERY

N =1
FENANR B IFRITEEN BT

REEERME RAZEENHEKREZES
RBEBHFEBERIT

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
ME EZEE54% HE=R
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung Chairman of the committee 2/2
REBEE ZEGXRE
Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 2/2
PR AGH R e A4 BYFENTES
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 2/2
EERRE BYFHITEE
Mr. Li Zhenjun ED & Chairman 0/0
(appointed on 26 March 2018 and
vacated on 14 March 2019)
FIRE AL HITEFFRER
(R=ZF—N\E=A=+ "BEZEK
RZZE—NF=A+NBHEEH)
Mr. Poon Sum (retired on 28 August 2017) ED and Honorary Chairman 0/0
BRI HITEERREER
(R=ZZE—tFENAZTNBEE)
The chairman of the Nomination Committee during the CG Period was R EEAHBEA IREZEZE 2T FARES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has adopted specific written terms of reference
(re-adopted by the Board with effect from 1 January 2019) in
accordance with the provisions set out in the Code which are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee include:

o to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

J to review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences and
ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

o to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to provide non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditor” includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity
that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee should
report to the board, identifying and making recommendations on
any matters where action or improvement is needed;

o to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them. In reviewing these
reports before submission to the board, the Audit Committee
should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(iii) ~ significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and qualifications;

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited #Z @i &= K EER A A
Annual Report 2017-18 —ZT—+&— \FFEERE

ﬁ:\\ 'H‘-/I:I#&m

BEREES

ERZE SO RETMEMNGEURMIETE
MERBESE (REFER T hF—A
—AEBHRA) LA REE T RA R R
WEH BRZEENIZRAERE:

s  IRAAMINERHBENRMET BFHZ
ERERMEFTSRHEES HEIE
A2 BRI & B B B AR R KR TR (T
7 8 a% 1 BB B B X B R A2 A BB A

&

J RE AR ER R ERINEZEE 2
BEURBRZEEFETAN - BZ
Z B2 ENZE T ER A Al St B A% Zam
FmZEEREEREERRET:
A RBB—RIZEE B2 E T
RIfEREIR B FEWH A

. MEAEINERZ BN R IR BRIl T
Eﬁz%ﬁ'jﬁ%uiﬂﬁoﬁmt%ﬁiﬁﬁé' WI\
H"ET?%(EM BEEAEZBHAA

—fEiAE ﬁﬁﬁﬁéiaﬁﬁ»%z—l‘m&
17#1%%@2—1!@&!&%%%@%@@4
WE=H HEBBERA TS EZEE
BRZBEREH AR A L B
B —HHOEAERE - ERETEGE
HAEMMBRBITSINENFERES

EWREEZ:

s  ERARFRNYBHERREERE KK
B FFEEHRER (CERTE) FERSE
MEEN WERHBRRLRRSAHEH
MBRRABNEAZR - BEREES
EREZESRIBMAMS A B 5
HTNHIEIEINAZEED -

(i) EFFERRREBOERNER:
(iy PWREBHEMI
(i) REEBMHEOBRNERNAE:

(iv) CERELKQLNBRRLER:

49



50

Corporate Governance Report

oE =D

1E

#&c

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and;

(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in
relation to financial reporting;

Regarding above:—

(i)  members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditors; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
the report and accounts, it should give due consideration
to any matters that have been raised by the Company’s
staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors;

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless expressly
addressed by a separate board risk committee, or by the board
itself, to review the Company's risk management and internal
control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should include
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the board or on its own
initiative and management'’s response to these findings;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and
final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to discuss (in
the absence of management where necessary);

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of controls and
management'’s response;
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o to review the Company’s statement on risk management and
internal control systems (where one is included in the annual
report) prior to endorsement by the board;

o where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

o to ensure that the board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

o to report to the board on the matters in provision of terms of
reference of the Audit Committee;

o to review the group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

o to review arrangements by which employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation
of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action; and

o to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company'’s relations with the external auditor.

The Audit Committee meet at least twice each year. During the CG
Period, the Audit Committee met three times for discussing and/
or approving the periodic financial results of the Group, discussing
the auditor’s performance, reviewing the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budgets.
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During the CG Period, The composition of the Audit Committee and
the respective attendances of the committee members are presented as

REXERME ERREendKREZEE
REBEBHFEBERIT

follows:

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
ME EZEE5H HE =
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Chairman of the committee 3/3
FoR 181 BR 5 A ZEgERE

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 3/3
R EE BYFNTES

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 3/3
EERELE WY FRITES

The chairman of the Audit Committee since its establishment has been
Mr. Chan Shu Kin.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The analysis of the Auditor's remuneration for the CG Period is
presented as follows:

BEZZER

93

PRAZHE - B R BRI R A

R A BN <

REEERRAR ZHBMOME A2
T

Fee amount (HK$’ 000)
BH(B%Tr)

Audit Service %R TS
Non-audit services IEZ RS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Corporate Governance Committee of the Company was formed
on 26 November 2011 and has adopted specific written terms of
reference in accordance with the provisions set out in the Code which
are available on the website of the Company. The role and function of
the Corporate Governance Committee include:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continual professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report;

o to review the Company’s risk management and internal control

PAETT-EN

1F /|:13FE(|:|

o BRI RERAQNRGEETEAEZREER
TFHEMNBREER:

o HE RARKEBEAREEREEN
BTEARASRFM(BE)

s  REARRETTANERERERE

SAMEAEHIE:

. i Ef AR R A AL B B R R BB AR Y &

systems. ik

For the CG Period, the Corporate Governance Committee held one  R{EEAHIE  CEEARLZESER L81T
physical meeting. The composition of the Corporate Governance T — X @& EEBEALRZESNHERNLEZES
Committee and the respective attendances of the committee members KESBHFEBREFNMT :
are presented as follows:
Member Committee Capacity Attendance
29-1 ZEE5H HE =
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung Chairman of the committee 17
REB LA ZEGXE
Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 171
PR 181 B2 5 A BYIERITES
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 11
EEEAAE BYIIENITES
Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Chief Financial Officer 171

(resigned on 4 January 2019)
EE ML A WITEEREREVBE

(RZE—-NEFE—AMBAFE)
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED & Chief Executive Officer 0/0

(appointed on 26 March 2018)
BEEREE
(RZZE—NF=ZA=Z+BEZE)

MITEERITRAE
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The chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee is Mr. Cheung
Kwan Hung and he was appointed on 26 March 2018.

The summary of the work performed by the Corporate Governance
Committee for the CG Period included:

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Code

o to review the training and continual professional development of
Directors and senior management

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the management of the
Group and is collectively responsible to ensure sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal
control systems are designed for managing risk rather than eliminating
the risk of failure to achieve business objective, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss or fraud.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with the responsibility
to oversee the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group on an on-going basis and to review the effectiveness of the
systems annually. The review covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls.
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The Management recognizes its responsibility to ensure the Company
maintains a sound and effective risk management and internal
control system. The Group's internal control system is designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and
complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are maintained
in accordance with relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group'’s
performance are appropriately identified and managed. Review of
the Group’s internal controls covering major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management functions. The
internal control system can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss or fraud, as they are
designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Group's risk management framework includes risk identification,
risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring and reviewing of the
effectiveness of the measures. This risk management framework is
guided by the three-tier risk management approach. At the first line
of defense, business units are responsible for identifying, assessing
and monitoring risks associated with each business or deal. The
management, as the second line of defense, defines rule sets and
models, provides technical support, develops new systems and oversees
portfolio management. It ensures that risks are within the acceptable
range and that the first line of defense is effective. As the final line of
defense, the audit committee of the Company, with the professional
advices and opinions from the external professional consultant by
whom internal audit work of the Group was conducted on annual
basis, ensures that the first and second lines of defense are effective
through constant inspection and monitoring.
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Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

Risk management process is integrated with the internal control
system, so that the Group’s ability to handle risks that hinder the
achievement of financial, operational and compliance goals is
strengthened and the allocation of resources on control measures
against specific or high risks areas is more adequate.

The key elements of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk portfolio to
monitor, evaluate and assess the identified risks. The Group updates
the responsive mitigation procedures to ensure their effectiveness on
an ongoing basis. In addition, a risk matrix approach is adopted to
determine risk rating after evaluation of the risk in accordance to the
impact and likelihood of the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the level
of management'’s attention and risk responses.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The Group develops a preliminary inventory of events that could
impact the achievement of the Group's business objectives. The events
identified were inventoried and translated into opportunities or risks.
The Group identifies outside and inside events by reviewing its external
and internal environment and stakeholders, which have an influence
or potential influence on the Group's ability to achieve its strategy
and business objectives. Furthermore, the operating units and support
functions report any risk events and incidents found in a timely manner
to the management.
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The risks identified are evaluated with a risk matrix which prioritises
risks according to the likelihood of their occurrence and the
significance of their impact on the achievement of the Group's
business objectives. Following the review of the risk matrix, the Group
selects and deploys the corresponding risk responses and investigates
the mitigation procedures to be executed to ensure the identified
significant risks were managed to an acceptable level. The Group
monitors substantial change which may lead to new or changed risks
to ensure the risk responses are operated effectively.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed
annually to ensure appropriateness and effectiveness. With the
establishment of an independent internal audit function, the financial
condition, operational control and compliance control are examined
and reviewed according to the risk based audit plan. Different audit
areas are assigned according to risk priority.

The Group's Internal Audit Department plays an important role
in the internal control function. It provides objective assurance to
the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and
operated in compliance with the established processes and standards
by performing periodic audits over all major operations of the Group,
typically over a three year cycle. An annual audit plan (comprising
annual audit focus and audit frequencies) is prepared based on
the development’s independent risk assessment. Such work plan is
discussed and agreed with the Audit Committee at the beginning of
each financial year. Major internal audit findings will be submitted
to the Audit Committee for review and all recommendations from
the Internal Audit Department will be properly followed up to ensure
that they are implemented within a reasonable period of time. The
Directors have received the report from the Internal Audit Department
which conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Group.
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Pursuant to code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, an independent
corporate advisory service firm, (the “Independent Advisor”), was
appointed by the Board on 11 April 2018 to assist in conducting a
review on the Group's system of internal controls and to provide
recommendations on areas for improvement. The review covered the
material controls on the Group’s operations including the financial,
operational, compliance and risk management functions of the Group.
The relevant reports from the Independent Advisor were presented to
and reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board Meeting held
on 22 June 2018. From the report, no material findings are noted
and certain recommendations have been made to the Company. The
Company accepted the recommendations and corresponding actions
have been enforced.

The Board considers that the internal control system of the Group is
effective and will continue to review and update the system to ensure
that shareholder’s investments and the Group’s assets are safeguarded.

Inside Information Policy

To handle and disclose inside information under the Listing Rules
and SFO, the Group has established a policy which contains a strict
prohibition on unauthorised use of inside information. Such policy is
set out inside the staff manual and all staff is required to comply. In
addition, each personnel are granted a specific access right to the price
sensitive and inside information. The Directors, senior management
and employees are informed with the latest regulatory updates. For
the year ended 31 March 2018, inside information was disseminated in
accordance with the inside information policy and the applicable laws
and regulations.

Review of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Functions

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function, their training programmes
and budget, and was satisfied with the results of the review.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy
reflecting the current practices of the Company for communication
with its shareholders, which is available on the website of the
Company.
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The general meeting of the Company provides a platform for

shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The attendance of

each Director at the general meetings of the Company held during the

CG Period is set out as follows:

SREARE

ARRZBERARER/BEREHBEEETGIN
BRAZFE -BEFHENEREAMESET
ZARRBERRE 2HFEBEREINAT

Director Board Capacity Attendance
5= EExg50 HE=
Mr. Li Zhenjun (vacated on 14 March 2019) ED & Chairman 171
FIRELE WITESERER
(R=ZZ—NE=A+MA BB
Mr. Poon Sum (retired on 28 August 2017) ED & Honourary Chairman 11
BRI MITEERFEBEEF
(RZE—tEFEN\AZ+N\BEE)
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED & Chief Executive Officer 171
BEER %S MITEERITHAR
Mr. Poon Wai Kong (re-designated to ED & Chief Financial Officer 11
Non-executive director on 4 January 2019)
EBERLEE (R=ZT—HAF—AWNA WITEERERVBE
BRERIFEHTESE)
Mr. Hu Dehua ED 1Al
(resigned on 15 February 2018)
HAEEL A WITES
(R=ZZ—N\FE=ZATHAEMT)
Mr. Wu Zhou ED 0/0
(appointed on 26 March 2018)
RMEE WITES
(RZE-NEF=ZA=Z+ - BEZE)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 11
BR e BR S A B IFERITESF
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 11
SR $IIE A BYIEARITESE
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 11
EEEEE B IENITES
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM")

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call an EGM. Any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association of the
Company or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures
for shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings other
than a proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an EGM for any
business specified in such written requisition.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting, unless notice signed by a Member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his/her intention
to propose such person for election as a Director and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be
elected shall have been given to the Company or lodged at the head
office or at the Registration Office provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such notices are given, shall be at least
7 days. The period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the
date of such meeting.

A shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring director
or recommended by the Directors for election as a Director by validly
lodging the following documents within the period hereinafter
mentioned at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at 21st Floor, 80 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

1. a notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director, which must state the full name of the
person, include the person’s biographical details as required
by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and be signed by the
shareholder; and

2. anotice in writing signed by that person of his/her willingness to
be elected as a director together with his written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

Such documents shall be lodged with the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong within the period of 7 days after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting. Upon receipt of such documents,
the Company shall verify the documents and, if the proposal is found
to be in order, publish an announcement and/or issue a supplemental
circular in respect of the proposal in accordance with Rule 13.70 of the
Listing Rules.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited

SREARE

BRREBABZSERESZERF

i
i

REARNFEBERMAFLSG RIFEES
HE2E TRABRREESFIN HECRAL
REBNEMBRRAE L2REERM - RIE
MERGEREERAEGLRNE ERRZBE
(YEMBBAD)EZRE HAKARE
REBEMATZSEBEZTZEM UM LAMRES
ATBREBERTEESEZBARIAARR
PEEMERNBFELR EERXEFHERS
ZHREDBER/LE MEXARBEZHME
BRERZEEMEEASREELZA
Fish  ETEBREBAGZBAMLAKR

BRRAAERXEEZ P2 IEABRER T
NHERARRREBZ TEEEME it
BREFELITE80%2118  RE—fUMRRE
EERNEEMBEMIZEFNALZEES
B

1. KRPEBEREZATLEEECEZAER
M ZEBMBEBNANBZALZEZE
BIERIE EMARBIE1351QQBBEZ
ZANLTBEEABULZBRRERRE &

2. BRALIERERVMBL2BEZZEE
MERRETNEEBAEHNZE@DRE

£,
=

BERAXHEARTERRAREBERELRZH
BNERERARA BB T ZLEME - AAF]
MU ENE B X RS B i XXM M fim ik 2o
NeRF BERLEMARUFI3T0GRIRTE
HRZZHETEAER LBELFHTBL -

SRR EEEABR AR
Annual Report 2017-18 —ZT—+&— \FFEERE

61



62

Corporate Governance Report

TEERWE

In the case of any general meeting called by at least 10 clear business
days’ or 14 days’ (whichever is the longer) notice in writing, such
documents lodged within the aforesaid period may be received less
than 10 business days prior to the general meeting, the Company
will consider the adjournment of the general meeting in order to
give shareholders at least 10 business days to consider the relevant
information disclosed in the announcement or supplemental circular.

The aforesaid procedures are available on the Company's website.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company.
The contact details are as follows:

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
21st Floor,

80 Gloucester Road,

Wan Chai,

Hong Kong

Attn: Company Secretary

Email: enquiries@trcf.com.hk
Tel No.: 852-2698 6093
Fax No.: 852-3580 7793

Constitutional Documents

During the CG Period, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Corporate Governance Report

Acknowledgement of Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
for the financial year under review, the Directors have:

o based on a going concern basis;

o selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

o made judgments and estimates that were prudent, fair and
reasonable.

The statement of the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in detail in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 86 to 97.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Guobiao
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 8 November 2019
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

The Directors submit their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHIC
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group's
performance for the year by business and geographical segments is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion
on the Group's prospects are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 to 9 and
pages 27 to 36 of the Annual Report respectively. Description of key
risk factors and uncertainties that the Group is facing are provided in
the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 27 to 36 of the
Annual Report while the financial risk management of the Group is
discussed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to support the environmental sustainability.
Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected by our
continuous efforts in promoting green measures and awareness in
our daily business operations. The Group encourages environmental
protection and promotes awareness towards environmental protection
to the employees. The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and
reducing. It implements green office practices such as double-sided
printing and copying, promoting using recycled paper and reducing
energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliances. The Group will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of the Group’s businesses to move
towards adhering the 3Rs — Reduce, Recycle and Reuse and enhance
environmental sustainability.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES

The Group supports many charitable community programmes by
making corporate donations and encouraging employee contributions
to a number of charitable organisations. During the reporting period,
the Group has contributed a total of HK$117,000 donations to Love
Foundation Limited, The Community Chest as well as Federation of
New Territories Youth Foundation Limited during the reporting period,
with a focus on social welfare, particularly providing support to the
elderly, women, youth and children. The donation to Federation of
New Territories Youth Foundation Limited was to support the Second
Inter-school Competition and Integrated Abilities of Senior Secondary
Student relating to the Belt and Road Initiative, which promoted
teenagers’ interests in social affairs and to widen their horizons.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company was not aware of
any non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets. Thus
the Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and
motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration
package of employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to
the market standard. The Group also understands that it is important
to maintain good relationship with business partners and bank
enterprises to achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, our senior
management have kept good communication, promptly exchanged
ideas and shared business updates with them when appropriate.
During the year under review, there was no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its business partners or bank
enterprises.
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Report of the Directors

EEWE
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 98. No interim dividend was paid or
declared in respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil). The
Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

SHARES ISSUED AND USE OF NET PROCEED

During the reporting period, the Company issued total of
1,417,152,000 ordinary shares through the placement of new shares,
which raised the net proceeds of funding amounting to approximately
HK$147,085,000. Details of movements in shares issued for the year
ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements. During the reporting period, the net proceeds
raised were used for the prescribed purposes, of which approximately
HK$37,575,000 were used as general working capital for the trading
and financial services businesses of the Group. The remaining net
proceeds were unutilised as at 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of principal properties held for development and/or sale and for
investment purposes are set out in page 254 of the Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2018, calculated
under Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)
amounted to approximately HK$327,167,000, representing the
amount standing to the credit of the share premium amount after
deduction of accumulated losses. Under section 34 of the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company, and no distribution may be
paid to shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless the
Company shall be able to pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in Five Years Financial Summary
on pages 255 to 256 of the Annual Report.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries, purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the securities of the Company during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 June 2013, the
shareholders of the Company adopted the new share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) which enabled the grant of options to
subscribe up to 460,062,382 shares, representing 10% of the issued
shares of the Company as at the said date.

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to acknowledge the contributions made or to be made
by participants to the Group. The Board of Directors may, at its
discretion, offer employees, contracted celebrity, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint venture partner
of the Company and its subsidiaries (including any director of the
Group), the grant of options to subscribe for shares of the Company.
Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 March 2018, the total number of shares available for issue
pursuant to the exercise of all options granted and to be granted
under the Share Options Scheme was 457,062,382 shares (including
share option that have been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised),
representing about 5.10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, 1,500,000 share
options have been forfeited under the Share Option Scheme.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. The
Directors will have the absolute discretion to fix the minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised, and the
performance targets that must be achieved before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the
Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares,
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in daily
quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) for the five consecutive trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option and (iii) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer of the option (which must be a trading day).

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of such
period to be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
notified to the grantee. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
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Details of the share option outstanding at 31 March 2018 which have R-ZE—N\F=A=+—8 RIZERET2

been granted under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: BEZHRITEBREFBEOAT

Number of options Price of Company's shares
ERE%A FAARBER
Granted  Exercised  Forfeited

Exercise Asat during during during As at For For
price 1 Apr the the the 31 March Options Options
Participants Date of grant per share  Exercise period 217 period period period 20}}2 granted  exercised
ZE-tF “§-N\f &L B
28% RILEH ERORE WIEH BA-B  REARE REAGE REARW ZA=t+-8 BRE BhRE
HKS ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 HKS HK$
% TH FH TH TH TH % %

(Note 1) (Note 2)
(W) (Mik2)

Executive Directors
HhEs
Mr. Li Zhenjun 22 April 2016 0193 Ictober 2016 to 21 April 2018 5,000 - - - 5,000 - -
FRERE ZF-EMAZTCR -
Zt-8

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 50,000 - - - 50,000 - -
BER%E ZZ-7FRAZTZR “B-AFTACToRE

ZF-\EmAZT-A
Mr. Poon Wai Kong 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 25,000 - - - 25,000 - -
EERxE ZF-EMAZTZA ZE-RETACTZER

ZZ-\fmAZt-B

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUdnES
Mr. Chan Shu Kin 22 April 2016 0.193 3,500 - - - 3,500 - -
REZLE Z5-§mA-1ZR
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 3,500 - - - 3,500 - -
FERELE ZT-7§mAZTZR Z2-RETACTZRE
“F-\§mAZ+-A
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 3,500 - - - 3,500 - -
EBELL “E-7EMAZ1ZA “F-§TAtoRE
“F-\$mAZt+-A
Employees
]
In aggregate 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 73,300 - - (1,500) 71,800 - -
&ir ZT-RFmAZTZR Z2-R"FTAZTZBE
“F-\§MA=t+-R
Other participants
2hsR%
In aggregate 22 April 2016 0.193 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 50,000 - - - 50,000 - -
Ehl —3-~EMA=1=A “F-~FTA-tZRE
“F-\EWAZt-A
Total 213,800 (1,500) 212,300
3t
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EERE
Notes:

1. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for options granted is the closing price
of the shares immediately before the date on which the options were granted.

2. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for options exercised is the weighted
average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were exercised.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or their spouse
or children under the age of 18, had been granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any of
its associated corporations, or had exercised any such right during the
year.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

On 16 October 2008, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme
in which selected employees of the Group, including without limitation
any Executive and Non-executive Director, officer, agent or consultant
(with payroll) of the Group, are entitled to participate in the Share
Award Scheme pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme. The
purposes and objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to recognize
the contributions by certain employees and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.
The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a selected
employee under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date. The
nominal value of the shares awarded by the Board under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the adoption date.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, no share was purchased for the
Share Award Scheme. There were no awarded shares granted forfeited,
vested or outstanding during the period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Li Zhenjun

(vacated on 14 March 2019)
Mr. Poon Sum

(retired on 28 August 2017)
Mr. Huang Guobiao

(appointed on 8 January 2019)
Mr. Chen Yongsheng

(appointed on 7 December 2018)
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung
Mr. Gan Xiaohua

(appointed on 24 September 2018)
Mr. Poon Wai Kong
Mr. Wu Hao

(appointed on 14 March 2019)
Mr. Hu Dehua

(resigned on 15 February 2018)
Mr. Wu Zhou

(appointed on 26 March 2018 and

resigned on 7 December 2018)

Mr. Chan Shu Kin'
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung'
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu’

! Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Huang Guobiao, Mr. Chen Yongsheng, Mr. Gan
Xiaohua and Mr. Wu Hao shall retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and in accordance with Article 87(1) of the
Articles of Association, Mr. Wong Kwok Leung, Mr. Chan Shu Kin and
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All retiring Directors, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a Director
of the Company and the Director's connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Guobiao, aged 40, was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company with effect from 8 January 2019 and was appointed
as chairman of the Board with effect from 28 January 2019. Mr.
Huang has extensive experience in the medicine industry. From 2005
to 2009, Mr. Huang worked at BIZEIZERHIEERABIMFED A
7] (Guoyao Holding Hubei Co. Ltd. New Special Medicine Branch?), a
company principally engaged in the trading of medicine and medical
appliance, as the general manager, responsible for the overall business
operation. From 2005 to 2016, Mr. Huang worked at it ¥ X £ %
ERFE R AF (Hubei Xinwenxing Medical Technology Co. Ltd.%), a
company principally engaged in medical research and development,
and investment in medical projects and companies engaged in medical
market research, as the general manager, responsible for the overall
business operation. Mr. Huang currently works at #dt A& ¥ X 25
#5 PR /A 7] (Hubei Renfu Xinwenxing Medicine Co. Ltd.), a company
principally engaged in the wholesale and research of medicine, as the
general manager, responsible for the overall business operation.

Mr. Huang was the legal representative and an executive director of
ROEMXE XY B ERMER R A
Medical Technology Co. Ltd.*) which was a company established in
the PRC principally engaged in the research of biological and medical

A (Wuhen Xinwenxing Biological

appliances and consultancy services, and was deregistered in November
2016 by its members due to the cessation of business. Mr. Huang was
the general manager of H £ Jk$& % %5 2 5 R 2 & (Wuhen Zhaofeng
Medicine Development Co. Ltd.*) which was a company established
in the PRC principally engaged in the research and development of
medical appliances and healthcare products and consultancy services,
and was struck off in July 2005 due to its failure to comply with
annual inspection requirements. Mr. Huang confirmed that there is no
wrongful act on his part leading to the above dissolution of companies
and that he is not aware of any actual or potential claim has been
or will be made against him as a result of the dissolution of such
companies.

i The English translation of the Chinese name(s), where indicated, are included for
information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official English name(s)
of such Chinese names.
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Mr. Chen Yongsheng, aged 39, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 7 December 2018 and was appointed
as Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 28 January
2019. Mr. Chen graduated from Nanyang Technological University, the
Republic of Singapore, in 2004, with a bachelor degree of engineering
(electrical & electronic engineering) and from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology, Hong Kong, in 2010, with a master degree
in business administration. Mr. Chen passed the & {# A B B&2E
#.(fund management practitioner’s qualification examination®) of
BESFREESEHE (Asset Management Association of China¥)
in 2017. He was a licensed representative for type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) until March 2016.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen has over 15 years experience in
capital markets and the financial services field. From 2004 to 2006,
Mr. Chen worked at Citicorp Investment Bank (S) Ltd., a company
principally engaged in assets management and investment banking.
From 2006 to 2008, Mr. Chen worked at Stirling Coleman Capital
Limited, a company principally engaged in investment banking. From
2010 to 2012, Mr. Chen worked at CIAM Group Limited, being
a subsidiary of CITIC International Assets Management Limited, a
company principally engaged in investment and assets management.
From 2013 to 2016, Mr. Chen worked at Quam Capital Limited, a
company principally engaged in the provision of financial services, with
his last position as a director.

Mr. Gan Xiaohua, aged 46, was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 24 September 2018. Mr. Gan graduated
from the Zhejiang University (G#T/T KE2) , the People’s Republic of
China in 1994 with a bachelor degree in computer technology and
application. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Gan worked in Hangzhou
Rongbang Investment Management Company Limited (#7 /I @& #6
WEEIEARAT), a company principally engaged in investment
management and consultation services, as a director and the general
manager from 2008 to 2014; in Hangzhou Guangda Equity Investment
Fund Management Company Limited* (T}t KR ER E RS EEE
fRAA]), a company principally engaged in investment management
and consultation services, as the general manager from 2014 to 2016;
and in China EBest Holding Group Co., Limited ( F1 Bl 3¢ oA 62 &
HBR/A7F]) a company principally engaged in computer information
technology services, as the chairman from 2016 to 2018. Mr. Gan
is currently the chairman of Zhejiang EBest Investment Management
Co., Limited* (ALK TIREBIEBR AT ), a company principally
engaged in investment management and consultation services,
since December 2017 and the chairman of Zhejiang EBest Gold Co.,
Limited* (AT wES B R A A ), a company principally engaged in
the design and sale of jewellery, since January 2018.

& The English translation of the Chinese name(s), where indicated, are included for
information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official English name(s)
of such Chinese names.
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Mr. Wong Kwok Leung, aged 61, is an Executive Director. He was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer during the period from 1 April
2012 to 28 January 2019. He was appointed as the vice chairman of
the Board with effect from 28 January 2019. He is responsible for the
Group's daily operations, administration and production management
of the Group's subsidiary in the PRC. He obtained the qualification
of LCC-Higher Accounting from London Chamber of Commerce and
diploma of supervisory studies from Hong Kong Productivity Council.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked in the field of finance and
accounting for over 17 years and has obtained extensive knowledge
therein. He joined the Group in September 1997.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Poon Wai Kong, aged 48, is an Non-Executive Director. He
is @ member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Certified Practising Accountant of Australia and
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He also holds a Master
degree in Business Administration and a Master degree in Professional
Accounting and Corporate Governance from the City University
of Hong Kong, a Master degree in Practising Accounting from the
Monash University, Australia and a Bachelor degree in Economics from
the University of London, United Kingdom. He has more than 28 years’
experience in accounting and financial field. He joined the Group in
September 2005. He was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 21 March 2006 and was re-designated as Non-Executive
Director on 4 January 2019. He was the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company during the period from 1 April 2014 to 1 January 2019.
He was the Company Secretary for the Company during the period
from September 2006 to January 2019. He was an independent non-
executive director of TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited during the
period from June 2015 to June 2018 (Stock Code: 515, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). He was also
appointed as an non-executive director of Wing Chi Holdings Limited
in October 2018 (Stock Code: 6080, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange).
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Mr. Wu Hao, aged 58, was appointed as Non-Executive Director of
the Company on 14 March 2019. Mr. Wu graduated from the China
University of Political Science and Law (R BIE /AR E ) , the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"”) in 1986 with a bachelor degree in Law.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu has over 20 years’ experience in
the legal industry specialising in corporate mergers and acquisition,
restructuring, legal risk management, commercial and international
law. From 2002 to 2016, he worked at Beijing CUIPPC Law Firm (1t
MR B2 EAT) as the head and partner of a PRC law firm.
Mr. Wu is currently the senior partner of Zhongrui Law Firm (3t = A
ImZRIEFT) , a PRC law firm.

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan Shu Kin, aged 65, is an Independent Non-executive Director.
He was appointed on 21 October 2002. He is a certified public
accountant and is a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants. He is an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a Certified Tax Advisor of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He
has over 40 years of experience in the field of auditing, accounting as
well as financial management. He is the past president of the Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. He is also an independent
non- executive director of PYl Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 498,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and GTI
Holdings Limited (Formerly known as Addchance Holdings Limited)
(Stock Code: 3344, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange) respectively.
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Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, aged 67, is an Independent Non-executive
Director. He was appointed on 30 September 2004. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has many
years of experience in accounting, finance and corporate management
and has considerable years of experience in investment banking
specialising in equity/debt fund raising, mergers and acquisitions
and corporate and debt restructuring as well as private financial
consultancy work. He was also an executive director of publicly
listed companies undertaking corporate management, planning and
strategies development functions. Currently, he is an independent non-
executive director of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
342, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange),
Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3683, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and Zhuoxin
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8266, a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange).

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu, aged 72, is an Independent Non-executive Director.
He was appointed on 11 December 2015. He is a very experienced and
reputable journalist and has over 43 years of experience in journalism.
He has been a reporter, an editor, the main news assignment editor,
the local news assignment editor, the managing editor and the
editorial writer in newspapers and a senior research officer in “One
Country Two Systems Research Institute”. Mr. Chiu has been the
founding treasurer and the second-session chairman of the “Hong
Kong Federation of Journalists”. In 2006, he was elected as the Vice
Secretary-General & Treasurer in the new session of re-election of
committee members of the “Hong Kong Federation of Journalists”;
and he was also elected as the Director-General in 2009. Mr. Chiu
has, for many years, devoted himself wholeheartedly in boosting
cooperation among local journalists, enhancing professional conduct
of journalists and developing the relationship and advocating the
interchange of knowledge between journalists in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. His contribution in this field is highly praised and
recognised. Mr. Chiu served as an independent non-executive director
of Global Strategic Group Limited (Stock Code: 8007, a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange) and resigned on the said
position on 16 June 2016. Mr. Chiu currently serves as an independent
non-executive director of GTI Holdings Limited (Formerly known as
Addchance Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 3344, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and Zhuoxin International
Holdings Limited (Formerly known as Gold Tat Group International
Limited)(Stock Code: 8266, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange).
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Senior Management

Ms. Tsang Hau Wai, aged 39, is currently the Chief Financial Officer of
the Group since January 2019. She is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is also a certified
Project Management Professional of Project Management Institute.
She holds a Bachelor degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Company in December
2011, she had more than 15 years’ experience in the field of auditing,
accounting and financial management mainly from international
accounting firms and a listed company on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Business unit
Commodity trading

Mr. Lee Siu Fung, Stephen, aged 43, is currently the head of
commodity trading sector. Mr. Lee holds Bachelor Degree in Arts from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has considerable years of
management experience in both People’s Republic of China and Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China.
He was once the Associate Director of Convoy Global Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1019, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange), the Executive President of £EFREEEAR A A CFRYI)
and the Vice President of ARHXAR A7 (EM) .

Financial services

Mr. Chan Wing Sum, Sam, aged 39, is currently the Chief Investment
Officer of China Hong Kong Link Asset Management Limited. Mr. Chan
holds an MBA degree from the University of Wales and a Postgraduate
Diploma in Marketing (PG Dip) from Edinburgh Napier University, both
in the United Kingdom. He is an associate of the Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers (AHKIB) and Accredited Banking Practitioner (ABP) of the
Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in asset management and financial services field for over 15 years of in
both People’s Republic of China and Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the People’s Republic of China. he was the Executive Officer
and the Chief Investment Officer of Glory Sun Asset Management
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Glory Sun Financial Group
(Hong Kong stock code: 1282.hk) and assisted with clients’ portfolio
management at Hong Kong Headquarter of Hong Kong and Shang
Hai Banking Corporation. He was also with Dah Sing Life Insurance
Company Limited and ACE Life Insurance Company Ltd. in their
respective wealth management departments before.
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Mr. Wong Chi Kan, aged 57, is currently the Representative Officer and
Director of China-Hong Kong Link Securities Company Limited effective
from October 2016. Mr. Wong has been licensed to carry out Type
1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the SFO since April
2003. Mr. Wong is currently the head of sales and trading, in which
capacity he supervises the dealing department and is responsible for
the front office operations, including executing client orders, advising
clients and general day to day sales and trading work. Mr. Wong has
worked at several Hong Kong-based brokerage and securities houses
as a Responsible Officer (RO) or a representative over the past 14
years; he was a RO in CSC Securities (HK) Limited from April 2003 to
August 2003 involved in dealing in securities; from September 2003
to October 2004 he was a Licensed Representative of First Securities
(HK) Limited involved in dealing in securities; from January 2005
to September 2012 he was a Licensed Representative at Luen Fat
Securities Company Limited involved in dealing in securities; and from
September 2012 to September 2016 he was a Responsible Officer in
Pinestone Securities Limited in involved in dealing securities.

- The English transliteration of the Chinese name in this report, where indicated, is
included for information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official
English name of such Chinese name.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2018, the interests of the Directors and Chief Executive
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any

of its

associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities

and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

EENRTETHAEES
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on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) were as follows: RETEBESMT :
Total % of
Name of Directors Capacity Nature of Interests Number of Shares Equity Derivative Total Interest Issued Shares
\ KERARAN
3.2 5% BEtE R&#8A RASTETA BER AR
(Note 3)
(ft343)
Mr. Li Zhenjun Interest of controlled corporation Corporate Interest (Note 1 & 3) 2,000,000,000 & 2,005,000,000 22.36%
FREEE RiEd AR ER #EEEE (M R3)
Benefifia\ Owner Personal Interest (Notes 2 & 3) - 5,000,000
ERBEEA N EACGEE)
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung Beneﬁfia\ Owner Personal Interest (Note 2 & 3) 116,285 50,000,000 50,116,285 0.56%
ERREE ERBEEA EINEACELE)
Mr. Poon Wai Kong Benefifia] Owner Personal Interest (Note 2 & 3) 7,900,000 25,000,000 32,900,000 0.37%
EERILE EnBEEA EINACGELE)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Benefifial Owner Personal Interest (Note 2 & 3) 61,500 3,500,000 3,561,500 0.04%
REZEL EnBEA EINEACEE)
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung Benefifial Owner Personal Interest (Note 2 & 3) 234,000 3,500,000 3,734,000 0.04%
REBEE ERBEEA EINACEE)
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu Benefifial Owner Personal Interest (Note 2 & 3) - 3,500,000 3,500,000 0.04%
¥ ERBEA EINEACEE)
Notes: BaE :

80

These shares are held by Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Holding Co., Limited. The issued
share capital of Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Holding Co., Limited is owned as to 100%
by % E R & & Rk S BB R A (Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu Financial
Services Group Limited*), a company established in the PRC with limited liability,
which in turn is owned as to 90% by Mr. Li Zhenjun.

All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are interests
in share options of the Company granted under the share options scheme, which
may be exercised during the period from 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 at the
exercise price of HK$0.193 per share.

All interests in shares of the Company are long position.
The English transliteration of the Chinese name in this report, where indicated, is

included for information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official
English name of such Chinese name.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the directors

and chief executive of the Company had held any interests or short

positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

Comp
XV of
Comp
Comp

SUB

As at

any or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
any under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
any and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

STANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

31 March 2018, the interest of the shareholders, not being

a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, in the shares and

underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
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to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows: EMECMAAEEMERET
Name of Substantial Number of Total% of
Shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held Equity Derivative Total Interest Issued Shares
HEBTRAN
IERFEHE/EB a2t BEftE BENRAYA RASTETR B ansk
(Note 3)
(H3E3)
Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Interest of Controlled Corporation ~ Corporate Interest 2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000 22.30%
Fu Finandial Services Group (Notes 1 & 4)
Limited
IHERERECRRBEEE XEHEERER R (1 R4)
BRAR
Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Beneficial Owner Corporate Interest 2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000 22.30%
Holding Co., Limited (Notes 1 & 4)
RERE (BB ARERAR ERABA B (1 R4)
Poon Sum Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Note 3 & 4) 104,202,453 50,000,000 498,581,011 5.56%
AR E&fAA {E AR (MEE3Rk4)
Founder of Discretionary Trust Other Interest (Notes 2 & 4) 344,378,558
RRETAHEA i (M2Rka)
Notes: Bt & -

The issued share capital of Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Holding Co., Limited is owned
as to 100% by Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu Financial Services Group Limited, a
company established in the PRC with limited liability, which in turn is owned as to
90% by Mr. Li Zhenjun.

These shares are held by Ever Source Enterprises Limited. The issued share capital of
Ever Source Enterprises Limited is beneficially owned as to 50% by Time Concord
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by
a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sum,
and as to 50% by Guidance Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries
of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sau Tin, the elder brother of Mr. Poon
Sum. Accordingly, Mr. Poon Sum is deemed to be interested in 344,378,558 shares,
representing approximately 3.84% of the shares in issue as at 31 March 2018,
through his shareholding in Ever Source Enterprises Limited.

All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are interests
in share options of the Company granted under the share options scheme, which
may be exercised during the period from 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 at the
exercise price of HK$0.193 per share.

All interests in the shares of the Company are long position.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
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Source Enterprises Limitedf) B 21T iR A B — RN KB
BERBEBEMRIEB —HE2EGET (RRARERS
HH)R R B ) fE# A H) A 7] Time Concord Limited
wEES0% WA —FHREBE XS MK kA —
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MRk 8 ) R1#E # B 8 A FlGuidance Investments Limited
HHSINN50% © Bt - EFR LA B E R Ever Source
Enterprises Limited ) i » #1547 /4 #2344,378, 558 % i
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TR #93.84% ©
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ESERE

Save as disclosed above, there was no person known to the directors
of the Company, other than a director of the Company, who as at
31 March 2018 had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company are recorded in the register kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers were approximately 98.5% and the sales attributable
to the Group's largest customer were approximately 92.2% of the
Group's total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers were approximately 99.4% and the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier were approximately 66.8%
of the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @ R ZEEHR A
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, there were no transactions, which need
to be disclosed as connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed in this annual report,
none of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report is a
connected transaction.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its parent company a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the share option scheme are set out in this report and note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into during the reporting period or subsisted at the end of the
reporting period.
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EEWE
PENSION SCHEME RULES

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme ("MPF scheme”) was set up for certain employees in Hong
Kong, in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of the
employees’ gross earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,000 per month to the
MPF scheme. With effect from 1 June 2012, the ceiling is revised from
HK$1,000 to HK$1,250 per month. With effect from 1 June 2014, the
ceiling is revised from HK$1,250 to HK$1,500 per month. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the MPF Scheme.

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiary are required to participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The PRC subsidiary contributes 2% to 22% of
the employee payroll to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of
the employees.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable under the above schemes.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
for the time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duties,
or supposed duties, in their offices, provided that this indemnity shall
not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which
may attach to any of said persons.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited % &&= & E AR 7
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—+&E— \FHEEHE

RIKEFTEIRA

M-ZEEEF+-_F B REFREERS
MABHEGD AETEBEER A
HIEAESFTE ([RESFTE]) - BIERIE
CEEMBRA BENEEREEESESTHA
Mo S AT EIEL A E ME B RIS % A
o MEA LR AEBEE1,000T - N_E—=F
ANA—HRR ZALERABE000TIER B
B, 250 R E—ENA—BE - EA
LR ERAE®E, 25018 5] BAEHE1,5007T - A&
EHREESTENE ST IRAESET
EIE AR B -

AEEWNTRENBAREENE2EBE
T IR AT P& 1RO S SR KA B - FR BI Y/
AEGAZFEELEEREEFHEN2%E
22% R A [HE B B RIKAE A ©

I 48 2R YR SR AT AR DA BB ZE AR #8 s 51
EIFEN R

R 2 MEIRX

ARRZHABERRTE ARAERNESH
EBEUARREERBMIEARERE LE
R EEIERAREAREERN -7 REX
BH 2 EAEAN  EBRITALEEARR
THREIHEBBAZBRERE R LA
BITMEL - REEROEATAMAS K
AREADREREN—RR B WE 18
K BERAIXMRXBR HHLERBRESTE
WE B B Lt AL AT AE 2 (E I HREF
HABHE 2 EMEH-

ZNNCINEN- NN S i A R RS O A
RELNEETNEBOERRR-



PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) has resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 11 June 2019. Moore Stephens CPA
Limited (“Moore Stephens”) has been appointed as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 11 June 2019 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of PwC. The financial statements for the
year have been audited by Moore Stephens who retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Details of the change of auditors were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 11 June 2019.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Guobiao
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 8 November 2019
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To the Shareholders of Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tou Rong
Chang Fu Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 253,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2018, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

B ZBERE

= RAEVER

EEEREBEFESHMAGRMAN (BESE
FHERD (T (FBEER) ETRG-
EEERSENTAENERCEARE R
BEIEH G A M BHRRAENEE P
EE— SRt - REEESHMAGRMH
(FEgamERTR) ([SFRI)) - BEE
VR BEE YERETTARNEMBEER
F-BERE BEEMESNEBRIERLERR
LREEHMAESNERREHER:

BARETEIR

MREAFTEERBEEENEEAE RA
HAFEEAUBRRNEARAEENSE
B-REFRENBESFHERBR OB RERM
B ERNHARRKAETRE MEET Y
SZEFHERERER -
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B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEESSHE

Impairment assessment of oil properties and
construction-in-progress included in property, plant
and equipment and oil exploitation licences included
in intangible assets relating to the crude oil segment
BRI BEBZREEERERIR (FFANE KR
REBRB)RAHBART IR (FFABRFEE) 2BENMG

As detailed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the operation of the oilfields located at
the Heilongjiang Province of the People’s Republic of
China has been suspended since 2015 and there was
a significant decrease in oil price during 2018. The
management considered that impairment indicators
on oil properties, construction-in-progress included
in property, plant and equipment and oil exploitation
licences included in intangible assets relating to the crude
oil segment existed as at 31 March 2018. Accordingly,
the management assessed whether there was any
impairment of these assets relating to the crude oil
segment at 31 March 2018 by estimating the recoverable
amount of these assets with the assistance from an
independent external expert engaged by the Company
(“Management’s Expert”), in which key assumptions
included estimated average oil price, estimated total
extraction of oil, discount for lack of marketability and
discount rate.

W ANAR S B 75 #R R MY SR 1S AT ARl - LA AR EE A R AN B
ERIEZHHEAE - —HAFEEFEEERRZ=ZZT—N
FRNHELBREAB TR - EEERA R —\F=A
=T—HERBRMDIEB TR EE ERETRE (5
AW BB REE) RARRARTAE (FFAREEE)
HERERR it EEBEE BERAREXE 2B
HBER([EEEER]) 2B T A ZEEENTIRE
CREUNTER - \F=ZA=1T—HREGHR{E[H
[Rom 2 EAERE 2 EERE - P AREBRReE M T h
B hET A RAARRE  BZ W5 m I (78 R AL
W&o
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

TENBETNAEERRERT SR

We have performed the following procedures in relation
to the management’s impairment assessment of oil
exploitation licences included in intangible assets, oil
properties and construction-in-progress included in
property, plant and equipment:
EEEREEEERAMRARGTAE (GFAREEE) &b
BERERIR (FFAYE BEREE) 2REFGEEE
AT :

° We obtained understanding on the key controls
relating to the impairment assessment process used
by the management;

S5 THRETIEE SR ZMER (5127 R ) g
PR

o We assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Management’s expert;
EEEAMERERERZER O REEMN:



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BREEE

Impairment assessment of oil properties and
construction-in-progress included in property, plant
and equipment and oil exploitation licences included
in intangible assets relating to the crude oil segment
(Continued)

RS BEBZEREEREREIR (FFAYE -BE
RRE)RAHBARTAIR (FFABRREE) 2RENMG
(@0

We identified the impairment assessment of oil properties
and construction-in-progress included in property, plant
and equipment and oil exploitation licences included
in intangible assets relating to the crude oil segment
as a key audit matter due to the involvement of
significant judgements and assumptions in estimating the
recoverable amount of these assets.

EREFASMEB B EERERLIE (GtAY
% B M) R A MR E (FEABPEE) 2™
BEFHEER RRRESFE RARGAZSZEEZATNR
Bl & /Y IKE I RR&-

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amounts of the oil
properties, construction-in-progress and oil exploitation
licences relating to crude oil segment amounted to
approximately HK$3,158,000, HK$1,324,000 and
HK$6,827,000 respectively.

RZE-NFE=ZA=+—B BRBS>BEBAZFHE
EAERIEXAMBARFAZZIREED NOREE
3,158,0007T * /& #41,324,0007T & & #6,827,0007T °

Impairment losses in relation to oil properties,
construction-in-progress and oil exploitation license
relating to the crude oil segment of HK$42,706,000,
HK$17,904,000 and HK$92,310,000 respectively were
recognised as expenses during year.

RER BRMDMEE2RBEE ER2TE R AMH
FER AT AL 28 Z BB B 1B 9 Bl /% %42,706,0007C - B %
17,904,000 K& #%92,310,000 R AR X ©
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BARET B TH (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBETNAEEHARETER

o We involved our in-house valuation expert to assess
the appropriateness of methodology and model used
by the Management’s Expert in their impairment
assessment;
EEERNSHEERFEEREBERNRENE
RPERZ TERKRE 2 EE M

o We benchmarked key assumptions including average
oil price, discount for lack of marketability and
discount rate against available and relevant industry

data'
SHTEHRBJETEERN BIEFSHE B
ﬁm@ﬁﬁﬁm%%&ﬁT%&ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁm
fﬂ:tE’JEEEE$:

° We tested the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the impairment assessment; and

EFRFHABENETE RN &

° We have reviewed sensitivity analysis prepared by the
management over the key assumptions used.

EEEMERBUHMAZIERRBROBRE
ﬁ
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREESSEE

Assessment of loss allowance for expected credit
losses on trade receivables

BESRWSRBACHAMFER R 2 BRBEN

As detailed in Note 21, the Group has gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$598,677,000 as at 31
March 2018 against which expected credit losses (“ECL")
of approximately HK$72,744,000 was provided.

WA G2 FrErat - R - \EFE=ZA=+—H - &K
E 2 88 5 EWRIEL 2% %598,677,0007T - 3 Bt 78 HA
EEEIE ([BREEEER])FHRENET72,744,0007T

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group early adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS
9") in the current year.

MAARE M MR 2T BEEERAFERT
KRB MBRELUBESR [eMmITA] ([EEMBR
EARERNER]) o

Significant judgement is required when management
assesses and estimates the expected credit losses on
trade receivables (e.g. determining the default rate of the
debtors). Estimated default rates are based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information.
In addition, trade receivables that are credit-impaired or
significant outstanding balances are assessed for expected
credit loss individually.
EERENMRGEHESRUREBZEREEEFRNE
EEBA 2 ERQERREELBERNAE - BRI RTDIREE
T A TE 5T F HA A O FE S8 #5258 40 3 T LAl 5T KR st AT B 14
BERMERAE o BEHBREERMEREREARENE
#2 B 5 IE WK TR 8 Bl 1= T8 B (= B B 18 1F AT A ©

As disclosed in note 3(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised an additional amount
of HK$38,040,000 of allowance for credit losses on trade
receivables for the year.

BN A M BEHRME3@QMAKRE BEXEEHRF
EESRURIBZ GEEERERIABINEEHESBEE
38,040,0007T °
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBETNAEEHARETER

We have performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s assessment of loss allowance for expected
credit losses on trade receivables:
EECREREEHBE RN FIBE BREEBE BIER
BRI A BHEA TR -

o We obtained understanding on the key controls
relating to the assessment of loss allowance for
expected credit losses on trade receivables;
EETHEEHRERVFIAZ EHEEFEZ BB
[CEREEEE ek

o We tested the accuracy of receivable ageing analysis
on a sample basis;

F SR E R SRR AR B D AT 2 ERENE

o We reviewed the Group’s overall policies and
procedures in relation to expected credit loss
framework for estimating impairment provisions
and assessed the appropriateness of the credit
losses provisioning methodology applied by the
management;

F5EH BEEEFHMGRERBOHNEBEES
BRERNEEBIRLER Rt EEEMERN
EEEBRBBEREANEEML

o We reviewed the information used to determine the
expected credit losses by considering cash collection
performance against historical trends and the level of
credit loss charges over time; and
EEFREREHBEBENE S ERKRE REER
RGN EEBEKIENANEERAEE
BEENER: &

o We involved our inhouse valuation expert to assess
the appropriateness of methodology and model
use by the management in their assessment of loss
allowances for ECL on trade receivables.
EEERANHEERFEERENE S RKFIE
ZHEREEBRcBREREBEZIETMERZIE
KRR 7 N



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BREEE

Assessment of loss allowances for expected credit
losses on loans receivable

ERERzRHFEBBEZERBETMG

We identified the impairment of loans receivable as a key
audit matter due to significant management judgement
involved in identification and measurement of expected
credit losses (“ECL").

HREBEEERE ([EREEEE]) OHEMNRFTEY R
EIREBHE - B SRR ET ORMERD REERETE
I8 o

The key changes arising from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are
that the Group’s credit losses are now estimated based
on an expected loss model rather than an incurred loss
model.

RNBENBRELEARIREENETEZH L E5E
WEEERRNREREEEAMICEEEREX G
ate

As disclosed in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has loans receivable of
HK$73,933,000, after recognising an impairment
allowance of HK$15,665,000 as at 31 March 2018.
As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group early adopted HKFRS 9 in the
current year.

GG BERMENF22AER R —\F=H
=+—HB' EBEXEZEKREFREEET3,933,0007T (&
FOBR B (E BB S 15,665,0007T ) ° B4R & BT 75 3R 5= MY
T2FTERRE . BESERAFEERNKAEBMBRESE
el

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

BB E=1E (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBETNAEEHARETER

We have performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s assessment of loss allowances for expected
credit losses on loans receivable:
EEOREREEHEKER  BREEEEB c BEEBT
HEBUTER:

o We inquired the management to understand the
approach applied on ECL model of loans receivable;
EEAMEERE ATHRERNEREFROTESRGE
EBERRANTE:

o We obtained understanding on key controls on how
the management estimates impairment for loans

receivable;
EETHREHEEENAHFERER R ERNEE
BRIEH

o We tested the accuracy of the ECL adjustment made
by the Group as at 1 April 2018 on initial adoption
of HKFRS 9;
EEAEAR - N\FOA-BERRNEENB
HELEFORKEHNEMEEBE AR ERE
:|\£;E o

o We tested the inputs used by the management to
assess the ECL, by comparing individual items in the
analysis with the relevant loan agreements and other
supporting documents;
EEAGERENLRAEEEEMAEASE
TEREASITHEE IR BABENERGE R H
i 38 BA ST VELL 8L
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREESSEE

Assessment of loss allowances for expected credit
losses on loans receivable (Continued)

ERERzBHFEBBEZBERBETMG @

The assessment of loss allowance for ECL on loans
receivable involves significant management judgements
and estimates on the amount of ECL at the reporting
date.

EHRKWER s EREEBERzBEERBHTIRIRER
ERENE WRRSANKEREEBBSE A
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBETNAEEHARETER

We challenged the management’s basis and
judgement in determining the appropriateness of
the management'’s grouping of the loans receivable
into different categories, the inputs and assumptions
applies on the ECL model, including probability of
default, loss given default the Group’s historical loss
experience and forward-looking information;
EEEETERERBREREETRERNRE
BN ERTERNEERIE ERANEHEE
BREEXNEABE MR BFEEHHNE EOA
KE. BEREEMNBTEBEERRATELEER:

We assessed the appropriateness of the inputs and
assumptions applied on the ECL model of term
loans, including probability of default, loss given
default and forward-looking information;
EETHEARENERNEREEFEEANER
ABERBRERAEE T BFEENME BRBLX
K ATHE &

We reviewed the Group's historical loss experience;
TE5BRs ESENBEEBELR:

We assessed the reasonableness and appropriateness
of the management’s judgement on applying the
relevant accounting requirements;
EEMAERENREAEESTRERTHEBNS
BENEE M



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BREEE

Assessment of loss allowances for expected credit
losses on loans receivable (Continued)

ERERzBHFEBBEZEBERBETMG @

The Group performs the ECL assessment based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors specific to the borrowers, general economic
conditions, the current conditions at the reporting date
and forward-looking analysis. The Group also reviews
the value of collateral received from the customers in
measuring ECL, if any.

EXERE BEXENBTEEBELCRETERRER
BEE TRBEFANTERER  —REERL B
BEBHNRARAEESTEHFAE . BXEER
EHHEEEAEN TR BT PERNERRER  ©
Ao

As disclosed in Note 3(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised an additional amount
of HK$21,024,000 of allowance for credit losses on loans
receivable for the year.

AR A MR ERM 3@V HE  NEBECRFERE
WERZEEBBEREIMNEESTEE21,024,0007T

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

BB E=1E (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBETNAEEHARETER

. We tested the mathematical accuracy of the loss
allowance for ECL;
FEAAEHEEEENEEREEHE FHER
[

° We examined on a sample basis the underlying
documentation supporting the value of collateral, if
any, and the Group’s management'’s key estimations
used in the individual impairment assessment for
loans receivable on a sample basis; and
ESMEREERERREENBEXY (1E) -
R BEEEEEERMHEEESEBREN G
B ET : &

o We evaluated the disclosures regarding the
impairment measurement of loans receivable in Note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.
FEhEE VB mAMT220E @RI E AR
EE e R
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

B ZBERE

BB ERT RS ISR
ENEE

BEENER REGAMBERREBEIS T
FE AR P RRAF B AR T B B B A B AR BRI R
BAERE LHABRKRESEROZKEEIE
HF-EEER BT (ERER)BE KRtz
SMRREFIEEMB N - BEF TSR AR ER
NBMEMEMALE ERFAETFAEE-A
BREZSRKTORE BTRERERR (B
BEEL) ETNER AR —EXRBRR
AP FERT AR RE B3R o SRRRIRA AT LA R BRFFE
ol IR B ERH M B E AR
REFEEAVBMREMB KBRS MR
RETE L VR TE - AIA B A #5 SR BR A AT 4%
BIEEK-

ERIE (BEBHER) ETRIRBIES
ESEMTEEAG  RF T AR -

BEE R
=5 -

o ELAIANEEfh B P BRRF S ER RR T 8 BUR
EUMBBRFEERBRRANER
RETMMITRE BT AR ELRR
AR R REEWEERE R
EEBRMER ARNRFFATRE S RSB
RoBE ERER ERRL H0EE
A EBER S 2 £ - B 1tk R e 35 3R R KR
i G B B SRR PR L B L B = I AR B
BRAERMEREAHERRAAN R

o
o TREEIEMONEEH - URE

EMEHEF BENLIY EEE

PRI AR ERE R
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @ R ZEEHR A
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when,
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

in extremely rare circumstances, we

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan, King Keung
Practising Certificate Number: PO6057

Hong Kong
8 November 2019
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Consolidated Income Statement

e lER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ=Z=F

—NE=ZA=t—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BEET T
(Restated)
(&E7)
(Note2(b)(iii))
(B sE2(b)Gii) )
Revenue U & 5,536,378 13,832,372
Cost of sales HEKA (5.389,906) (13,519,651)
Gross profit EH 146,472 312,721
Other losses, net EMEE F8 6 (120,043) (813)
Allowance for credit losses on BHEMFE
trade receivables EERERE 3(a)(ii) (38,040) (18,156)
Allowance for credit losses on EWE R 2 EEEERE
loans receivable 3(a)(ii) (21,024) (9,225)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SEA A 7 (20,555) (45,456)
Administrative expenses THAX 7 (95,519) (106,595)
Operating (loss)/profit L (BR) w5 (148,709) 132,476
Finance income A WA 11 61 106
Finance costs [E SN 11 (53,009) (38,367)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B1E) m (201,657) 94,215
Income tax credit/(expense) Frefiie,/ (FxX) 12 846 (1,643)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(EER),/EFH (200,811) 92,572
(Loss)/profit for the year AT ATEIEEA
attributable to: (E518) /m A
Owners of the Company FiN/NETE ¥ =N (199,630) 95,188
Non-controlling interests FE 128 ) 1 A (1,181) (2,616)
(200,811) 92,572
(Loss)/earnings per share (HK cents) &% (E518) /&F (L) 13
Basic and diluted AR K #E (2.63) 1.27

The notes on pages 108 to 253 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EWRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE—_Z—-NF=A=+—HILFE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BT
(Restated)

(re&:75)

(Note2(b)(iii))
(B sE2(b)Gii) )

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)HEH (200,811) 92,572
Other comprehensive income/ Hp2mBA (BX)
(expense) :
Item that may be reclassified FETE ] BE R E AT 748
subsequently to profit or loss: 2EmEE -
Exchange differences arising REGINEBEE S
on translation of ENHZEZ%
foreign operations 26,756 (17,348)
Item that will not be reclassified BEET W B
subsequently to profit or loss: EEmIEEA -

Changes in fair value of financial AT EEBHEMEE
assets at fair value through other W #5%IBR 2 & BB &=

comprehensive income 2N EEE 20 4,635 (2,292)
Other comprehensive income/ FREMEEKRA
(expense) for the year (FX) 31,391 (19,640)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ FR2E (AX)/
income for the year Nt (169,420) 72,932
Total comprehensive (expense)/ ITALEGZE (FAX),/
income attributable to: LNk
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIEZ Z =N (168,595) 71,858
Non-controlling interests FEPEH R (825) 1,074

(169,420) 72,932

The notes on pages 108 to 253 are an integral part of these SF108B E253E v i AZSHAMEHRE

consolidated financial statements. gz —=1m -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e I AROR 3R

As at 31 March 2018 RWZ_Z—N\F=A=+—H

As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
RZE-NF RZE—tF R-T—XRF
=B=+-H =A=+—H mA—A
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Log= BET T BT T BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (&)
(Note 2(b )(|||)) (Note 2(b)(iii))
(PR EE2(b) i) ) (P EE2(b) i) )
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BB KSE 15 26,580 83,266 87,298
Investment properties BEME 16 103,887 106,118 108,349
Intangible assets ﬂiﬂ;ﬁfz 17 30,900 129,273 141,501
Interests in associates Nk NCIA: £y 18 = = =
Prepayments, deposits ?Eﬁ RE-EHER
and other receivables HoAth e e 108 19 52,391 32,346 31,538
Financial assets at fair value BAFEBBEM
through other ZHEKETIEZ
comprehensive income TRHEE 20 4,079 29,241 24,533
Financial assets at fair value RATEEBRES
through profit or loss SRRz R R EE 23 27,571 = =
245,408 380,244 393,219
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 1,182 2,225 2,626
Trade receivables £ LG 21 525,933 411,737 331,472
Loans receivable R E K 22 73,933 111,036 18,240
Prepayments, deposits BRNRIE Rek
and other receivables H 1t e W R IE 19 122,748 202,206 102,676
Financial assets at fair value RATEBRER
through profit or loss FIRz B E 23 46,747 256 657
Current income tax recoverable A4 Bl BN EARTIS & 1,218 - -
Client trust bank balances REEERTER 24 5,410 5,056 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekBAeEEERE 24 348,923 278,866 208,168
1,126,094 1,011,382 663,839
Total assets BEEME 1,371,502 1,391,626 1,057,058
Equity and liabilities EEREE
Equity attributable to ERATEE AR
owners of the Company ZREm
Share capital [ 28 89,679 75,507 62,174
Reserves & 504,599 540,281 304,037
594,278 615,788 366,211
Non-controlling interests FE P i M (1,496) (2,671) (3,096)
Total equity B 592,782 613,117 363,115

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @& Z £ EHR A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BIFIR R

nv-_l—\
As at 31 March 2018 R=—ZE—N\F=ZA=+—H
As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
R-ZE-NEF RZE—tF R-T—XRF
=A=t+-—~H —A=+—H mA—AH
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L= BETT BETT BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&)
(Note 2(b )(|||)) (Note 2(b)(iii)
(P E2(b) i) ) (B EE2(b) i) )
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Deferred taxation EERA 30 547 1,816 2,224
Bonds 5 31 619,180 438,223 366,830
619,727 440,039 369,054
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B 5 R HIE 25 19,085 135,197 274,924
Accruals and other payables FEETFRIE R E A
J& 1508 26 108,831 167,474 49,754
Bank borrowings RITEE 27 29,477 32,818
Current income tax liabilities BIEFER AR 1,009 1,977 211
Bonds 5 31 591 1,004 =
158,993 338,470 324,889
Total liabilities EE4E 778,720 778,509 693,943
Total equity and ERkEERE
liabilities 1,371,502 1,391,626 1,057,058

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 253 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8

November 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Kwok Leung
=ER
Director

EZE

The notes on pages 108 to 253 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

WHTIIEERKREE

Huang Guobiao
=EERE
Director

EF

BEZ &
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SRR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ—F

—NE=ZA=t—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRREEARR
Share- fair value
based Investment  through other Non-
Share Treasury Share payment Other Merger Statutory valuation  comprehensive Exchange  Accumulated controling Total
capital s premium resene fesenies resene fesenes fesenie  income resenve fesene Josses Totdl intrests equity
RATEER
BB fitilis
RE  ERRG  ROEE  ZRERE  HRBE  ANBE ieER EXRE  ZnER 48 e BagE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BRI BBTRL #ETR E¥Tn BMTR ERTn BT AT ERTr BETR EETn BB
(Note (3]) (Note (b)) (Note (c) (Note (d))
(Fita)  (BE0)  (BEQ) (W)
At 1 April 2016, R-E-AEBA-A
as previously reported iR 62174 (5370) 764306 6,440 (216412) 348 26 (30,224) - 3940 (223,906) 384432 (3,09) 381336
Impact of HKFRS 9 FENRRE RN
[Note 26 ¥R (000 . : = = = . B /TR ] - sy s - s
At 1 April 2016, as restated R-B-AEME-B
83 62174 (5370) 764,306 6,440 (216412) 348 26 = (302249) 390 (a2121) 366,211 (3,09) 363115
Profitloss)for the year, as restated i/ (i)
‘Z@ s o = = = = = = = > 95,188 95,188 (2.616) 9251
Other comprehensive (loss)/income 22 (58) /WA
Exchange differences arising AREhERELY
on trandlaton of foreign EizE
aperations - - - - - - = = = (21,038) = (21,038) 3690 (17,348)
Loss on n far value changes of RATERBED
financil assts at fai 2ERETIEZ
value thiough other SREEIDTE
comprehensie income 2EER - - - - - - - - 229 - - (229 - 29
Total other comprehensive (expense)iincome  £f27 (B%) /KAZE - - - - - - - - 229 (21,038) - 3,330 3690 (19,640)
Total comprehensive ERERA/ ()88
income/(expense) for the year - - - - - - - - 229 (21,038) 95,188 71,858 1,074 72932
Transactions with owners and others R§E AZQE&M
Vesting of shares of share A
award scheme (Note 290) RARET (i) - 5370 - (5370) - - - - - - - - - -
Placement of new shares RENRH (Hiks)
(Note 28) 13333 - 160,000 - - - - - - - - 17333 - 173333
Expenses incurted for issue of FERELIRAFELLAR
shares by way of placing - - (7.800) - - - - - - - - (7.800) - (7,800
Recogniton of equity-setted ENRERED
share-based payments (Note 29(3) RHARA 230
(Ft29) = = = 12,186 = - = = = = = 12,186 = 12,186
Forfeitof share options (Note 29(a)) m&’bﬂﬂ ( ﬁ‘m( ) - - - 85) - - - - - = 85 - = -
Lapse of non-listed warrants i - - - (1,084) - - - - - - 1,084 - - -
Dividend paid to Bff#tERRS
non-controling interest - - - - - - - - - - - - (649) (649
Total transactions with BREAZRARANES
owners and others 13333 5310 152,200 5,647 = - = - - - 1,169 1mny (649) 177000
AL 31 March 2017, 2 restated Ro8-t%
Zh=t-A &) 75,507 = 916,506 12,087 216,412) 348 26 = (32516) 2902 (145,770) 615,788 @6m) 613117
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & & & £ E AR QA
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ERREBHRE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE—_Z—-NF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADARAARE
Share- Fair value
based through other Non-
Share Treasury Share payment Other Merger Statutory hensi Exchange lated controlling Total
capital shares premium reserve reserves reserve Teserves  income reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
RATERE
£ft2E
HRARA KE5E FRHE

BE ER BftEE  2REER AR SRR EERE A 1 | EifiE  BHER 85 5] LiE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BT BT 8T BT BT A¥fr  EMTR BT E8TT 8T BT E¥TRT 8T

(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (d))
(Wia)  (WE6)  (RdQ) (W)

A1 April 2017, Ho§-tEmA-E-
as restated 85 15,507 - 916,506 12,087 (216412) 3248 26 (32516) 2902 (145,770) 615,788 (2671) 613,117
Loss forthe year EpEE = = = = = = = = = (199630)  (199,630) (118 (00811)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) 22EKA/ (B%)
Exchange differences arsing BERN2RELL
on trandlation of foreign ENZE
operations = = = = = = = = 26,400 = 26,400 35 26756
Changes in fair value of financial assets
fair value through
other comprehensiv income Aqﬂﬁflﬂ’é? ] - = = = = = = 4635 = - 4635 - 4635

Transfer relating to financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
disposed of during the year

- = = = - - - 24960 = (24,960) - - -

Total other comprehensive Efe2EhE/

income/(expense) (Bx)48 - - - - - - - 29595 26,400 (24,960) 31,035 356 31,391
Total comprehensive income/ ERRERL/

(expense) for the year (R%)88 - - - - - - - 29,595 26,400 (224,590) (168,595) (625) (169,420)
Transactions with owners and others ﬁﬂﬁkm%&ﬁ%
Placement of new shares (Note 26) 14172 - 134629 - - - - - - - 148,801 - 148801
Expenses incurted for issue of

shares by way of placing = = (1.716) = = = = = = = (1,716) = (1.716)
Capital contribution from UE

anon-controlling sharefolder - - - - - - - - - - - 2,000 2,000
Forfeit of share options (Note 29() BRERN (Hi6) - - - (1) - - - - - b3 - - -
Total transactions with owners BREAZRARANAE

and others 11m = 132913 (18) = = © o = ) 147,085 2,000 149,085
At 31 March 2018 R-B-NEZR=1-R 89,679 - 1,049,419 12,009 (216,412) 348 26 2921) 29302 (370,282) 594,278 (1.496) 592,782

The notes on pages 108 to 253 are an integral part of these SE108E Z5253H 2 Wit A% SHRA MR
consolidated financial statements. KER—HMH-

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted CRREREBRAR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

nv-_l—\
For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—

Note:

(a)

(d)

SREBBHRE

—NE=ZA=t—HLEE

Other reserve mainly represent the difference of approximately a debit of
HK$221,862,000 (2017: a debit of HK$221,862,000) between the amounts paid or
received from transactions related to the changes of shareholdings in subsidiaries
without the loss of control and the non-controlling interests being acquired
or disposed of and the capital contributions from substantial shareholders of
approximately a credit of HK$5,450,000 (2017: a credit of HK$5,450,000).

Merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate of the nominal
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group re-
organisation completed on 26 October 2002 over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange there for.

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations governing foreign investment
enterprise established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and the articles
of association of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group, the subsidiaries are required
to transfer an amount of their profit after taxation to the statutory reserve fund,
until the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
statutory reserve fund may be distributed to equity owners in the form of bonus
issue.

Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve represents accumulated fair
value changes of equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income as at the end of each reporting period.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \« REREEEERA
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—+&E— \FHEEHE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IE%/}ILE%:Z

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

n‘/T\

2018 2017
—E-N\E T—LF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BET T BT
(Restated)
(R2&E5)
Cash flows from operating RERETHZ2HERE
activities
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrBAT (E5HR) i A (201,657) 94,215
Adjustments for: EE
Interest income FLE WA 11 61) (106)
Interest expenses FEMXE 11 53,009 38,367
Depreciation, depletion and e EEREH
amortisation 7 24,129 22,996
Allowance for credit losses of trade B 5 U k18 2
receivables FEEERE 3(a)(ii) 38,040 18,156
Allowance for credit losses of loans EWE R 2 ZEFEBEE
receivable 3(a)(ii) 21,024 9,225
Impairment losses on prepayments, JEAI B - & R H AR
deposits and other receivables FIA 2 HEEE 6 13,771 4,264
Impairment losses on property, M WE KR
plant and equipment 2R EEE 6 60,610 -
Impairment losses on intangible mEEEZRERBRE
assets 6 99,241 -
Changes in fair value of financial BRATEER T?\@JEEZ
assets at fair value through profit & REEZ AFEE
or loss 6 (18,722) (109)
Write back of consideration FERR B 2 B 5%
payables 6 (5,900) -
Gain on deregistration of —EB ARz
a subsidiary BB RS 32 - (2,222)
Gains on disposals of property, HEWE BERE&EEZ
plant and equipment Was 6 - (40)
Share-based payments LARR 17 2 1+ 2 3RIR 8 - 12,186
Operating cash flows before LEEEHRIZ
movements in working capital KEEE RS 83,484 196,932
Changes in working capital: 'L'E_'.'L%%H@ﬁ
Decrease/(increase) in inventories R, () 1,208 (343)
Increase in trade receivables éf%}f”&mléii* hn (151,321) (99,470)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, JFERUE 2 K HAbfEUR
deposits and other receivables IR A () 17,023 (104,478)
Decrease/(increase) in loans EREZRD, ()
receivable 16,079 (102,021)
(Increase)/decrease in financial BATEBEAEBRIE
assets at fair value through SREE (M), R
profit or loss (27,793) 510
Decrease in trade payables 2 5 EM IR (110,212) (136,837)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals FE T SR IE K H M FE S 3R I8
and other payables ()JESZ’J ),/ (58,643) 114,573
Increase in client trust bank B ERITEHREN
balances (354) (5,056)
Cash used in operations KREXBRAZR® (230,529) (136,190)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBRIEH (2,910) (149)
Net cash used in operating RETBHFMAZEESTE
activities (233,439) (136,339)

Tou Rong Chang Fu

Group Lim tec &b
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

|\I-_|_\ }EEUWE%

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE_-Z

—NE=ZA=t—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F T—LF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E BET T BT
(Restated)
(rr=E7)
Cash flows from investing RERETHZHRERE
activities
Purchase of property, plant BEWME WFENEH
and equipment (3,706) (6,375)
Interest received 2R & 61 106
Proceeds from disposals of HERATEERBEM
financial assets at fair value 2HEKRYEREZ
through other comprehensive EREEZFTEHRIE
income 29,797 =
Purchase of an intangible asset BEREEE (500) =
Proceeds from disposals of property, &% M= M REE
plant and equipment IA - 261
Purchase of a financial asset LlﬁZE%?ZiQ:HELL,H\m
at fair value through other HEU TR
comprehensive income cTREE - (5,000)
Net cash outflow arising on WENBAREE S
acquisition of subsidiaries RE L FEE 33 - (7,898)
Net cash generated from/ BREZBME
(used in) investing activities (FFA)BEEHE 25,652 (18,906)
Cash flows from financing REBMETBHZRERE
activities
Net proceeds from placement of B & ¥ AR 0 T 15 SR IEF 58
new shares 28(a) 148,801 173,333
Expenses incurred for issue of BRRERITRMDAEEZ
shares by way of placing Xz 28(a) (1,716) (7,800)
Net proceeds from issuance BITESERIEFE
of bonds 31 170,110 62,455
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITEE (3,341) (2,458)
Repayment of bonds EERF (6,000) =
Capital contribution from a RE—BIFERBKREZEE
non-controlling shareholder 2,000 =
Interest paid [EENEES) (36,575) (28,425)
Proceeds from bank borrowings ﬁifﬂﬁgﬁﬂgﬁ’ﬂ - 35,000
Dividend paid to non-controlling BT SR M s 2 AR
interests = (649)
Net cash generated from RMETBHMEZEELTFE
financing activities 273,279 231,456
Net increase in cash and ReRkBAESEE
cash equivalents 18 B g nFEEE 65,492 76,211
Cash and cash equivalents FYERERE2EEER
at beginning of the year 278,866 208,168
Effect of foreign exchange rate JMNESEREE o &
changes 4,565 (5,513)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEHEER
at end of the year 24 348,923 278,866

Tou Rong Chang Fu G \Oup mw[ed
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(a)

(b)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘l-_r\ IE;%/}“;E%

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HE—ZT—N\F=A=+—HIEFE

Liabilities from financing activities: (a) REETHEME:
Bank
borrowings Bonds Total
RITEE &% st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+tFWMA—H 32,818 439,227 472,045
Financing cash flows F®ERESRE
Issuance of bonds BITES - 170,110 170,110
Repayment of bonds BERES - (6,000) (6,000)
Repayments of bank BRRITEE
borrowings (3,341) - (3,341)
Interest paid B A FILE (751) (35,824) (36,575)
(4,092) 128,286 124,194
Other changes Hit 5
— Interest expenses —FERZ (FEE11)
(Note 11) 751 52,258 53,009
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-NF=ZR=+—H 29,477 619,771 649,248
Major non-cash transactions (b) EXRFRERS
During the year ended 31 March 2018, deposit paid in previous REBEZZ—\F=ZA=+—RHILFE

years for acquisition of equity interest of an investee which
is included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
amounting to HK$27,571,000 is reclassified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss upon the completion of the
acquisition of equity interest of the investee.

The notes on pages 108 to 253 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 1% &

m maﬂfiiﬁﬁtuﬁzﬁﬁ BRI E A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

1

BRI

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and 21st Floor, 80 Gloucester Road,

Wan Chai, Hong Kong, respectively.

The trading of ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange has been suspended since 3 July 2018 due to, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Company fails to
publish the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018 and the despatch of annual report of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2018 within the time limit pursuant to
the Listing Rule.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are trading of commodities
and chemical products, property investment, money lending
business, securities brokerage, asset management, insurance
brokerage and the exploitation and sale of crude oil.

The Company’s functional currency is the United Stated
dollars (“US$"). However, the presentation currency of the
consolidated financial statements is Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$")
as the directors of the Company consider that HK$ is the most
appropriate presentation currency in view of its place of listing.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Thousands of Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise
stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @ R ZEEHR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation

0}

(i)

Compliance with HKFRSs and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“HKCO") Cap.
622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

(i)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @R EEEHR A
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—

New standard and amendments to existing
standards adopted/early adopted in the current
year:

Standards Subject

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to Annual improvements
HKFRS 12 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the adoption of the new
standards and the amendments to standards did not
have any material impact on the preparation of the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The Group has elected to early adopt HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” in current financial year. The
Group has applied the standard retrospectively. See
Note 2(b)(iii) for further details on the impact of the

change in accounting policy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(i)

New standard and amendments to existing
standards adopted/early adopted in the current
year: (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments
require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in
financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in
cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control
of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in
fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in note (b) of
consolidated statement of cash flows. Consistent
with the transition provisions of the amendments,
the Group has not disclosed comparative information
for the prior year. Apart from the additional
disclosure in note (b) of consolidated statement of
cash flows, the application of these amendments has
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued)

(i)  New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations have been issued

(&)

(i) EEMEERELR 5 A2
BIERP 2 HERIRER 2

2 FTESTHHBEEE (&)

(b) EFfBHRRHKEEN 2D

but are not effective and have not been early HES
adopted
Effective for annual
periods beginning
Standards Subject on or after Note
RUT B8R
ZERRZ
bl HH FEHBEN fitst
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 (a)

BRMBREREF 5%

HKFRS 16
BAMBRERAE16%

HKFRS 17
BAMBERERAE17H

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

BE (ERMBRERE
ZEg) -2EBFL%

HK (IFRIC)-Int 23

BE (AR BRERE
Z89) —RBFE3R%

Amendments to HKFRS 2

BB LR EH
BT

Amendments to HKFRS 3

B A # ke

Leases
ME

Insurance Contracts

RREH

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

NEZZREMKE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

1S TR T2 2 THETE 14

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

RN XN 2R B2 A BRHE

Definition of a Business

BEBMBREEAEINR . EBIER
{ERTAR
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \x MEREEEERAR
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1 January 2019
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1 January 2021
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—_=

1 January 2018
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1 January 2019
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1 January 2018
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1 January 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(i)  New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective and have not been early

B R AR M EE

2 EE;ZE n-I_JBIﬁWZZ (,.,‘

(b) EFfERRRHKEERN 22D

B AEAE 5 7K 2 AR 1] 7K 48
BIERP 2 HERIRER 2 &
HENE )

adopted (Continued)

Standards

%R

Subject

BH

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after Note
RUT R

ZEHBZ

FEHELEN Bz

Amendments to HKFRS 4

BREVBMELNFAFR 2
EHEN

Amendments to HKFRS 9

BEMBRMELFIR 2
{BETA

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

ERUBRELIEI0%RR
BEAGERFE28R
EHEN

Amendments to HKFRS 15
EBMBREEAEIHEL
EHE

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

ERGHRAEIRREAS
FHERIESH 2 BRI AR

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

EREEMBRERIEFEMIAR
ERMBRSENRIRRBRED

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

ABERBECRNEE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

REEREABERALGERAIZHANEE
HEKZA

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
BB BREENEISH BB

Amendments to Definition of “Material”

[EAM] ZERZEFA

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
Annual Report 2017-18 =&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FTESTHTHBEHEE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and (b) EFBEREEER 2S5
disclosures (Continued) (##)
(i)  New standards, amendments to existing (i) E BB REMR AL
standards and interpretations have been issued BRPZFERIRER Z 15
but are not effective and have not been early HE ¢ )

adopted (Continued)

Effective for annual
periods beginning

Standards Subject on or after Note
RUT A
P3P

b3l BH FEABEN i3

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits: Plan Amendment, 1 January 2019

Curtailment or Settlement
BRGHERFE199% EERM: BB RRk A —T—F—H—H
{ERTA

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2018
2014-2016 Cycle

BB ERE8R ERBEBMBRERN -2 —NFE —EZ-N¥—-HA—H

CHES 5= /\iﬂﬁ;ﬁirﬂﬁuﬁz—*ﬁ
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in an Associate or Joint 1 January 2019

Venture

BB ERE28R REEERAIEEERAl 2 KRR —Z-hF—HR—H

{ERTA
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property 1 January 2018
BB EEAFE405% 2 BERENE —Z-\¥—-A—H

{EFTA
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
BRI BHREL 2 ERIR —hEE_T+FRBrEELE —E-hE—HR—H
The Group is assessing the impacts of these new AEBEETEZENE
standards, amendments to existing standards and A - IRBER REREZEE]
interpretations and will apply them once they are i~ 7%= N 9 N I
effective. LAFER -

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \« MEEEEARAR
Annual Report 2017-18 = —NEFERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(i)

New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective and have not been early
adopted (Continued)

Note (a):

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Nature of change

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued
a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace
HKAS 18 which covers contracts for goods and services and HKAS 11
which covers construction contracts and the related literature. The
new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised
when control of a good or service transfers to a customer. The
standard permits either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

Impact

The management has assessed the effects of applying the new
standard on the Group's consolidated financial statements and does
not expect a significant impact on the recognition of revenue.

Date of adoption by the Group

This standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2018. The Group intends to adopt the standard
using the modified retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised in accumulated
losses as of 1 April 2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited #
Annual Report 2017-18 =&

IIVT\

BRI R AR M

FESTTHERE (&)

(b) EFfERRRHKEERN 22D

(&

(i)

B AEAE 5 7K 2 AR 1] 7K 48
BIERP 2 HERIRER 2 &
HENE )

Ff 5% (a)

ERMBEREEAEISHK[FFEN
Uy 3 |

KEZHE

FE G AR R TERRE 2 ¥
Al R E B F AR 185 OF
BRBEBRBZED) REBGEA
FNHROCREREARRMEAXE) -
I AR A THAR I B B R AR S 2 R
WERTEPE RS RATE
e SRR AR HRRENRAZEE
BAS e BB IE

7
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EEEEAH AR

WRRBER=F-NF—-A—-BAE
5l 86 2 B IR 52 38 1) A 20 o A SR BRI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n‘/T\

2

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(i)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 1% @& & %
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—

New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective and have not been early
adopted (Continued)

Note (b):
HKFRS 16, “Leases”
Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost all
leases being recognised on the statement of financial position of a
lessee, as the distinction between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The
only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting
for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's
operating leases (as lessee). As at the reporting date, the Group
has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$10,964,000. The Group estimates that the impact on the
amount for short-term or low value leases is immaterial. The Group
has not yet assessed what other adjustments, if any, are necessary
for example because of the change in the definition of the lease
term and the different treatment of variable lease payments and of
extension and termination options. It is therefore not yet possible to
estimate the amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities that
will have to be recognised on adoption of the new standard and how
this may affect the Group’s profit or loss and classification of cash
flows going forward.

Date of adoption by the Group

This standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date. The Group intends
to apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

Apart from aforementioned HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 16, the Board
of Directors (“Board”) are in the process of assessing the financial
impact of the adoption of the above new standards, amendments to
existing standard and interpretations. The Board will adopt the new
standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretations
when they become effective.

SRR AR

E-N\FEERE

2 E\EREE-I_JBZ *E%;( E
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(&)

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR M EE

2 ERE EI-I_EKAF%WZZ(/E

IIVT\

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and (b) EFBEREEER 2S5
disclosures (Continued) (&)
(iii) Change in accounting policy (i) EFHEEE

As explained in Note 2 (b)(i) above, the Group has
early adopted HKFRS 9, which resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
The Group has applied the standard retrospectively
and restated the comparative figures. The date of
initial application of HKFRS 9 is 1 April 2017. The
assessment of the Group’s business model was
1 April
2017, and then applied retrospectively to those
financial assets that were not derecognised before
1 April 2017. HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” (“HKAS 39") that relate to the
recognition, classification and measurement of

made as of the date of initial application,

o b S EE2(0) () AT
B AEBCRFRMAEE
B 75 s R o5 g
HEFBREH R YGREY
BRRERSBEIRHE - K
SEDEPERAZERANNE
FILL BT - BEMBHE
ZHLORY T A B

—tEFMA—H K&
BEBEAZFHETINER
FERARH-_T—+tFmA—
A{Ed H%B—\iriﬁ_‘?ﬁ)%ﬁ’%ﬁﬁﬁé
ZER_F—LFWOA—
= ﬁuﬂﬂi%\%iﬁﬁﬁ?&Z%%ﬁi
BE -FEVWBHREENS

financial assets and financial liabilities; derecognition ORENR B G T 2ERIZE39
of financial instruments; impairment of financial i f%%ﬂlﬂ‘ﬁﬁm T2
assets and hedge accounting. HKFRS 9 also (IBEBGFTERE39%])
significantly amends other standards dealing with ﬁ%@%vﬁé?&% MEE

financial instruments such as HKFRS 7 “Financial

Instruments: Disclosures”.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
Annual Report 2017-18 =% —

MER DEKTE o/
TAKRILER REEM
BEREPE u+ BRI
& 7S B 75 S 2E R B 95 I
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SR EEEEARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 EEREE-I_JBZ *E%R(ﬂg

(b) Changes in accounting policies and (b) EFBERREEER 2S5
disclosures (Continued) (&)

B BEEE (&)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued) (iii)

118

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \« BEREEEBRAR
Annual Report 2017-18 — —NEFERE

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

The Group elected to present changes in
the fair value of all its equity investments
(previously classified as available-for-sale
investments and re-measured at fair value at
each reporting date) in other comprehensive
income as they are long-term and strategic
investments. As a result, available-for-
sale investments with aggregated fair
value of approximately HK$24,533,000
and HK$29,241,000 were reclassified to
financial assets at FVTOCI on 1 April 2016
and 31 March 2017, respectively. Other
than the change in the classification of
equity investments, the classification of
other financial assets and liabilities remained
unchanged.

Gains or losses realised in the sale of the
financial assets at FVTOCI will no longer be
transferred to profits or loss on sale, but
instead be transferred from FVTOCI reserve
to accumulated losses. During the year ended
31 March 2018, the Group disposed of a
financial asset at FVTOCI at a consideration of
HK$29,797,000. Upon disposal, the related
investment revaluation reserve was debited by
approximately HK$24,960,000 and transferred
to accumulated losses.

i B TAZ D BERE

E
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K 75 #29,241,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued)

il.

Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit
loss (“ECL") model, as opposed to an incurred
credit loss model under HKAS 39. The ECL
model requires an entity to account for ECL
and changes in those ECL at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

In other words, it is no

In the current year, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL
using lifetime ECL for trade receivables. To
measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
grouped based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
Annual Report 2017-18 =% —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued)

il.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @R EEEHR A
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans receivables, the ECL is based on
the 12-month ECL unless there has been
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. The 12-month ECL is the
portion of lifetime ECLs that results from
default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. The Group categorises its
loans receivable into three categories which
reflect their credit risk and assesses the ECL
for each of those categories. A summary of
the assumptions underpinning the Group's
expected credit loss model is explained in Note

3 (a)ii).

Allowance for credit losses for other financial
assets at amortised cost, which mainly
comprise of deposits and other receivables and
cash and bank balances are measured based
on 12-month ECL basis and there have no
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

tE-\FEEHRSE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued)

e IR R AR B A

2 EE;ZE n‘|’BZﬁ$E%;< (,.,‘

iii.  The effect of early adoption of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrate the classification
and measurement of financial assets and other
items subject of ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS
39 as at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2016.

(b) EFfERRRHKEERN 22D

(&)

(iii) BEBFEEE (&)

iii.  IERERNE B
LR FoGE >

TREFIN T —+
F=A=+—HEZ
T—RFEMA—BIR
BEEEMBREER
FIRREEGTER
FEIV R mREREE
EREeBEENEM
HEMDERFE-

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-Z-—tFZA=+-HLFE

As previously Restated
reported under under
HKAS 39 Reclassification Adjustments HKFRS 9
RERE
&8 REBBHRE
395 BEER
KA25 BN E AE HEIKES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT BETT
Consolidated income  #RAWER
statement
Other losses, net HipEE 58 (5,622) 4,809 - (813)
Allowance for credit ZHEBREZ
losses on trade FEEEER
receivables - - (18,156) (18,156)
Allowance for credit BUREHRZEE
losses on loans BiRARE
receivable - (4,809) (4,416) (9,225)
Profit for the year FEREF 115,144 - (22,572) 92,572
Profit for the year i NUNGIE SN 3
attributable to FREF
owners
of the Company 117,760 - (22,572) 95,188
Earnings per share, BREAREERR
basic and diluted (1)
(HK cents) 1.57 - (0.30) 1.27
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @t R EEEHR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEESTHEREEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and (b) EFBEREEER 2S5
disclosures (Continued) (%)
(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued) (i) B BEEE (&)
ii.  The effect of early adoption of HKFRS 9 ii.  1ERERANEEYER
(Continued) TR EIN R E
(#&)
As at As at
31 March 2017 1 April 2017
as previously restated
reported under
under HKAS 39 Reclassification Adjustments HKFRS 9
R=B—t%&
SHEr=[ R-B—t&
REEE A—H
B ER BRERERK
395 BEER
V2] BNOE AE ELL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT BETT BETT AETT

Consolidated statement 47 & BI#i R &
of financial position

Trade receivables & 5 RKE 446,441 - (34,704) 411,737
Loans receivable R E R 117,125 - (6,089) 111,036
Other financial asset: ~ Ht&REE:
— available-for-sale — A ERE
investments (non- (€0
current) 29,241 (29,241) - -
~ held-for-trading ~HEEERE
investments (n#)
(current) 256 (256) = =
Financial assets at BERTEEBEM
FvTOC! 2EKERIIEZ
SREE - 29,241 - 29,241
Financial assets at FVIPL AT EZEBELR
FIfR 2 ©EEE - 256 - 256
Accumulated losses ZEE#R (104,977) - (40,793) (145,770)
1 22 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t &= £ EHR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR B A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEESTHEUE &
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and (b) EFBEREEER 2S5
disclosures (Continued) (#)
(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued) (i) B BEEE (&)
ii.  The effect of early adoption of HKFRS 9 ii.  1ERERANE BN ER
(Continued) HERIEQYE T &
(#&)
As at As at
31 March 2016 1 April 2016
as previously restated
reported under
under HKAS 39 Reclassification Adjustments HKFRS 9
RoB-A%
ZA=t-H
0% A R=B-R%§
REEE A-H
B ER BRERERK
393 BEER
27 BNOE AE ELLA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT T BB T BT

Consolidated statement 434 BF ik &
of financial position

Trade receivables B HREKIE 348,020 - (16,548) 331,472
Loans receivable e E R 19,913 - (1,673) 18,240
Other financial asset: Ht&aEE GERD) :
- available-forsale  —A[fHHERE

investments ()

(non-current) 24,533 (24,533) - -
~ held-for-trading ~HEEERE

investments (current) (i) 147 (147) = =
Financial assets at BRATERBEM

FvTOC! 2EMEHRTIEZ

SREE - 24,533 - 24,533

Derivative financial ~ T4 &R EE

assets 510 (510) - -
Financial assets at BRATERBES

FVTPL SR e REE - 657 - 657
Accumulated losses ~ ZiTE IR (223,906) - (18,221) (242,127)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @t R EEEHR A A
Annual Report 2017-18 —ZT—+Z— \FFERE 1 23



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued)
iv. Total impact on the Group’s retained earnings

as at 1 April 2017 and 1 April 2016 is as
follows:

(b)

2 FESHBEME (@)

ERBRERRBEENZEE

(&)

(iii) BEBEEE (&)

WAEFR -—F—+
FUA—AR=F
—NEMA—ARE
BT EREEES T
2

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-XEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Accumulated losses RIBEBETHER
31 March under EIFFEZ
HKAS 39 =HA=+—8”
REtEE (104,977) (223,906)
Increase in allowance for BZEWKZEZ 2 E
credit losses on trade B tE R 5 3L AN
receivables (34,704) (16,548)
Increase in allowance for EUWERZEEEE
credit losses on loans B IE N
receivable (6,089) (1,673)
Opening accumulated 1RIEE B 8 1 3 & % Al
losses 1 April under FORHEZNA—H
HKFRS 9 FHNRFER (145,770) (242,127)
1 24 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & & & £ E AR QA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

IIVT\

BRI R AR M

2 EE;ZE n‘|‘BIﬁ*E%;< (HE

(b) EFfERRRHKEERN 22D

(48)
(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued) (i) B BEEE (&)

iv.  Total impact on the Group’s retained earnings v. HAEEER=-F—
as at 1 April 2017 and 1 April 2016 is as FHMA—HAE=-F
follows: (Continued) —NFNA—HRE

B 2R T
L ONSERE )]
Adjustment made to line items in the H_T—tFREH
consolidated income statement and the Bz iR e WEm K kiR
consolidated statement of comprehensive E2HERERAEIE
income for the 2017 reporting period relate BEH 2 FHE Ty
to: TIEBEE@:
2017
—E—tE
HK$'000
BT T
Increase in allowance for credit losses on 2 5 JEWFIE 2 E EE#E
trade receivables RIS N (18,156)
Increase in allowance for credit losses on  JEWE R ZZEEE
loans receivable BEgm (9,225)
Reclassification of other losses, net to ENOBEMEERFES
allowance for credit loss on loans BHEEKRERZ
receivable FEBERE 4,809
Decrease of operating profit and FRLE R KRR D>
profit for the year (22,572)
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @t R EEEHR A A

Annual Report 2017-18 =% —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued)

iv. Total impact on the Group’s retained earnings
as at 1 April 2017 and 1 April 2016 is as
follows: (Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the
ending provision for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 39 to the opening loss allowances
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9:

2 EEREE-I_JBZ *E%R(I:&EE

(b) EFfBHRRHKEEN 2D
(&)

(iii) BEBEEE (&)

. HEERR-F—
FUA—AR=F
—NFMA—HRE
BT EREEES T
o (4)

TERBINREERS
STERIE3RE R
HRBEREERE
BRMBHRELRF
SREE 2 BB R R

28R
Trade Loans
receivables receivable Total
B 5 EWRRE EWER Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEF T BT
Provision for impairment at RZZE—RF
31 March 2016 =HB=+—H
under HKAS 39 BREEB S
F39R R ZMERE 11,723 = 11,723
Additional credit losses ERERBEIMSEEE
recognised 16,548 1,673 18,221
Loss allowances at R-ZZE—R"FEMNA—H
1 April 2016 RBEBE B B RS LR
under HKFRS 9 FORET 2 BEEE 28,271 1,673 29,944
Trade Loans
receivables receivable Total
B 5 ERRE EWER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT
Provision for impairment at 31 RZZT—+4F
March 2017 under HKAS 39 =B=+—H
REEEGER
F39R R MERE 10,139 4,809 14,948
Additional credit losses BREREIMEEEIE
recognised 34,704 6,089 40,793
Loss allowances at 1 April 2017 R=Z—tFMA—H
under HKFRS 9 RIER B @& &R
FORETE 2 BERE 44,843 10,898 55,741
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued)

v.

Total impact on the Group’s retained earnings
as at 1 April 2017 and 1 April 2016 is as
follows: (Continued)

Classification and measurement

On 1 April 2017, the Group's management
has assessed which business models applied
to the financial assets held by the Group and
has classified its financial instruments into the
appropriate HKFRS 9 categories. The main
effects resulting from this reclassification are as
follows:

e ISR R MR
2 FEESTHEREEE @)

(b) ESfEHRRHBER 22

(&)
(iii) BEBEEE (&)

iv. HEAEFER-F—+
FHA—HARE -ZF
—NFOA—HRE
BT P ZEARBE S T
VINRE )]
DENEFE
RZE—tFMHA—

B AEEEEED
AR R SR E
ARAKERFEEZ
ERMEE YCOHE
EMTADBERER
TS ERIEIR 2
BERR - WEH D
BELZITEREMN

T
Other
financial
FVTPL FVTOCI assets
RAFHEEBR
BATVEES Ht2 |
BRIE W#slEE HthemEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial assets CREE BETIT BETT BETT
Closing balance —E—+tF
31 March 2017 - =A=t+-8%2
As previously reported FRE—MER
under HKAS39 REEBETER
#E39R 2R - - 29,497
Reclassify investment from  #REmEMSREE
other financial assets (FIEEERE)
(held-to-trading ENHPBERATE
investments) to FVTPL FERERTIR 256 - (256)
Reclassify investment BIREREMEREE
from other financial (THEERE)
assets (available-for-sale ENNBERATE
investments) to FVTOCI BREMEEKE
5Il8& - 29,241 (29,241)
Opening balance “E2-tFOMA-RAZ
1 April 2017 - FHOHEB-RERE
under HKFRS 9 B 3R 5 2E B 5595

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited

256 29,241 -

CRREREERAT]
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—+Z— \FFEHRE



128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued)

2 FTESTHHBEEE (&)

(b) EBRRBRBENZET
(80

(iii) BEBEEE (&)

iv.  Total impact on the Group’s retained earnings v. HAEEER=-F—
as at 1 April 2017 and 1 April 2016 is as FUA—AR=F
follows: (Continued) —NFHA—ARE

Bz ZERE R T
o (4)
The following are items have been restated, NTEEBHERS
arising from the retrospective application of 7B B S ER 5 AR BN SB 95
HKFRS 9: mEE5MIEE :
Financial Financial Derivative Other
assets at assets at financial financial
FVTPL FVTOCI assets assets
BATEEBR
BATEER Htt2HEWKE
BRIEZ 7} A T4 Hith
SREE SREE SRMEE SREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT ok BT
Closing balance —Z—XxF=H
31 March 2016 =+-—HER&H
- As previously —MERIBEEE
reported under &5 ER|HE39%% 2K
HKAS39 - - 510 24,680
Reclassify BIREHE M REE
investment from (F{EEERE) EF
other financial HDBERRTEER
assets (held- B iR
for-trading
investments) to
FVTPL 147 - - (147)
Reclassify BREBRITEEREE
investment ENHPBERATE
from derivative & iB1E#5IER
financial assets
to FVTPL 510 - (510) -
Reclassify BRABEMEREE
investment (FEEERE)EH
from other DBEERRNTEER
financial assets ~ Efh 2 E K 5IER
(available-for-sale
investments) to
FVTOCI - 24,533 - (24,533)
Opening balance —Z—XFMA—H
1 April 2016 F#E

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \« BEREEEBRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued)

v.

Total impact on the Group’s retained earnings
as at 1 April 2017 and 1 April 2016 is as

follows: (Continued)

e R ERR M

2 ERE EI-I_EKAF%WZZ(/E

(b) EFFHEERBEEER 22
(&)
(iii) BEBFEEE (&)

iv. HAREFER -F—
FHA—AR-ZF

—NFNA—ARE
B Z BB

wm (s
The impact of these changes on the Group's ZEEEBHANEEE
equity is as follows: w2 BN
Effect on
investment Effect on Effect on
valuation FVTOCI accumulated
reserves reserves losses
BAFE
BEBHEAM
HEEME 2EKREIE YR
Bz g fREzyE BEzHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT T BT T
Closing balance 31 March —Z—t&=§
2017 - As previously S+-HZER
reported under iEeh— WL RTRIE
HKAS39 FHEEEL
EELLAE ] (32,516) - (104,977)
Increase in allowance for EHRWBAEZEE
credit losses on trade EEREEM
receivables - - (34,704)
Increase in allowance for ~ EWERZEEERE
credit losses on loans BAEE M
receivable - - (6,089)
Reclassify non-trading BEMEREEZ
equities from other FRIEREFTHE
financial assets to FVTOCI ~ ZEAFEBBEMD
2HEKRETIR 32,516 (32,516) -
Opening balance 1 April —Z—t&MA—-HZ
2017 - under HKFRS 9 FREHR-REBRHE
B 3R 5 22 B 55 95% - (32,516) (145,770)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(iii) Change in accounting policy (Continued)
iv. Total impact on the Group’s retained earnings

as at 1 April 2017 and 1 April 2016 is as
follows: (Continued)

The impact of these changes on the Group’s

2 FTESTHHBEEE (&)

(b) EBRRBRBENZET
(80

(iii) BEBEEE (&)

. HEERR-F—
FUA—AR=F
—NFMA—HRE
BT EREEES T
o (4)

ZEEHHAEE

equity is as follows: (Continued) Bamzew B80T :
(#®)
Effect on
investment Effect on Effect on
valuation FVTOCI accumulated
reserves reserves losses
HERATE
HEE BEBRHMEE R
HERHE Wy %= 51 B [}
-2 HEzyE ZEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BETT
Closing balance 31 March —Z—xF=8
2016 - As previously =t+-AZEX
reported under iEEh— W AR IR
HKAS39 ARG ER
#3952 (30,224) - (223,906)
Increase in allowance for BHRKFIBZEE
credit losses on trade R EL N
receivables - = (16,548)
Increase in allowance for REERZEEER
credit losses on loans B A1 N
receivable - - (1,673)
Reclassify non-trading BEMEMEEZ
equities from other 3??&%%%@%%%@
financial assets to FVTOCI ATEFEBEAM
EEH& 551 B 30,224 (30,224) -
Opening balance 1 April —R"FEMA-HZ
2016 - under HKFRS 9 FO&EB-REFE
B IS 3R &5 2E B 55 95% - (30,224) (242,127)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries

0}

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the

n‘/T\

B R AR M EE

2 ERE nfﬁﬁlﬁmﬁ(,%

() FELRF

(i) #&&

MERRDAEEHEGE
%H%E’JE:%SL (BEAEBLE

B EAEEE2EAH

f‘%mﬂﬁﬁ—lm‘@fpﬁﬁkﬁgﬂ R

KEFREF A

WheEBHE

Ei?’n‘?—iﬁ’ﬂ%ﬂ%‘i&%@

entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are

deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a)  Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

(i) fair values of the assets transferred

(i) liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquired business

(iii)  equity interests issued by the Group

(iv) fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

(v)  fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary.

H ARAEEEZERA
7 1 I 4 o PR JBB R A 4R

REBEALE 2 HEEAR
N R i1 PNIECR el - S
EZ AEFILEA AR

@) REEOf
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NT\

2

(c)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

0}

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \« BEREEEBRAR
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Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:

(i) consideration transferred,

(i)  amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquired entity, and

(i) acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquired
entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

—NFEEHE

2 EEREE-I_JBZ *E%R(ﬂg

(c)

F B A B (&)

(i

(a)

F=a¢ )]

REEG (&)
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AENARBERKA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)  Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Disposals of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated income statement. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

n\/T\
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(c) MIBA

E

(i) #F& @)

(a)

(b)
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BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in an associate includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the consolidated
income statement where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group'’s share of results in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of results of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @ R ZEEHR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Associates (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group's financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor's interests in an associate.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in an associate
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Executive
Directors of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
The Company'’s functional currency is United States
dollars (“US$") and since the Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the Board of Directors considered that it is more
appropriate to adopt HK$ as the Group’s and the
Company’s presentation currency in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements.
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Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within “other
gains/(losses), net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as financial assets at FVTOCI are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

2 FESHHERHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a)

(b)

(@

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
consolidated statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Exchange translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NT\

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprises mainly plant
and machinery, furniture, fixture and equipment, motor
vehicles, oil properties (Note 2(h)) and construction-in-
progress, is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation, other than oil properties, is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Plant and machinery 5-11 years

Furniture, fixture and 3-11 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 4-8 years

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of
buildings, the costs of plant and machinery, installation,
testing and other direct costs. No depreciation is made
on construction-in progress until the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(k)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “other gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Qil properties

0}

(i)

(iii)

Exploration and evaluation

Qil exploration and evaluation expenditures are
accounted for using the “successful efforts” method
of accounting. Costs are accumulated on a field-
by-field basis. Geological and geophysical costs are
expensed as incurred. Costs directly associated with
an exploration well, and exploration and property
leasehold acquisition costs, are capitalised to
property, plant and equipment or intangible assets
according to the nature of the expenditure incurred
until the determination of reserves is evaluated. If
it is determined that commercial discovery has not
been achieved, these costs are charged to expense.

Once commercial reserves are found, and production
has commercial, the capitalised, exploration and
evaluation assets are tested for impairment and
transferred to development tangible and intangible
assets. No depreciation and/or amortisation is
charged during the exploration and evaluation
phase.

Development assets

Expenditure on the construction, installation or
completion of infrastructure facilities such as
platforms, pipelines and the drilling of commercially
proven development wells, is capitalised within
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets according to nature. When development is
completed on a specific field, it is transferred to oil
properties or intangible assets. No depreciation and/
or amortisation is charged during the development
phase.

Oil properties

Qil properties are aggregated exploration and
evaluation tangible assets, and development
expenditures associated with the production of
proved reserves.
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BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NT\

2

(h) Oil properties (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

)
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Oil properties (Continued)

Qil properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation, and impairment losses.

Depreciation of the oil properties is recognised using
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Impairment - exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for
impairment when reclassified to development
assets, or whenever facts and circumstances indicate
impairment. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the exploration and evaluation
assets’ carrying amount exceeds their recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the exploration and evaluation assets’ fair value
less costs of disposal and their value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, the exploration
and evaluation assets subject to testing are grouped
with existing cash-generating units of production
fields that are located in the same geographical
region.

Impairment — development assets, oil properties
and plant and machineries

Development assets, oil properties and plant and
machineries are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

()]

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group. Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to
write off the cost of investment properties over the shorter
of the term of the lease and 50 years, using the straight-
line method.

Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of consideration transferred
over the Group’s interest in net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.
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BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NT\

2

()]

Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Tou Rong Chang Fu broup meted RRREEESR
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Exploitation licences

Exploitation licences acquired are shown at historical
cost and have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation.

Amortisation of the exploitation licences is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, which is determined as the
remaining contractual life of the oil exploitation
licenses. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relations have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method of ten years over the expected
life of the customer relationship.

Others

Licences to run the insurance brokerage, securities
brokerage and asset management are recognised as
intangible assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position. They have indefinite useful lives
and tested annually for impairment and carried at its
cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and Intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
(i)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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2

()

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)
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Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model
in which the investment is held. For investments
in equity instruments, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment designated at FVTOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Financial assets (Continued) () =#HEE @
(i)  Recognition and measurement (Continued) (i) HRERE @)
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial R TR REBEZ A
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial SEE N (e 2300 3E IR A B
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly FFABERNEREE)BEE
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. BEETHESREEZRS

Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL
are expensed in the profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the asset is
derecognised or impaired. Interest income

from these financial assets is included in

finance income using the effective interest rate
method.
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BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()
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Financial assets (Continued)
(i)  Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income (“OCl"), except
for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit and loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
equity to the consolidated income statement
and recognised in “other gains/(losses), net”.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or financial assets at FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured
at FVTPL and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other gains/(losses), net’ in
the period in which it arises. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in the
‘finance income’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present gains and
losses on fair value changes of equity investments
in OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification of
fair value gains and losses on fair value change to
the consolidated income statement. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in the
consolidated income statement as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Gains and losses on fair value changes of financial
assets at FVTPL are recognised in “other gains/
(losses), net” in the consolidated income statement
as applicable.
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at financial assets at FVTOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment losses (and reversal of

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables, see note 21 for further details.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group, and a failure to make contractual
payments for a period of greater than 1 year past due.

For loans receivable and other financial assets, the Group
measures the loss allowance equal to 12 month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition.

Impairment losses on trade receivables, loans receivable
and other financial assets are presented as net impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the
same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

BRI R AR M

IIVT\

2 EE;ZE n‘|’BZﬁ$E%;< (,.,‘

Inventories (n) 7€
Inventories represent mainly finished goods for resale and GFEFEREE ZBKE TR
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. ARAIFRFEMER ZBESE
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. P BR o B A Ty {8 R N#E 105 B
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price JE o M IFERATEBREF
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable b ET S BRG] FEER
selling expenses. %o
Trade receivables, deposits, other receivables (o) BEZEWIE &e HittpE
and loans receivable WRIEUARERER
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for ZHRUFIERN B BEBKBIZ
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary ok 8 6 7 SR R AR 7 1 FE W)
course of business. Loans receivable are loans granted to BEPWH A& - ERERTIN A
customers in the ordinary course of business. If collection/ BEKBEARTER ZEF M
realisation of trade receivables, deposits, other receivables B S RIGRIE 1R d - HEIREK
and loans receivable is expected in one year or less (or in BARERERTETBE—FK
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they —FUARN (FERFEEEERKBE
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as WSS EEARERE) tkm IR
non-current assets. BIZImmE EE - BRI FEIERED
BEFRTI®R-

Trade receivables, deposits, other receivables and loans ESRWIE e EERER
receivable are recognised initially at fair value and IEL/{&FEH&E B N/NS R R
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the L AR R BB A BRI SR
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. $TD R ERBEE -
Cash and cash equivalents (p) RERAELEHEER
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits ReRkREEHEEABEFHER
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid & WITWBATFH REHER=
investments with original maturities of three months or 18 A s Az Eh 58 B = i B 1%
less. "E -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Client trust bank balance

(r)

(s)

The Group has classified in the consolidated statement
of financial position the clients’ deposits as client trust
bank balances in the current assets and recognised a
corresponding trade payables to the respective clients
under the current liabilities.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Trade payables, accruals and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables, accruals and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NT\

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense and
included in finance costs in consolidated income statement
in the year in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

0}

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date
in the countries where the Group and an associate
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred

income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @ R ZEEHR A
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally, the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference for associates. Only
where there is an agreement in place that gives
the Group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed
profit is not recognised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Retirement benefit costs

The Group maintains a number of defined contribution
plans in the countries in which it operates, the assets
of the retirement benefit are generally held in separate
trustees-administered funds. The retirement plans are
generally funded by payments from employees and by the
Group.

(i)  Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

(ii) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Share-based payment transactions

(i)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @ R ZEEHR A
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—+&E— \FHEEHE

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees or
suppliers as consideration for equity instruments
(options or warrants) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee or suppliers services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options or warrants granted:

° including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options or warrants that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

2 FESHBEME (@)

(x)

UBRBARZRS
() HUBREEEHUBREIHZ

x5

REBERBLHENRERE
B AR 00 5 3R 2 R E A )
Bl BREUARER 2 #S
TE(BREXBEESE)
ESREDRSERNFER
Z RS - RIMEZ R B X
IR R IR IR [ i A
Z R EERRH 155
EXH 2 REBHIBEMEK
BRI RIEE 2 A FE
B

s BREEMWHREAMN
(N ERZ RO E
&)

s TEEEMRERIFE
W5 RGBT
(mnZEFIgE 7 - HHELE
REBRZERESR
EEERHEMLE) 2
TE R

o BREREMEREEMS
(EBBEZENR)

By 488
o

FERTE T8 BA S 57 8 < iE Ak v
HRA R R B B FETIS
1B 2 RIR R AR 54 RN
A—BEE B - B S RN B
JB BT N e R - X B R P
BEREEBGTEEERL
HARE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

0}

(i)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees
or suppliers may provide services in advance of
the grant date and therefore the grant date fair
value is estimated for the purposes of recognising
the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options or
warrants that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original
if any,
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

estimates, in the consolidated income

When the options or warrants are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity in the
Company'’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

(2)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been
reliably estimated.

Provisions, including those arising from the contractual
obligation specified in the service concession arrangement
to maintain or restore the infrastructure before it is handed
over to the granter, are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect is material).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below. The Group bases
its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.
(i) Revenue from sale of crude oil, commodities and
chemical products is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

(aa)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)  Revenue from rental income from investment
properties is recognised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(iii)  Revenue from money lending and interest income is
recognised using the effective interest method.

(iv)  Revenue on financial services from brokerage and
commission is recognised once duties under the
service contracts are performed.

(v)  Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. The respective leased assets are included in
the balance sheet based on their nature.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NT\

3

BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The
financial instruments by categories held by the Group as at
31 March 2018 and 2017 are set out as follows:

B ERE]

(a)

Bt %5 J B R 3%

AEBWMEREIEH T HEA
2 (BREIINERERE D FERX
Rk B R A X E R R ERE
) ;ff &//\uibﬁiﬂ /«/\41’
SR BEAR FEBNERRR
ERAEETREBESRTSHT
BARA & » I B IRE AR AR [ B
BRENBENINZE - NEE
RIE-NFR-_ZT—tF=H
=t-HfFEZER T ARE
AEFIMT :

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T EEEF T
(Restated)
(R2E:5))
Financial assets TRMEE
At amortised cost RS AR AR 956,851 863,994
At FVTOCI RATEEBEMEE
I 2551 Bk 4,079 29,241
At FVTPL BAVEEBERYR 74,318 256
1,035,248 893,491
Financial liabilities at R AR 2
amortised cost SHEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H Ah A FRIE 79,673 157,299
Bank borrowings RITEE 29,477 32,818
Bonds e 619,771 439,227
728,921 629,344
Tou Rong Chang Fu broup meted RRREEEARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR M EE

nVT\
Ak'\—
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BIERER (#)

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) () MBEEREZE @
Management monitors and manages the financial risk EREFREOTRREEREE
relating to the Group through internal risk assessment BARBERTEERREEEH
which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of REBMNSRER - REZE
risks. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are FEBRAIBEREHINNT - BIEEE R
set out below. Management manages and monitors RERZER  BRAEKERE
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are BAREEBERE-
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i)  Market risk (i) TEHEEE
Foreign currency risk management SN B B R
The Group conducts its treasury functions and REEUIINEEITHEBRT
maintains certain cash and bank balances, bank ERREE THE RRITHE
borrowings and bonds in foreign currencies, BORITEERES At
hence is exposed to foreign currency risk. The EHINE R o REBFE B
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely B B RN [E R B F E
monitoring the movements of the foreign currency LA B TR H NS [EL B o AN SR )
exchange rates. The Group currently does not B A0 ONEE SO R o A
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, - EHEEERIINERER -
management monitors foreign exchange exposure RERBREREZREPE
and will consider hedging significant foreign RINE R
currency exposure should the need arises.
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign REBLSNESENEEE
currency denominated monetary assets and EREEaEN®REHHN
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as BREEWT
follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE g
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF —E-N\F —tF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T BETT BT T
(Restated)
(&&5)
HK$ B 75,094 319,780 30,335 517,827
US$ T 15,191 281,947 - 50,193
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARE(TAR%]) 290,818 323,764 - 61,324
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted CREREEEBRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

n‘/T\

3

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) () MBEEREZE @
(i)  Market risk (Continued) (i) FEREE &)
Foreign currency sensitivity SN B E
The following table indicates the approximate TRERNAEAEEmRESE
change in the Group'’s loss in response to reasonably N[ Y BEE 22 5 25 B R &Y
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to SRBEE B MO AL EE
which the Group has significant exposure at the end BYIHEMBIAEE -
of the reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding BRENTEBEREEDN
foreign currency denominated monetary items SNEFHEEWIER - WREF
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a RIZEEMN5% (ZF—+
5% (2017: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. F:5%)#EmARERm%R
A positive/(negative) number below indicates an HoTHE/(B)EERT:
increase/(decrease) in post-tax loss (2017: (decrease/ i AN REE BB H A 58
increase) in post-tax profit) where RMB, HK$ and HEEAEEERNINEE
other currencies strengthen against the relevant BETEER EF - RIRRELE
functional currency of the Group entities, that is EEEm CRd) (==
US$. As the HK$ is pegged to the US$, management —tF BRRERFRLD
considers that the Group's foreign currency (3E0) ) - BRI T
exposures from the HK$ with respect to the US$ B EBERE AEHE
is relatively insignificant. For a 5% (2017: 5%) A R ITTRTARIE 2 INE
weakening of RMB, and other currencies against the [ Bz AR S 4 0 = M1 A R 6 K2
relevant functional currency of the Group entities, EmE¥EEEEASEE
that is US$, there would be an equal and opposite IR B ITE R TR
impact on the post-tax loss. 5% (ZZF—+%F :5%) 8l
BREi1e B8 % IR S E (B4R
RS .
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(s E5)
RMB AR 14,541 13,122
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & & & £ E AR QA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bonds (Note 31) and loans
receivable (Note 22). The Group is also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to bank
balances and variable-rate bank borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") arising from the
Group's HK$ denominated borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
borrowings. The analysis is prepared assuming
the bank and the borrowings outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis point (2017: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease for variable-rate bank
borrowings is used for interest rate sensitivity
analysis and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

(1) Cash flow interest rate risk

As at 31 March 2018, the Group is exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank borrowings carries at
floating interest rate at HIBOR plus certain
basis points per annum. If interest rates had
been 50 basis points (2017: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 March 2018 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$147,000 (2017:
HK$164,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

BRI

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \ RREEEERAR
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued)

There is also no material cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances.

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s bonds and loans receivable
were issued at fixed rates and expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. As
at 31 March 2018, the Group has bonds
of approximately HK$619,771,000 (2017:
HK$439,227,000) and loans receivable of
approximately HK$73,933,000 (2017 restated:
HK$111,036,000) carried at fixed rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2017: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit derived from fixed-rate
bonds and loans receivable for the year ended
31 March 2018 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$7,767,000 (2017:
HK$4,688,000) as a result of decrease/increase
in fair value of fixed rate bonds. The effect of
changes in interest rate on amortised amounts
of loans receivable is not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

0}

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities and unquoted
equity securities. Decisions to buy or sell listed
equity securities are based on daily monitoring of
the performance of individual securities compared to
index of relevant stock markets and other industry

indicators.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting date.

If the equity prices were 10% higher/lower:

- loss for the year would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$4,675,000 (2017:
HK$26,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL.

- fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve would increase/decrease by
nil (2017: HK$2,312,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of equity instrument at
FVTOCI.

No sensitivity analysis is presented for the Group's
investments in unquoted equity securities which are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)  Credit risk

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which may cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 92%
(2017: 90%) and 99% (2017: 99%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group's largest
customer within the commodity trading segment
and the five largest customers within the commodity
trading and financial services segment respectively.
There is no other significant concentration risk
during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)
Cash and bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks or financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies or state-owned banks in the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC").

Other receivables

The Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECL of other receivables. For those
balances expected to have significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
apply lifetime ECL based on aging for classes with
different credit risk characteristics and exposures.
Management makes periodic collective assessments
as well as individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience,

As at 31 March 2018, included in other receivables
are refundable rental deposits and receivables
from securities brokers of aggregate gross carrying
amounts of HK$9,740,000 (2017: HK$40,987,000)
which exposed the Group to credit risk. Allowance
for credit losses of HK$1,947,000 (2017:
HK$831,000) was provided for certain other
receivables since the management of the Group
considers the probability of default is significant in
view that these amounts have been overdue for a
long period of time and accordingly, full impairment
was provided for these assets. The credit risk on
the remaining balances are insignificant as the
probability of default is considered minimal after
assessing the counterparties’ financial background
and creditability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

n‘/T\

3

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @ R ZEEHR A

Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of other receivables during the year is as follows:

3

SR EIE (|)

(a) MHEBREE &)

(i) EEREE &)

E e U IE (45)

B B F A EL e U R OR 2 B
BRESBEIEHNT:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

At beginning of year F9) 831 831

Write-offs (Note) s (M) (513) =

Recognition for the year FR#ER 1,629 -

At end of year FER 1,947 831

Note: PR -

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the management of the REBEE-_T—-N\F=A=1+—HALFE

Group considered that certain other receivables which have been
fully impaired in previous years with gross carrying amount of
HK$513,000 are irrecoverable in view of the legal actions taken
by the Group in previous years and accordingly, the gross carrying
amount and the respective loss allowance of the other receivables are
written off during the current year.

Trade receivables

For trade receivables, management assesses the
collectability of the trade receivables regularly and on
a case-by-case basis for the determination of any loss
allowance for the trade receivables by taking into
account the customers’ financial condition, current
creditworthiness, past settlement history, business
relationship with the Group and other factors such
as current market conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group’s largest customer within the commodity
trading segment which has a significant outstanding
trade receivable balance due to the Group with
gross carrying amount of HK$551,620,000 as at
31 March 2018 (2017: HK$414,020,000) was
assessed for allowance for credit losses individually.
The management assessed for the allowance for
credit losses for lifetime by estimating default rate
taking into account historical and forward looking
information. As at 31 March 2018, impairment
allowance of HK$47,000,000 (2017 (restated):
HK$32,000,000) was made on the trade receivables
due from the Group's largest customer. Subsequent
to 31 March 2018, with management’s follow
up actions to chase the outstanding receivable,
the trade receivable due from the Group's largest
customer has been fully settled by the customer in
June 2018.

For the remaining debtors, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL as the Group's
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significant different loss patterns for different
customer segments and the allowance for credit
losses based on the past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group's customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
due from customers other than the largest customer,
which are assessed based on provision matrix as at
31 March 2018, 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2016
with lifetime ECL:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

I ERERE (@

m]ﬂH

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIEEBREZE (&)
(ii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) GCEERE &)

Trade receivables (Continued)

EZENE (&)

As at 31 March 2018 R-EBE-NE=B=+—H

170

Gross Allowance
Expected carrying for credit
loss rate amount losses
AHEBEE HAEEE FEBBRRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BB T
Customers other than the RE B T8 B A iR B
largest customer which the SNZRE
Group expects that they will  (RAZFKRIN) ¢
pay on time:
Neither past due nor impaired  BE K& H 7n KR E 0% 25 -
Past due for less than 30 days  #Hi > HA30H 0.18% 5,348 10
Past due for more than B HAERA308 B
30 days but less than LHR90H
90 days 0% 18 -
Past due for more than B HAERE90 R B
90 days but less than PR—F
one year 15.66% 18,890 2,958
Past due for more BHIER—F
than one year 100% 2 2
24,283 2,970
Credit-impaired customer EERERP
other than the largest (RARBEPBRIN) :
customer:
Past due for more than ) HAEAE90H 1B
90 days but less than PR—F
one year 100% 696 696
Past due for more BHIER—F
than one year 100% 22,078 22,078
22,774 22,774
47,057 25,744

Tou Rong Chang Fu broup meted RRREES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR B A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HEEREIR (@)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BHEREE @
(i)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) GCEERE &)
Trade receivables (Continued) B ZREWEIE (&)
As at 31 March 2017 R-_ZE—tF=A=+—~8H
Gross Allowance
Expected carrying for credit
loss rate amount losses
TEEAE B X MIEEE EEBERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT

Customers other than the AE BB SRR
largest customer which the X ffZ2&F
Group expects that they will  (ZABRFBIN) :

pay on time:
Neither past due nor impaired BE A& 2 7n K 8 E 0% 7 -
Past due for less than 30 days #Hi D H30H 0.65% 5,079 33
Past due for more than A HEIFER30R 8

30 days but less than 2 H90H

90 days 1.66% 11,244 187
Past due for more than papzieEpGl=Ri=]

90 days but less than LR—F

one year 15.44% 16,091 2,484
Past due for more BEER—F

than one year 100% 10,139 10,139

42,560 12,843

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @t R EEEHR A A
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—+Z— \FFEHRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BIERER (#)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BHEREE @
(ii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) GCEERE &)
Trade receivables (Continued) B ZREWEIE (&)

As at 1 April 2016 RZZE—R"FMA—A
Gross Allowance
Expected carrying for credit
loss rate amount losses
BHEE % MIEEE EEBERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT

Customers other than the AE BB SRR
largest customer which the X ffZ2&FE
Group expects that they will (& ARFBIN) :

pay on time:
Neither past due nor impaired BE A B IR B {E 0.28% 54,887 155
Past due for less than 30 days #582#30H 0.67% 4,187 28
Past due for more than #EAR B30 1B

30 days but less than 2 H90H

90 days 0.99% 100,709 995
Past due for more than B AR B0 H 2

90 days but less than DR—F

one year 33.05% 8,937 2,954
Past due for more BHARB—F

than one year 100% 9,139 9,139

177,859 13,271
1 72 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t &= £ EHR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R ERR M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HEKREIR (&
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) () MBEEREZE @
(i)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) GCEERE &)
Trade receivables (Continued) B SEWFIE (&)
As at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2016, additional R-_E—+FE=F=+—
allowance for credit losses of approximately BHER-—ZT—XNEMA—H "
HK$2,704,000 and HK$1,548,000, respectively was ZE BB 2R ﬁvMﬁéﬁ)}m
provided as prescribed by HKFRS 9. EEBPERE LRSI

5)‘2%]%*/\EIJEHI%§1%%’J
7 152,704,000 B B

1,548,0007T °
Reconciliation of loss from HKAS39 to HKFRS9 are as EADEER|EI05EE S
follows: BT IS 3R ERIE % 2 B 18
IR -
As previously
reported Restated
under under
HKAS 39  Adjustments HKFRS 9
BERE REEE
EEEHER B R EE A
EELL A FCEE BIRES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT

Allowance for credit losses EEFERE

As at 31 March 2017 RZE—+tF
=A=+—H 10,139 34,704 44,843
As at 1 April 2016 R-Z—XEMA—H 11,723 16,548 28,271

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited #Z @i &= K EER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nVT\

3

BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Movements in the allowance for credit losses during

3 HERER (@)

(a) MEREBEZ @)
(i) FEREE &)
B HE (&)

FRN EEBEREZZD

the year are as follows: NN
HK$'000
PSR T
At 31 March 2016 under HKAS 39 E@:%:—/_\izﬂi‘f'—ﬁffiﬁ%
BB G HERIFE395% 11,723
Impact on early application of HKFRS 9 IR AT LEEFH%E B i A A
(Note 2) FSR 2 2 (Mzr2) 16,548
At 1 April 2016 under HKFRS 9 RZZT—RFMA—BIRE
BB s RSB o5R 28,271
Allowance for credit losses EERERE 18,156
Write-off i 85 (872)
Exchange realignment PE WS B (712)
31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 R=ZF—+tF=A=+—HEK
—tFmA—H 44,843
Allowance for credit losses EEEERE 38,040
Write-off (Note) sy (KIsE) (10,139)
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\F=A=+—8H 72,744
Note: PR & -
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the management of the REE-_T-NF=A=+—HItF

Group considered that certain trade receivables which have been
fully impaired in previous years with gross carrying amount of
HK$10,139,000 (2017: HK$872,000) are irrecoverable in view of the
legal action taken by the Group in previous years and accordingly, the
gross carrying amount and the respective loss allowance of the trade

receivables are written off during the current year.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & & & £ E AR QA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e AR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BIERERE (&)

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIEEBREZE (&)
(i)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) GCEERE &)

Loans receivable from money lending business

Loans receivable were made to borrowers with an
appropriate credit history. As at 31 March 2018,
loans receivable amounting to HK$48,180,000
(2017: HK$46,422,000) are secured by unlisted
equity securities while the remaining loans receivable
are unsecured. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management has reviewed the recoverable
amounts of the loans receivable regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment is made for irrecoverable
amounts. The management has also assessed
whether the borrowers have satisfactory credit
quality with reference to financial background,
current creditworthiness, collateral and past payment
of each borrower. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on
loans receivable is significantly reduced.

The management of the Company catergorised the
loans receivable from money lending business into
mainly three categories; (a) either not yet overdue
or overdue for less than 30 days and not credit-
impaired, (b) overdue within 30 days to 60 days
but not credit-impaired and (c) overdue more than
60 days and/or credit-impaired. The management
of the Company determines when loans are credit-
impaired and concluded that, based on the Group's
past experience in money lending business and
relevant forward looking information available to the
Group, loans with more than 60 days past due are
considered as credit impaired.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited N
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e PR ERR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Loans receivable from money lending business
(Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for loans
receivable from money lending business as follows:

3 HERER (@)

m]ﬂH

(a) MEREBEZ @)

(i) FEREE &)

EXEBELZEREH
(#)

TREHBEASEERE
BEL ZBBERZEER
pRAHEEEREMN:

As at 31 March 2018
R=-ZE—-—NFE=HA=+—H

Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount allowance amount

BEREE EiREE BREFE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Internal credit rating W ERE E AR BT T BT T BT T
Either not yet overdue or & 7 %8 8 3k 18 Hf
overdue for less than DHRI0A BT REE
30 days and not BAE
credit-impaired 14,528 968 13,560
Overdue within 31 days to #Hi31H £60H K
60 days but not B3I KI5 ERE
credit-impaired - - -
Overdue more than 60 days % Bi#2:860H & s
and/or credit-impaired EERE 43,472 6,399 37,073
58,000 7,367 50,633

Tou Rong Chang Fu broup meted RRREEESR
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e IR R AR B A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

3 MBERER

&)

(a) MBEBREE &)

(i) FEREE &)

Loans receivable from money lending business EXREBELECENEFN
(Continued) (%)
As at 31 March 2017
RZE—tF=A=+—H
Gross
carrying Loss  Net carrying
amount allowance amount
MAREE EtE R REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal credit rating AEMEE TR BT T BT T BT
Either not yet overdue or 4 7K 381 8 % i1 H3
overdue for less than LHR30BETREE
30 days and not VEREE]
credit-impaired 86,988 4,321 82,667
Overdue within 31 days to #1Hi31HE60H A
60 days but not B R EERE
credit-impaired 12,558 1,263 11,295
Overdue more than 60 days # #i#B3B60H K
and/or credit-impaired EERE 5,314 5,314 =
93,962

104,860 10,898

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @t R EEEHR A A
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Loans receivable from money lending business

B 3E]

Akl\—
[a]s] ""
N ME )

(a) BH¥ERREZE &

(ii)

EERE (&)

EXRBFELZEREL

(Continued) (%)
As at 1 April 2016
RZE—XRNFMA—H
Gross
carrying Loss  Net carrying
amount allowance amount
AR E E e R REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal credit rating AEEERT R BT BT T
Either not yet overdue or & 7 781 4 5k 18 Hf
overdue for less than LR30BEFREE
30 days and not AE
credit-impaired 14,508 788 13,720
Overdue within 31 days to #Hi31H £60H
60 days but not B R EERE
credit-impaired = = =
Overdue more than 60 days 7 #i #8360 H &
and/or credit-impaired ZERE 5,405 885 4,520
19,913

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

As at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2016, additional
loss allowance of approximately HK$6,089,000
and HK$1,673,000, respectively was provided as
prescribed by HKFRS 9.

1 78 Tou Rong Chang Fu broup meted \ REREEEERA
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

n\/T\

B 3E

B R AR M EE

Akl«—
o &)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MBEREZE®
(ii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) EERFE &)
Loans receivable from money lending business EXREBELECENEFN
(Continued) (%)
Changes in the allowance for credit losses for loans KABEREB ZERERZ
receivable from money lending business are mainly EEEERE 2 EHHEE
due to changes in expected credit loss rate at each AR EEE > AEEEEE
stage and changes in gross amounts of respective Ry BB LR ENE RERE
loans receivable are as follows: TEBINT :
Either not
yet overdue
or overdue Overdue
for less within Overdue
than 31daysto more than
30 days 60 days 60 days
and not but not and/or
credit- credit- credit-
impaired impaired impaired Total
EAREE  EE31H B
RBHLR  ZF60BR HBiB60H
300 B & B %/
FERE FERE FERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETx BBt BABTx
Gross carrying amount R =Z— \4F
at 31 March 2018 =A=+—RH2
BEREE 14,528 = 43,472 58,000
Gross carrying amount  RZ-_ZF—+4F
at 31 March 2017 =A=+—RH2
BERE(E 86,988 12,558 5,314 104,860
Gross carrying amount R = Z— /K4
at 1 April 2016 MA—HZ
BEREE 14,508 - 5,405 19,913

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted S
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BIEREIR (@&
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BHEREE @
(i)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) EERE &)
Loans receivable from money lending business EXEBELEZ ENEX
(Continued) (#)
Either not
yet overdue
or overdue Overdue
for less within Overdue

than 31daysto more than
30 days 60 days 60 days

and not but not and/or

credit- credit- credit-
impaired impaired impaired Total

GES L BE31A B

REAHLR Z60A BiB60H

30 AYE Bt %/5
EERE EERE EERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BET T BETIT

Loss allowance for ECL; BHEEEEZ

EEEE:
As at 31 March 2016 RZE—RE
(Reported) =A=+—H
(BEE%H) - - = =
Impact of adopting RmEE ﬁﬂ%?ﬁt‘:i@ﬂﬂ
HKFRS 9 FOR B 788 - 885 1,673
At 1 April 2016 under RZZ—REMA—AH
HKFRS 9, restated REE B MRS &R
95 - K F5 788 - 885 1,673
Allowance for credit losses (= B 18 & 3,820 1,244 4,161 9,225
Transfer to other categories 1 F M= & &R N
due to increase in i 8 45 = E A J5 B
credit risk (287) 19 268 -
At 31 March 2017 and RZZE—+tF
1 April 2017 Eﬂz+—5&
T—+&WA—H 4,321 1,263 5,314 10,898
(Reversal)/allowance 1;%%1%5\ (Bm),/BE
for credit losses (1,235) (185) 14,146 12,726
Transfer to other categories FAZ & BRI N
due to increase in i 8 45 = E A FE R
credit risk (2,118) (1,078) 3,196 -
Write-offs (Note) s (KIsE) - - (16,257) (16,257)
At 31 March 2018 RZZE—\%F
=A=+—H 968 - 6,399 7,367
180 o A e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Loans receivable from money lending business
(Continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the management of the
Group considered that certain loans receivable with gross carrying
amount of HK$16,257,000 (of which HK$4,809,000 has been
impaired in previous years) is irrecoverable in view of the legal
actions taken by the Group in previous years and accordingly, the
gross carrying amount and the respective loss allowance of the loans
receivable are written off during the current year.

Specifically, in estimating the amount of ECL for the
loans receivables from money lending businesses,
the management of the Company uses various
approaches taking into account (i) aging of the
Group’s loans receivable based on the categories
as described above, (ii) the Group initial assessment
of the credit risk on individual basis and (iii) market
value of pledged collaterals, if any. The Group also
takes into account forward-looking information, e.g.
the applicable GDP growth and unemployment rate,
etc. The Group has recognised allowance for ECLs,
representing approximately 12.7% (2017: 10.39%)
of the gross carrying amount, against all loans to
customers as at 31 March 2018.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)  Credit risk (Continued)

Loans receivable from margin financing business

The management of Company determines whether
the margin loans are credit-impaired based on
the Group's past experience in margin financing
business, relevant forward looking information
available to the Group and the values of the
collaterals pledged (being listed securities in Hong
Kong) for margin loans. If the values of collaterals
pledged for margin loans are more than the loans
advanced, the directors of the Company assesses
and concludes that the ECL is minimal. On the other
hand, if the values of collaterals pledged for margin
loans are less than the loans advanced, the loans are
considered as credit-impaired. As at 31 March 2018,
allowances for credit losses of HK$8,298,000 (2017:
nil) was provided for the margin loans receivable of
aggregate gross carrying amounts of HK$31,598,000
(2017: HK$17,074,000) since there is no sufficient
collateral for the margin loans and the management
of the Group considers the probability of default is
significant.

—NFEEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R ERR M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HEEREIR (@)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) () MBEEREZE @
(ii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) EERFE &)
Loans receivable from margin financing business R AR EE ENE

(Continued) )
Movements in the allowance for credit losses during RENGEEEEREZZY
the year are as follows: mr
HK$'000
BT T
At 31 March 2016, 1 April 2016 and 31 RZZE—-—RFE=A=+—8"
March 2017, under HKAS 39 and 1 April “E-RNFENA—HBHK
2017 under HKFRS 9 —E—+F=A=+—BRE
BB G EREI9 AR
—tFHA—HRE
BBV B RE LR ER -
Allowance for credit losses EEEBERE 8,298
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-—NF=ZRA=+—H 8,298

Specifically, in estimating the amount of ECL for
margin loans, the management of the Company uses
various approaches taking into account (i) the Group
initial assessment of the credit risk on individual
basis and (i) market value of pledged collaterals.
The Group also takes into account forward-looking
information, e.g. the applicable GDP growth and
unemployment rate, etc. The Group has recognised
allowance for ECLs, representing approximately
26.26% (2017: nil) of the gross carrying amount,
against all loans to customers as at 31 March 2018.

LHERZ REFTHFRERZ
BHEEBBRSER AR
REEEBFERSEREL
BEET R () A 5 (B 8 (8 1 2
FEER B 92 5 &)
EEFRFERmE AE
B rat RATRE AR (a0
FEGDPHE R R AKEEXE) -
AEEBHEBE-_ZT—N
FZA=Z+—HRAZTFRH
2 BEREREHEES
BEE BERNEEREREZ
#926.26% (ZF — £ F:
f®) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank and
other borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants and timely negotiates with the lenders if
any non-compliance is expected.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a source
of liquidity. As at 31 March 2018, the Group has
available unutilised letters of credit, overdraft and
short-term bank loan facilities of HK$192,228,000
(2017: HK$106,000,000).

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are at floating rates, the undiscounted amount
is derived from the weighted average interest rates
by reference to the HIBOR of the Group's variable-
rate borrowings at the end of the reporting period.

3

I ERERE (@

(a)

B i B N 2= (&)

(iii)

RBEZEE
RBEZEREE
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RFE WSRBREEME
RZFHEAIEN IR R
LR AETIER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B R AR M EE

IJF
A {5t kl«—
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BIREkREE &)
(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BHEREE @
(i)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) HEELEE &)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued) B A & R EE g E
(4)
Weighted Within Total
average 1 year or Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  on demand 1-2 years 2:5 years Syears  cash flows amount
METEH MER ABES
Az HREX 126 258 SENE RELE HEfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAL  A%Tn  AETr  ABTn BETr ABTn EETx
Asat31March 2018 R=F-N\%E
ZA=t-H
Trade payables BAEMHE N/A 19,085 - - - 19,085 19,085
TER
Other payables HiERFHE N/A 60,588 - - - 60,588 60,588
TER
Bonds (Note (b)) B () 104% 627 47,398 646,745 185,761 880,531 619,771
Bank borrowing #iTEE 25% 2417 - - - 29477 29477
109,777 47,398 646,745 185,761 989,681 728,921
Asat31March 2017 R=B-t%
ZA=t-A
Trade payables ECLEL N/A 135,197 - - - 135,197 135,197
TNER
Other payables HfbENGE N/A 63,242 - - - 63,242 63,242
Sl
Bonds (Note (b)) &5 (W) 9.86% 17,924 35,128 64,440 561,800 679,292 439227
Bank borrowing RITRE 26% 32,818 - - - 3818 3818
249,181 35,128 64,440 561,800 910,549 670,484
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(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of
the bank borrowings which contained a repayment
on cross demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed
using contractual rates. As a result, these amounts
were greater than the amounts disclosed in the
“on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
contained in the above table.

The directors of the Company do not consider that
it is probable that the bank borrowing creditors
will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe
that such borrowings of the Group will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.

3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

EEREE (&)

(a) MEREBEZ @)

(iii)

REBELEE &)

RBE L RFEE R

(%)

TERBAMERIRZRE
RG22 RITEE Z2IH B
DT W ERE R %A
B2MEERLH - 2HE
BB HMEEFEZFEMN
e Bl i FERIEARAR L
RFFE DM [HREK
By i B R 2 BROE

ARREERA/RITEER
BREATAARETEEE
BRERZBEE-ARQ
EERE ARRITEER
SRBEEK BRPTEZ BE
EXAHERE-

Z
Al

Maturity analysis - Bank borrowings which granted subject to a repayment
on default clause based on scheduled repayments

FRAAM-REREER B AT RENRAHERZBHTEN

Weighted Within 1 Total
average  yearoron undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 1-2 years 2-5years Over5years  cash flows amount
&Y MER AFRRE
ME - PRER 125 255 SERE REAR REfE
% HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At A¥Fm  BETr E%Tn  A¥Tn BEfn TR
Asat31 March 2018 R=E-N\E
=)=
Bank borrowing RilEE 25% 3,999 1917 11,876 8,906 32,698 29471
Asat 31 March 2017 R=E-+&
Zh=+-H
Bank borrowing REE 26% 4078 3,944 11,750 16,643 36,415 32818
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

Notes:

(a) For the Group’s variable-rate interest bearing borrowings,
the weighted average effective interest rate of the Group’s
variable-rate interest bearing borrowings at the end of
each reporting period is used for undiscounted cash flow
analysis. As at 31 March 2018, the Group has not given any
guarantees (2017; Nil). For assets pledged to secure the bank
borrowings, refer to Note 27(c).

(b) For the Group's fixed-rate interest bearing bonds, respective
effective interest rate of each of the Group's fixed-rate
interest bearing bonds at the end of each reporting period is
used for undiscounted cash flow analysis.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the bank borrowings (Note 27), bonds
(Note 31), net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

e R ERR M

3 HEEREIR (@)

(a)

(b)

BEEREE (#)
(iii) FEHELERE &)

RBE D R ER R
(%)

i

(a) RAKEHFEMEEMS K
WRREASREASTDEAR
EREHREEEN T RME
B g ERA RGE
RZE-NE=A=+—H"
N AR AR R (=
Tt 5 E) - BREARGR
TIEEEANEE 2T
27(c) ©

(b) FAEEOEEFN R SES
mE ARESEEMNEKTE
B & S HARA S EIRF
EDRARAMARERED
#r e

CREEL DEVS S
M IR AR
B ET A SEDTAE SRR 18
ZRBHELAY 2 BNE
A

EXERE

AEBEEREEANERAEE
NZEBREAAFETAL
2 TRKSZBECAEEESE
ERM RBCR SRR - AR E
MERBRBEERAEFRELEERT

AEBHNEAGBERERR
B RBERERITEER (M#E27)
BE% (31 - MERERRS
HSEBEERERREE AELD
BE (B0 BITRARRERE) -
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3

BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Capital management (Continued)

(c)

The directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio which is calculated by bank borrowings and bonds
divided by the total assets. The gearing ratio of the Group
as at 31 March 2018 was 42% (2017: 34%).

Fair value of financial instruments

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

J Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \« MEEEEARA
Annual Report 2017-18 — —NEFERE
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(b) BEXRERE (#)

(c)

EFUEHTARSEARARE
ERERRFN—R EFEZE
BelARESERAER 2R
- RIBEENEH AEERKE
BIRAIE - FBD 1T - BB
BARZETHESXBERREGE
7 FEEBREARE-

AEEZEEBBLEE (URTT
fEEREFHRNBEEFE) ZE
EEEER AEER_T—/\F
ZA=+-BREERBLER

42% (ZZFE—+F:34% ) ©
EEMTITEMNAFE

TREMGEBEEDTERATETIER
ZE2BMI A - NRAMRRZEZELWN
5 ¢

s HNMREEXARTIERMS
ZHRE(REHAE) (F—
&) -

s FEBBMABEBIHREEX
BEEERIEERLAIHEL
BARE (E-—RABEN
WER) « &

s EBEEXRBAFKEAE
K5 EE 2B AR (A
FABRBARE) (£=
&) e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

This note provides information about how the Group
determine fair value of various financial assets.

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how fair values
of these financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into with which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
is observable.

(i)  Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Instruments included in level 1 comprise equity
securities listed in Hong Kong Stock Exchange
classified as financial assets at FVTPL or financial
assets at FVTOCI.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BIRERERE @
(Continued)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) () EWMIENATEE &)
(i)  Financial instruments in level 3 (i) E=RFWLETA
The unlisted equity investment is determined by FEEMARAIEE THER AR
using discounted cash flow projections. The most ReEREBABTE HZEK
significant unobservable input is the weighted B BT R B2 8 A BR8N
average cost of capital. The lower the cost of capital, FHESKAR  cBEEKAE
the higher the value. K BESS-
The following table presents the Group's assets that are TREIRZ-ZZE-NEFR_ZF
measured at their fair values at 31 March 2018 and 2017. —tF=A=1+—RHUEAFE
HECAEBCEE-
2018 2017
“E-0\% —Z—+%
Level 1 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 3 Total
-8 FEE] &t R E=R i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI B%Tn A¥Tx A%t BETr  AETx
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(mz5)) (BZ3) (&&5)
Assets £
Financial assets at FVTPL RATEERER
Iz RREE
~ Listed equity securities - FHRAES 46,747 - 46,747 256 - 256
— Unlisted equity securities —REMRAES - 21,571 21,51 = = =
Financial assets at FVTOC| BATEEREM
2ENETRZ
~ Listed equity securities —EnRkAES - - - 23,112 - 23,112
~ Unlisted equity securities —FETRAES - 4,079 4,079 = 6,129 6,129
Total w5t 46,747 31,650 78,397 23,368 6,129 29,497
There were no transfers between different levels. N E AR 2 FA) Il s % o

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \« BEREEEBRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR B A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HEEREIR (@)
(Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) () &I ANAFE ®
Fair value at
BOYE Significant Range
31 March 31 March Fairvalue  Valuation unobservable (weighted Relationship of unobservable
Financial assets 2018 2017 hierarchy technique input(s) average) inputs for fair value
—E2-0\% “E-t% BARIHE il
SREE =B=t-8B Z=A=+-B LATEER #EH% BAHE [ £3=)) ATERUBERABE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

Financial assets at FVTPL
RATERBERIR

LEREE
- listed equity securities 46,747 256 Level 1 Quoted bid price in N/A N/A N/A
in Hong Kong an active market
-REEZ EHRE E-& REBTH2HR TER TR TR
#5 wE
- unlisted equity 27,51 - Level 3 Discounted cash ~ Yearly growth rates ~ 11% The increase in yearly growth
securities flow method of revenue rates of revenue would
increase in fair value
- EMRAE S £=8 AREEREE FEUGERE 1% FEYREREANESATE
%

Terminal growth rate 3% The increase in terminal growth
rate would increase in fair
value

REERE 3% RREREENESATEEN

Gross profit margin -~ 15.9% The increase in yearly gross
profit margin would increase
in fair value

ik 15.9% FREMEENESATEREN

Weighted average ~ 11.0% The increase in weighted

cost of capital average cost of capital would
decrease in fair value

METFHERRE  11.0% MEFHERRAENE S
AHERD

Company specific ~ 3.0% The increase in company specific

risk premium risk premium would decrease
in fair value

RARERREE  3.0% NARERREEENES
ATERD

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & &&= £ EBR Q&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

3 BERERE (&)

(c)

ST ENDFE @

Fair value at
BOYE Significant Range
31 March 31 March  Fair value Valuation unobservable (weighted Relationship of unobservable
Financial assets 2018 2017 hierarchy technique input(s) average) inputs for fair value
E-N\F E-tE BARIHE il
SREE =B=t-B =A=+-8 LQTEER #EHE BAHE (1 £3=)) ATETUBRBAMEZBHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Financial assets at
FvToci
BATERBREL
2EMRTIEZ
- Listed equity securities - 23,112 Level 1 Quoted bid price in N/A N/A N/A
an active market
- FikRAES £-& REBTS2HR, TER TR TR
#E
- Unlisted equity 4,079 6,129 Level3 Discounted cash ~ Yearly growth rates of 3.0% (2017: 3.0%) The increase in yearly growth
securities flow method revenue rates of revenue would
increase in fair value
— 3 EMRAE S F=ik FREEREE FEUGERE 30% (ZB—t%:3.0%) FEAGEREENESATE
#1n
Terminal growth rate 3% (2017: 3%) The increase in terminal growth
rate would increase in fair
value
REERE 3% (ZF—+%:3%) REEREENEL A TEEN
Gross profit margin -~ 5.8% (2017: 7.8%) The increase in yearly gross
profit margin would increase
in fair value
EH= 58% (ZE—tF:78%) FEENMEEMESATEEN
Weighted average  13.1%(2017: 13.7%) The increase in weighted
cost of capital average cost of capital would
decrease in fair value
MEFHERRAE  131% (Z2—tF:137%) METHEARABMEL AT
BHD
Company specific risk 5.0%(2017: 5.0%) The increase in company specific
premium risk premium would decrease
in fair value
ARRERREE 50%(ZF—tF:50%) LABEEREEENELAT
BHD
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t &= £ EHR AR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

B 75 L B T B

(%&)

() ERITENDFEE @

EZRAFEAEZHEK

Unlisted Unlisted

equity equity

securities securities

under under

financial financial

assets assets

at FVTOCI at FVTPL

BEAVEER BATE

Hig 2 H K@ ERBE

FIERZ SRz

TREE SREE

BHTRzKRE™ BFzXxEm

RAF S RAE S

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At 1 April 2016 RZE—REFMNA—H - =

Addition B 7,000 =
Fair value change recognised in other R EMEEIRZEER Z

comprehensive income NEEZ (871) =

At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZZT—+F
ZA=+—8k

—ZE—+FWA—H 6,129 =

Addition NE - 27,571
Fair value changes recognised in other R Eth2EKZEERZ

comprehensive income NEEZ (2,050) =

At 31 March 2018 RZZE-NF=A=+—H 4,079 27,571

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the loss on
fair value change included an unrealised losses of
HK$2,050,000 (2017: HK$871,000) related to unlisted
equity instruments designated at FVOCI held at the
end of the reporting period and are included in other
comprehensive income and reported as changes of

"FVTOCI reserve”.

BE-_ZE—N\NFE=ZA=+—8H
IEFE GTAREREBBBE
2,050,000 ( — T — L : B
871,0007T) 2 A B & fE 18 1
RIERRBFBEZIEERZRAT
EEBHEMEEMWENEZ R E
MRATEBR stAHMEER
w O WEHRAEEATFEEBEM
FHEWFER R #8) -
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e TR MR

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually revaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Impairment of oil exploitation rights included
in intangible assets, oil properties and
construction-in-progress included in property,
plant and equipment

The carrying amounts of the oil exploitation rights, oil
properties and construction-in-progress are assessed
for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest
that the carrying amounts of them may exceed their
recoverable amounts. The Group’s determination as to
whether they are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the assets. The Group relied on
experts to assess the geological prospects for the discovery
of oil in the oil field and estimated the value of oil to
be produced in the future at a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. For drilling costs
and other exploration and evaluation assets, the Group
determined whether the related well costs are expensed if
it is determined that such economic viability is not attained
after performing further feasibility studies that is usually
completed within one year of completion of drilling.

Judgement is required by the directors to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @R EEEER AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EEEEHAsHRHE (@)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment (b) ¥ -KEERE (FKHEE
other than oil properties and construction-in- REZIRZRRM) RE
progess
Property, plant and equipment other than oil properties REREHXIREEEMETRY
and construction-in-progess are reviewed for impairment ¥ BERRE(FhEERETE
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate TR BRI B A] B8 M)A UK O
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The BEDRE - AT E & R AT E L A
recoverable amounts have been determined based on the BEIAFEALDENE 2R S
higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs EAEEET - ZiTHEERHE
of disposal calculations. The calculations require the use of R A& 5T o
judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset BEREIEALEZENGOE
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event BRAERXEEERHEEEEE
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset values AIREEEE IR E: (DEEREE S
may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value BEANESEYE Z2EAR
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, AR E R AN RIS S P R
being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and EREEMNER FHFRKRE
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated MEVFREZREE  RiAR
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; EARSRENEENEERR
and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in (PRZEEARSREREHE
preparing cash flow projections including whether these EMFENR)REEEREED
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate FIER

rate.

Changing the assumptions selected by the directors in ERESNERERMEZNR
assessing impairment could affect the recoverable amount RAgEewBEESEEMIHE
determined by the directors and as a result affect the result R RMPERERTESR-
of the impairment reviews. Further details are set out in B BERM 15T #E -
Note 15(a).

(c) Assessment of loss allowance for expected (c) EZRBREBEZEBEES
credit losses on trade receivables BzEBEBETME
The provision for expected credit losses is determined by AEESEERAREBBLUNES
grouping together debtors with similar risk characteristics A SR1& S FL R 2k (B B BR SR U [E
and collectively or individually assessing them for likelihood RR REME - e ERHEEEE
of recovery. The provision of trade receivables reflects B - BHRKFUARERM S
lifetime expected credit losses. HEREEEE-

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @t R EEEHR A A
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e TR MR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

()

(d)

Assessment of loss allowance for expected
credit losses on trade receivables (Continued)

Judgment has been applied in determining the level of
provision for expected credit losses, such as estimating
default rates by taking into account the credit risk
characteristics of customers and the likelihood of recovery
assessed on a combination of collective and individual
basis as relevant based on the Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. For details of the key
assumptions and input used, see Note 3(a)(ii). While the
provision is considered appropriate, changes in estimation
basis or in economic conditions could lead to a change in
the level of provision recorded and consequently on the
charge or credit to profit or loss.

Assessment of loss allowance for expected
credit losses on loans receivable

Management regularly reviews the impairment assessment
and evaluates the ECL of the loans receivable. Appropriate
impairment allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the loans receivable
as at the reporting date with the one as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
loans receivable from borrowers are assessed by the
management of the Group, based on the financial
background, collateral and the historical settlement
records, including past due dates and default rates, of
each borrower and forward-looking information that is
reasonable, supportable and available without undue cost
or effort.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited ¥Rl REEEAGRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d) Assessment of loss allowance for expected

(e)

credit losses on loans receivable (Continued)

Each borrower is assigned a risk grading under
internal credit ratings to calculate the ECL, taking into
consideration of the estimates of expected cash shortfalls
which are driven by estimates of possibility of default and
the amount and timing of cash flows that are expected
from foreclosure on the collaterals (if any) less the costs
of obtaining and selling the collaterals. At every reporting
date, the financial background, collateral and the historical
settlement records are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group's
loans receivable are disclosed in Notes 3(a)(ii) and 22
respectively.

Income taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the year in which such determination is
made.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
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e TR MR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

()

(9)

Depreciation and amortisation method of
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

Significant judgement is required in determining
depreciation and amortisation method of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. The depreciation
method used shall reflect the pattern in which the asset’s
future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by
the entity. The depreciation method applied to an asset
shall be reviewed at least at each financial year-end and,
if there has been a significant change in the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset, the method shall be changed to
reflect the changed pattern. The amortisation method
used shall reflect the pattern in which the asset's future
economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the
entity. If that pattern cannot be determined reliably, the
straight-line method shall be used. It is reasonably possible,
based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within the
next financial year that are different from assumptions
could require material adjustments to the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

The Group's investments in unlisted equity instruments
designated as financial assets at FVTOCI amounting to
HK$4,079,000 as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$6,129,000)
which are measured at fair values with fair values being
determined based on unobserved inputs using valuation
techniques (i.e. Level 3). Judgement and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques
and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could affect the reported fair
values of these instruments. See Notes 3 (c) for further
disclosures.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @R EEEHR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Executive Directors of the Company have been regarded
as the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"). The Group's
operating segments, based on information reported to the
CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment, are as follows:

o Trading of commodities, chemical products and petroleum
products (“Commodity trading”);

. Exploitation and sale of crude oil (“Crude oil”);
. Leasing of investment properties (“Property investment”);
° Money lending, securities brokerage and asset

management business (“Financial services”); and

° Others.

The Group also carries out business as insurance brokerage
and service contract. The CODM, after reviewing for qualitative
factors such as the business activities, economic and legal
characteristics of the business and quantitative factors such
as the financial performance of the business, has accordingly
determined that the insurance brokerage and service contract
businesses did not qualify as reportable operating segments, and
their financial information is included in “Others”.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies. Segment results represent the
loss made or profit earned by each segment without allocation
of incomes or expenses which are not recurring in nature and
unrelated to the Group’s operating performance,
interest income on bank deposits, central management fee
income, central administration costs, directors’ emoluments,
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL, impairment
losses on prepayment, deposits and other receivables and
interest expenses.

including
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n‘/T\

BRI

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The CODM also reviews the earnings/loss before net finance
income and costs, income tax expense, depreciation and
amortisation,

equipment,

impairment losses of property, plant and
investment properties and intangible assets,
unallocated other income less expenses and non-controlling
interests ("EBITDA” or "“LBITDA") of the Group. Accordingly,
EBITDA or LBITDA is also presented.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources among segments, all assets are allocated to
operating segments other than interests in an associate, financial
assets at FVTPL, financial assets at FVTOCI current income tax
recoverable, cash and bank balances and other corporate assets.

The CODM reviews the segment assets for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, an analysis of
the Group's liabilities is not regularly reviewed by the CODM and
hence, the relevant information is not presented accordingly.
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(a) Segment revenue and results (a) DU TZRFEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and REBIZAI 2MEE D BE D 2
results by reportable operating segments. Was REEDITAT -
For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-B-\E=A=t+-ALEE
Commodity Property Financial
trading Crude oil  investment services Others Total
BRES I NERE SREBH Hith /it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Segment revenue A EEE 5,500,164 - 2,928 31,914 1,372 5,536,378
Segment EBITDA/(LBITDA) 4 $5EBITDA,/(LBITDA) (14338)  (151,431) (129) (3.757) 428 (169,227)
Segment depreciation and DETEREH
amortisation (1,526) (14,423) (2,257) (208) (4,234) (22,648)
Segment results DEEE (15,864) (165,854) (2.386) (3.965) (3,806) (191,875)
Unallocated net income RABFRA 43,166
Interest income on bank deposits  $17F 5 2 7| EHA 61
Interest expenses FERX (53,009)
Loss before taxation BRHAER (201,657)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited iR EEEHR A
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e IR R AR B A

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

(Continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

i 2

R 5 EER (30
-~ n=

(a) oHURBRES (#)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BE-T-+F=A=t-HLFE
Commodity Property Financial

trading Crude oil investment services Others Total

HRES R NERE 2RBRE 1) At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BB BT BETT BETT BT

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(mE3) (mE3) (mE5))

Segment revenue HHkE 13,802,960 - 2,235 26,248 929 13,832,372

Segment EBITDA/(LBITDA) S EPEBITDA/(LBITDA) 82,140 (3,545) 814 9,815 (308) 88,916

Segment depreciation and PEHTEREH

amortisation (1,479) (14,059) (2,231) (204) (4,155) (22,128)

Segment results PEEE 80,661 (17,604) (1.417) 9,611 (4,463) 66,788

Unallocated net income L IWELON 65,688

Interest income on bank deposits #1775 2 FIE A 106
Interest expenses FERX (38,367)

Profit before taxation BRBLATR R 94,215
Revenue from one (2017: one) customer in relation HERESIME KE—R(ZF

to commodity trading amounted to approximately

HK$5,109,992,000 (2017: HK$13,449,818,000),

which

individually represents more than 10% of the Group’s total

revenue.

—tF —R)BEZRZ LB
5,109,992,0007c ( =& — £ F :

75 1#13,449,818,0007T )

=k

AEBUREELEE10% A £ o

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @t R EEEHR A A
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BRI

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

n‘/T\

5

(Continued)

(c)

5 IR

(b) Segment assets (b) PHEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets by REBRAZWMEEHHE D 2
reportable operating segment: EESTHT
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(rE7)
Segment assets DEEE
Commodity trading HmE S 640,636 577,247
Crude oil [ 20,468 163,263
Property investment L EZ g 104,311 117,894
Financial services & B AR 7 97,166 120,239
Others H A 15,116 19,635
Total segment assets DEPEEHEE 877,697 998,278
Unallocated ROEC 493,805 393,348
Total assets BEE 1,371,502 1,391,626
Other segment information (0 HibaEER
For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-E-N\FZA=+-HLEE
Commodity Property Financial
trading Crude oil investment services Others Unallocated Total
BRES R NERE SHEBE Heh 4R At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETR BB AT BB BB BB BB
Amount included in the measure of FADREESAHEE
segment results or segment assets: HEVZEE:
Additions to non-current assets REFRHEE 1" 3,858 3,181 526 308 68 7,952
Impairment losses on property, 0% BERREAEHE
plant and equipment - (60,610) - - - - (60,610)
Impairment losses on intangible assets & EE 2 RiEEE (6,171) (92,310) - - (760) = (99,241)
Allowance for credit losses on BORNTE EEERAE
trade receivables (38,040) - - - - - (38,040)
Allowance for credit losses on EREFZFEBRER
loans receivable - - - (21,024) - - (21,024)
Impairment losses on prepayment, BARE ReRAMEREL
deposits and other receivables RERRE (8,071) - - - - (5,700) (13,771)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 1% @& & %
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BRI R AR M

ROEER (&)

IIVT\

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5
(Continued)

L 2

(c) Other segment information (Continued) (o0 HttnEEHR (80
For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-T-+F=A=t-HLEE
Commodity Property Financial
trading Crude oil investment services Others Unallocated Total
BRES R nERE SRERE i *HR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT EETL BB EETT EBTT BRI EBTT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(@&3)) (g5 (&g53))
Amount included in the measure of AN BEEASPEE
segment results or segment assets: HEEE:
Additions to non-current assets REARBEE 205 3,076 - 5,839 2,021 13,115 24,256
Allowance for credit losses on EHRNIRZ R ERRER
trade receivables (18,156) - - - - - (18,156)
Allowance for credit losses on EREFZFEBRAR
loans receivable - - - (9,225) - > (9.225)
Impairment losses on prepayments, BARE RERAMELTE
deposits and other receivables ZRERE (3,945) - (319) - B - (4,264)
Gains on disposals of property, LENE BER
plant and equipment R m 40 - - - - - 40
Gain on deregistration of il
a subsidiary REER W 2222 - - - - - 2222
(d) Geographical information (d) thEEH
The Group's operations are located in the PRC and Hong REBEBZEBMRPBEREE-
Kong. The Group’s revenue from external customers REPZFELZEMREIH AR

BINREPZARBNRGERIRE

is based on the location of their key operations and

information about its non-current assets is based on EMEHESSONERBEEE
geographical location of the assets that are shown below: BITAR

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

REIREF W FRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZB-N\§ C—T—+tF ZEB-NF C"ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT
PRC H 5,484,148 13,700,631 39,900 181,542
Hong Kong BH 52,230 124,261 192,486 181,582
Others Hit - 7,480 13,022 17,120
5,536,378 13,832,372 245,408 380,244

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited #Z @i &= K EER A A
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e PR ERR MR

6 OTHER LOSSES, NET 6 HtEE FE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BT T
(Restated)
(re=&:75)
Impairment losses on ME - BB REEZ
property, plant and A EE
equipment 15 (60,610) -
Impairment losses on mVEEZ
intangible assets BEEE 17 (99,241) =
Impairment losses on BHIE RE R
prepayments, deposits and H h g KR
other receivables ZREEE (13,771) (4,264)
Exchange gains/(losses), net  [& X W25~ (518 ) F 5 28,954 (2,716)
Write back of FET B 2 B B
consideration payables 5,900 -
Changes in fair value of BATFESEREB=SERZ
financial assets at FVTPL EHMEEANTE
) 18,722 109
Gain on deregistration of —fRREB AR Z
a subsidiary B & s W a 32 - 2,222
Gains on disposals of HEME - BE R
property, plant and R Wam
equipment = 40
Fund investment income E2EBERA — 3,793
Others HAh 3 3
(120,043) (813)
204 ot bl e Rl o Al
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e AR MR

EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 RUEBESEMNRAX
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T AT
Wages, salaries and other benefits ~ T#& * #& R EMEF
(including directors’ emoluments) (BIEESME) (HE8)
(Note 8) 36,159 49,056
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B &
— Audit services —ZH R 5,206 3,100
— Non-audit services —IEZER T - 1,020
Cost of inventories recognised HRARIHFERAR
in expenses 5,387,051 13,518,848
Depreciation of property, plantand  #1% - B E K& HEITE
equipment (Note 15) (Pft5E15) 9,942 9,356
Depreciation of investment BEMERE (HEE16)
properties (Note 16) 2,231 2,231
Amortisation of intangible mREERE (ME17)
assets (Note 17) 11,956 11,409
Operating lease expenses KEHERSY 9,738 11,511
Legal and professional fees FRMEXER 9,756 9,052
Commission expenses HeEA 15,083 34,439
Others Eh 18,858 21,680
Total cost of sales, selling and HEMA HER
distribution costs and KA R
administrative expenses TR B 5,505,980 13,671,702

WAGES, SALARIES AND OTHER BENEFITS 8 B -HFERkHMER
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (BREZEEME)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHMETR 35,514 36,384
Contributions to defined contribution & Z8 1t ZR IRET 21
retirement plan 645 486
Share-based payments LARR 9 2 1+ 2 3R
(Note 29(a) and (b)) (M3E29(a) R (b)) = 12,186
36,159 49,056

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umlted
Annual Report 2017-18 =&
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9 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive
is set out below:

For the year ended 31 March 2018:

9 ES=EAMNKER

(a) EBRTFETHAEME

BEERFBEITRABZHWEH
FIEATR -

BE-—E-NE=ZA=+—-HL
FE:

Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
director's
other services
in connection
with the
Employer's management
contribution to of affairs of
Allowances a retirement the company
Discretionary and benefits benefit  or its subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme undertaking Total
RERATE
AMEARZ
EREHER
EXmEK Ezy
BER  BEAFMEL  AHREEAR
He & BELL ENEA 2B ERzE4HS @3t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR AETT A¥TR BRI AETT A¥TR BETR
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(Bri() (HEb)
Executive Directors: H1ES:
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung (Note (c)) EARALE (W) - 702 58 - 18 - 778
Mr. Li Zhenjun (Note (d)) FRELE (W) - 1,200 100 - 18 - 1318
Mr. Poon Sum (Note (e)) BREE (M) - 1971 - - 7 - 1978
Mr. Poon Wai Kong (Note (i) ARREE (H3E) - 1,176 98 - 18 150 1442
Mr. Wu Zhou (Note (f) R £ (HiEE() - 7 - - - - 7
Mr. Hu Dehua (Note (g)) ez (W) - 400 - - 16 - 416
- 5,456 256 - 71 150 5939
Independent Non-executive Directors; B 3FH172%:
Mr. Chan Shu Kin REBEE 264 - n - - - 286
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung ROREE 264 - 2 - - - 286
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu ERERE 264 - 2 - - - 286
792 - 66 - - - 858
Total &3t 192 5,456 m - 7 150 6,797

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \« REEEEERA
Annual Report 2017-18 = —NEFERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

9 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 9 EEREFNHEZR (&)

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () ESEREIBTBRAEMS
(Continued) (%)
For the year ended 31 March 2017: BE-_ZT—+tHF=A=+—H1L
FE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
director's
other services
in connection
with the
Employer's management
contribution to of affairs of
Allowances a retirement the company
Discretionary and benefits benefit  orits subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme undertaking Total
FEALRL
EMBRARZ
ERERAR
EIAEK 32
BHR  BAEfEL ABBREENZ
we ¢ BisEa EnEH 2% BUzAt#e @it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AETT BETT AT BRI BETT AT
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(Hita) (M)
Executive Directors: HES:
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung (Note (c)) EARAE (MEO) - 582 97 2,950 18 - 3,647
Mr. Li Zhenjun (Note (d)) ZRE LA (M) - 1,200 100 295 18 = 1613
M. Poon Sum (Note (¢) EREE (Hie) - 4,824 804 2,950 18 - 8,59
Mr. Poon Wai Kong (Note () BERLE (W) = 1,19 196 1475 18 = 2,885
M. Hu Dehua (Note (g)) HEER A () = 3% % = il = a1
= 8192 1,223 7,670 8 = 17,168
Non-Executive Director: sufEE: 0 TTTTTTooTTTTomoTTTmmmommmmmm T
Mr. Zaid Latif (Note (1) Zaid Latif% £ (HzE() 100 - - 59 - - 159
Ddependent Nonesecutive Directorss B0 %% T T T o TTTTTm o mmmmmm ommmmen
Mr. Chan Shu Kin BREERE 264 = 2 207 = = 493
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung ROREE 264 - 2 27 - - 493
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu ERELE 240 = 20 207 = S 467
768 = 64 621 = = 1453
Total & 868 8,192 1,287 8,350 8 = 18,780
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @ &= EMAR QT
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9

BRI

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 9

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

(Continued)

Aggregate
emoluments
paid to or
receivable

by directors
in respect of
their services
as directors,
whether of
the Company
or its subsidiary

Tl

EEEANRER (&)

() EERFERITHASMS
(#)

Aggregate
emoluments
paid to or
receivable by
directors in
respect of

their other
services in
connection
with the
management of
the affairs of
the Company or
its subsidiary

undertakings undertakings Total
EERETES
BEMEXNR EEnEH
FE R 2 B & EEARQAAR
BE(Tw EHNEARXEHR
RN BB mEX M
HHE A B R W ER 2
E3 ) 2l ABEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT
For the year ended HE-T—)\&F
31 March 2018 EE=EF=0E1k
FE 6,647 150 6,797
For the year ended BHE-_Z—+tF
31 March 2017 =J5|=qr= I8/l
FE 18,780 - 18,780
Notes: W&
(a) Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid or receivable (a) EN—REFZHE RAREFEE

in respect of that person’s other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the company or its subsidiary

undertakings.

(b) Includes estimated money value of other non-cash benefits: share
options.
(c) Mr. Wong Kwok Leung resigned as the chief executive officer of the

Company with effect from 28 January 2019.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited % @&
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) Mr. Li Zhenjun was removed from office of the chairman of the
board of directors of the Company and suspended as director of
the Company with effect from 9 August 2018 and his office as an
executive director of the Company has been subsequently vacated
with effect from 14 March 2019.

(e) Mr. Poon Sum retired from office of executive director of the
Company with effect from 28 August 2017.

(f) Mr. Wu Zhou appointed as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 26 March 2018 and subsequently resigned with
effect from 7 December 2018.

(9) Mr. Hu Dehua was appointed as an executive director with effect
from 24 May 2016 and subsequently resigned with effect from 15
February 2018.

(h) Mr. Zaid Latif retired from office of non-executive director of the
Company on 26 August 2016.

(i) Mr. Poon Wai Kong was re-designated from an executive director
of the Company to a non-executive director of the Company on 4
January 2019.

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2017: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2017: Nil).

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & # &K=
Annual Report 2017-18 =&
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n‘/T\

9 EFENKRER (&

(a)

(b)

(c)

EERFETHRAEME
(%)
Ft 3 - ()

@  FEREEERBEAATEF@ERL
EEEARERIMG A-F-NF
NANBRERR AR BREEATR
TESZBBE-F—AF=A+mA
AR

(e) BREER-ZB—LFNAZTNEE
ERDRRITEERD -

f) SMNEER-_F-NF=ZA=-1XA
BRERADFRNTES BER-F
—NFE+=AtB#E-

(9) AEELER T —A"FRA-+MA
BETAPITES HER-Z—N\F
ZAt+RBEffT-

(h) Zaid Latif E AR =T —XFENAZ+AX
BIREARDAFRITERB -

(i) BEREER-Z-NF-ANBEAR
RERTEEHERAARFNTE
=o

ESRLERER

FAHEEEC WA IER
EMRLEREREN (ZF—t4F:
&) -

MENEERBEMEAE=T
XK E

BE_Z- ) \F=A=+—HIt
FE  ARFLERENE SRS
MAEAE=TxHRE(=F
—tEFE) -

EEMERRAA
—tE - N\FEEHRE

209



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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9 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors

Save as disclosed in Note 35(b) during the year ended
31 March 2018, there is no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such directors during the
year (2017: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company'’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2017:
Nil).

10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2017: four) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in Note 9. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2017: one) individuals were as follows:

9 EERAIKER @)

10

(d) BRAUES ESZEF

(e)

TEREAEERRZHEAZ
B EERRHMRSEZ

BB SE35(0)FTIR T & SN B E
—E-NEZA=Z+—BLItF
B RER BENES BE2
ZEGEEREEEE A=A
ZER EERREMRS (ZF
—tFE)

EERNRG REHENZ
EARER

E R FE R AARE
EMERA QR ZEEARDT
XBEHIEERS RHEREH
FHEBE A EAE EREE RS
(ZZ—+tF:8)-

FWERSHEBAL

rEEFHESHABALED EP
=2 (ZF—tF mR)R/RARAE
ERENMESERMF - HEM A

“EEF R AT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Salaries and other emoluments e MEMMe 4,754 592
Contributions to defined TE B8 it SR RET 8] Y 4 3K
contribution retirement plan 29 18
Share-based payments LARR 0 2 1+ 2 5RIR - 520
4,783 1=~1.30
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t &= £ EHR AR
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e R ERR M

10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

11

(Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

10 HFNBESHWEIAL (&

m]ﬂ&

BENB SN FIATEHE -

Number of individuals

AR

2018 2017
—EF-N\F —T—+F

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 Y5 1,000,001TE
75 %1,500,0007C = 1

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 71,500,001 L&
78 #2,000,0007T 1 =

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 752,500,001 TE
75 #3,000,0007T 1 =

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the above directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2017: Nil).

RAFE AREYEAEFNLAESR
FhEEEFALINEDHE  FH
MAREE IR MAREE R A RE K
ERBREE (22— 1F &) -

FINANCE COSTS, NET 11 BB FEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Interest expenses on: MERAX:

- bonds —fE% (52,258) (37,796)
— bank borrowings —R1TIEE (751) (571)
(53,009) (38,367)
Interest income on bank deposits HRITIF R FEWA 61 106
Finance costs, net BB AN FEE (52,948) (38,261)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
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e TR MR

12 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) 12 FRABBER(FBX)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT

Current income tax BOEAFT1S A
Hong Kong profits tax BEANEH (851) (1,873)
Under-provision of prior years BAFERETR 127 (22)
(724) (1,895)
Deferred income tax (Note 30) EIEFTBEL (MI5E30) 1,570 252
Income tax credit/(expense) FrEsiEe, (AX) 846 (1,643)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed

The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No
which introduces the two-tiered profits
was signed into law on 28 March 2018

. 7) Bill 2017 (the "Bill")
tax rates regime. The Bill
and was gazetted on the

following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the

first HK$2 million of profits of the qual

ifying group entity will be

taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat

rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong

Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 1
assessable profit for both years.

6.5% of the estimated

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation in the relevant jurisdiction of which the
most significant jurisdictions are the PRC which has a corporate
income tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%). Under the applicable

corporate tax law in Macau, profits tax

is charged at 12% (2017:

12%) of the estimated assessable profits.

No current Macau complementary

corporate tax and PRC

corporate income tax have been provided for as the Group did

not have any assessable profits in Macau nor in the PRC for the

year (2017: Nil).

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2 @& =% E
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—+&E— \FHFEH
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2,000,0007T &Y 4 | 1 JA16.5% 9 £ 2
B - THFAFEHERBTERNEE
B R FG HEIR16.5% 5 — =R
BANFIE

ARNREERE  BEHEFSH MR AT
FRHNCEERAMERAME YT E
Ko BBFEHIZMETE G ERM
M LA16.5%5E o

N A BT SR AR R R A R 4R
BERITHRESK  Eh&FEMNENE
BEPE PRENCEMEHMRES
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(Continued)

12 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

There is no tax impact relating to components of other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:

Nil).

The income tax credit/(expense) for the year can be reconciled
to the (loss)/profit before taxation per the consolidated income

statement as follows:

12 Fr8
(4)

%

BER, (FX)

RBE_ZT-N\F=ZA=+—BLF

E-HBERREMEmEKEIRN 2B

FE(ZE—FF |E)o

FRMGEHESR, () @Rk
RZBHA (BR),CRFIHERAT

2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
(Restated)
(& =51)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (E518), R A (201,657) 94,215
Tax at the domestic income tax rates IZANHFT{SH T £ 16.5%
of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZZ2—+F:165%)
FTEHRIE (33,273) 15,545
Tax effect of different tax rates of READ EARE RS 2
subsidiaries operating in other MHEARIB =R
jurisdictions M E (1,002) (12,295)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERATBERERDN
differences not recognised ik 24,873 (222)
Tax effect of utilisation of AL RIERTIEEED
previously recognised tax losses M E (820) (44)
Tax effect of tax losses RERRIBEEL
not recognised WM& 4,275 14,077
Tax effect of income not taxable R ON Y -2
for tax purpose (6,584) (28,888)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A] F1 7 3 Sz FO Tl 75 52 &
for tax purpose 11,842 13,448
Effect of tax concession MIBRREZ HE (30) =
Under-provision of income tax in MAEFEMSEHBETR
previous years (127) 22
Income tax (credit)/expense Figfi (%) FAx (846) 1,643

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NT\

13

14

BRI

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic (loss)/earnings per share attributable to the owners of
the Company is calculated by dividing (loss)/profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year.

13

gk (B8 BF

ARTEE A IESRER ()
BRI TRBA R TEA ARG ER (5
1),/ % FIB IR M E BATIRM 2 01
FHUEE -

2018 2017
=E-N\F —+t %
(Restated)
(K2E5)
(Loss)/profit attributable to RRARHE AES
the owners of the Company (B#8)&F (B¥BTT)
(HK$'000) (199,630) 95,188
Weighted average number of BEEBITT @R 2 T
ordinary shares in issue Faz)
(shares in thousands) 7,593,433 7,519,884
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX (BB &F
(HK cents) &AL (2.63) 1.27

As detailed in Note 2(b)(iii), upon the early adoption of HKFRS
9, the profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2017 decreased from HK$117,760,000
to HK$95,188,000 as restated and accordingly, the earnings
per share for the year ended 31 March 2017 was restated from
HK$1.57 per share to HK$1.27 per share.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, the computation
of diluted (loss)/earnings per share has not assumed the exercise
of the Company’s outstanding share options since the adjusted
exercise prices of these options were higher than the average
market prices of shares for the outstanding period during years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of any
dividend during the year (2017: Nil).

Tou Rong Chang Fu broup meted RREEEEERA
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AR FE2(0) (i) FT EF A - IR R RN A
B ISR EER SR HE—_T—+
F=A=+—REEAREHEE AEMN
2 5% F B 7 #117,760,0007C 58 D B 78
#95,188,0007T (L&) « # - B =
T +F=A=t+—HILEFEZER
B EERAE1 57BN ABRBE
1.2778 °

BE_ZT-\FR-_F—+tF=A
=+-RLEE AESRES (BH)
/BRI RBRAR T Z mARITEER
BETE RARRBE_ZT—\FR
EtF=H=FT—"HIFEARAZK
ﬁ@ﬂﬁ&%%kﬁzm EITEER
Rty 2 FHHE -

HX 0N

EXgTEERFRNIRNEMERS
T—tF8E)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR B A

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% -BERZE
Furniture,
oil Plant and Motor fixture and  Construction-
properties machinery vehicles equipment in-progress Total
HE-
RhEE BEERE AE EBERE HEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EETT EETT EETT BETT BETT BETT

Cost: ﬁﬂifﬁ 3
At 1 April 2016 RZE-AEmA-A 131,061 68,756 5,466 10,126 16,340 231,749
Additions AE 3,076 - 1,483 4,892 - 9,451
Disposals HE - 8) (732) (319) = (1,059)
Exchange realignment ERAE (7,891) @) (219 (65) 910) (9,087)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—-H 126,246 68,746 5,998 14,634 15,430 231,054
Additions RE - - - 3,594 3,858 7,452
Exchange realignment R AE 13,686 2 294 175 1375 15,532
At 31 March 2018 W-E-\F=ZR=+-H 139,932 68,748 6,292 18,403 20,663 254,038

Accumulated depreciation ~ BREHTERHE:
and impairment:

At 1 April 2016 RZZE-~EMA—-A 82,471 46,540 5,431 8,573 1,436 144,451
Depreciation for the year FRME (F37)

(Note 7) 3,801 4,307 186 1,062 - 9,356
Eliminated on disposals B E B i - ) (591) (240) = (838)
Exchange realignment ERAE (4,934) - (198) (48) n (5,181)
At 31 March 2017 R-Z—t§=A=1+-H 81,338 50,840 4,828 9,347 1,435 147,788
Depreciation for the year FRFE (Fx7)

(Note 7) 3972 4,153 279 1,538 = 9,942
Impairment losses HEER (M6R)

(Note 6 and (a)) 42,706 - - - 17,904 60,610
Exchange realignment ERAE 8,758 2 274 84 - 9,118
At 31 March 2018 W=E-\F=A=+-H 136,774 54,995 5,381 10,969 19,339 227,458

Carrying value: REE:
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-\$=A=1+-H 3,158 13,753 91N 7,434 1,324 26,580
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=R=1+—H 44,908 17,906 1,170 5287 13,995 83,266
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @t R EEEHR A A
Annual Report 2017-18 —ZT—+Z— \FFERE 2 1 5
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n‘/T\

BRI

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Co

ntinued)

Notes:

(@)

Impairment assessment for crude oil segmemt

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group entered into a “technical
service and revenue sharing” agreement (“the Master Agreement”) and
a supplemental agreement to the Master Agreement (“the Supplemental
Agreement”) with an independent third party (“the Contractor”) with
effect from 1 January 2015 to 1 September 2028, pursuant to which the
Contractor is to provide on-site technical and management services to the
Group in respect of the Group's exploration and production activities on its
oilfields in the location of Heilongjiang Province of the PRC. According to
the Master Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement, the Contractor
is also responsible for all operating costs as well as capital investment costs
in drilling new wells and other oilfield related long term investment. The
Group receives 0%, 10% and 15% of revenue from total crude oil sales
from year one, years two to three and year four onwards during the service
period respectively. The Group can, at its discretion and without recourse,
terminate the Master Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement by giving
a 6-month notice. The Contractor has not commenced to provide the service
according to the Master Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement up to
the date when the consolidated financial statement are authorised for issue.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the management performed
impairment assessments on oil properties and construction-in-progress and
oil exploitation licences relating to the crude oil segment, representing an
individual cash generating unit (“CGU") as the operation of the oilfields
located at the Heilongjiang Province of the PRC has been suspended since
2015. Besides, due to decrease in oil price dropped significantly during 2018,
the management assessed and estimated that additional capital injection to
the crude oil segment will not generate additional cash flow to the Group.

For the purpose of impairment assessment, the recoverable amount of
the CGU as at the end of the reporting period is estimated, based on fair
value less cost of disposal (“FVLCOD") calculation determined with the
assistance of Apex Reservoir Service Inc., an independent valuer. The FVLCOD
calculation used fair value of the CGU calculated using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets provided by the management and approved
by the Board covering a nine-year (2017: tenth-year) period, which is the
remaining contractual period of the oil exploration licences, less relevant
cost of disposal. The recoverable amount of the CGU is estimated to be
lower than the carrying amounts of these property, plant and equipment
and intangible asset and accordingly, impairment loss of approximately
HK$42,706,000, HK$17,904,000 and HK$92,310,000 are recognised for oil
properties, construction-in-progress under property, plant and equipment
and oil exploitation licenses under intangible assets respectively, on a pro
rata basis with reference to the carrying amount of these assets before
impairment, for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Impairment loss is not allocated to plant and machinery of the Group located
at the Republic of Kazakhstan acquired in previous acquisitions of subsidiaries
which belong to a separate CGU. Detail of impairment assessment for plant
and machinery was set out in Note 16(b).

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \« REREEEERA
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—+&E— \FHEEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(b)

()

Impairment assessment for crude oil segment (Continued)

The key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow model are as follows:

B R AR M EE

n‘/T\

15 Y% BERKE (@

PR &E - ()

(a)

B2 8 2 RAE R (R

MERRERERAEAZ ETEH/ROT

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+t
Weighted average oil price per tonne (RMB) S WA I F 9 mE (ARE)
for the forecast period 2,894 3,006
Estimated total extraction of oil fhEtAmAREE (TAM)
(thousand tonnes) 23 1,370
Discount for lack of marketability Bz Mg B VR A T 12.0% 12.0%
Discount rate BhIR & 16.5% 16.9%

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, a decrease in the weighted
average oil price per tonne for the forecast period by 1% and a decrease in
estimated total extraction of oil by 1% would result in a further impairment
loss of approximately HK$238,000 and HK$904,000 respectively.

Impairment assessment for plant and machinery

Plant and machinery of the Group represents rigs located at the Republic
of Kazakhstan acquired in previous acquisitions of subsidiaries. During the
current year, the management performed an impairment assessment on the
plant and machinery as these assets were determined idle during a review of
property, plant and equipment conducted during the year. For the purpose of
impairment assessment, the recoverable amount of the plant and equipment
as at the end of the reporting period is estimated, based on fair value (being
second hand value of similar plant and machinery) less cost of disposal
calculation determined with the assistance of Colliers International (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent valuer. The recoverable amount of the plant
and machinery is estimated to be higher than the its carrying amount and
accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised for the year ended 31
March 2018 (2017: nil).

Environmental rehabilitation investment in the PRC

Due to the underground oil exploitation method adopted by the Group,
the Group has not incurred any significant expenditure on environmental
rehabilitation since its establishment. There is, however, no assurance
that stringent environmental policies and/or standard on environmental
rehabilitation will not be implemented by the relevant authorities in the PRC
in the future which require the Group to undertake environmental measures.
The financial position of the Group may be adversely affected by any
environment liabilities, which may be imposed under such new environment
policies and/or standards.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
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n‘/T\

16

BRI

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16 REW=

net book value of approximately HK$103,887,000 (2017: HK$106,118,000)
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 27(c)

(2)).

Tou Rong Chang Fu broup meted RRREES
—tE-\FFERE
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost: RAE :
At beginning and end of the year RETNRER 122,668 122,668
Accumulated depreciation and T ERME:
impairment:
At beginning of the year REH) 16,550 14,319
Depreciation for the year (Note 7) FRE (ME7) 2,231 2,231
At end of the year RER 18,781 16,550
Net book value BRE A 103,887 106,118
Notes: B 7 <
(a) Amounts recognised in consolidated income statement for the (a) RGEANBERBAREYECSHE
investment properties
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Rental income ALBA 2,928 2,235
Direct operating expenses from ELERSWRAZYEZ
properties that generated EELERX
rental income (375) (727)
Direct operating expenses from REERSBAZYMEZ
properties that did not generate HELERX
rental income (138) (166)
2,415 1,342
(b) An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties was (b) ARAAREEREYENB L EET BB ERD
performed by independent valuer, Collier International (Hong Kong Limited) BOBEBEMERR (B8 ARAA(ZF—
(2017: Ascent Partners Valuation Service Ltd.), to determine the fair value of FNAFEZAERLAB)ET KKAERE
the investment properties as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 by adopting direct B EEEREMER-T—\FR-FT—t
comparison approach. As at 31 March 2018, the aggregate fair values of the F=ZRA=+—BZRAFE-RZZT—N\F=A
Group's investment properties amounted to approximately HK$ 138,400,000 =+—H AEEREVEZ A TEERREE
(2017: HK$118,800,000). 138,400,0007T (=F —+4F : #%118,800,000
JT) °
(c) As at 31 March 2018, the Group's investment properties in Hong Kong with () RZB-N\F=A=+—8H FAKEUREE

KR E MR BREFEL A% 103,887,0007T
—-£ 4 : #%106,118,0007T) B fEHE -
ARSI FARENETEE (MHE27(02)) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

AT
INTANGIBLE ASSETS BEEE
il
exploitation Customer
Goodwill licences  relationship Others Total
AR
HE B EFBRE Hit CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(FizEa) (P7Eb) (FitzEc)
Cost: BAE:
At 1 April 2016 RZE-R"FEHA—H 29,912 243,711 30,027 1,733 305,383
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wk — R 2 )

(Note 33) (Ff5E33) - 907 6,898 7,805
Exchange realignment ERARE (1,825) (14,872) (905) = (17,602)
At 31 March 2017 R-E—+F=ZR=1+—H 28,087 228,839 30,029 8,631 295,586
Addition NE - - 500 500
Exchange realignment EHRAE 3,008 24,509 1,492 - 29,009
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE—-\E=ZA=1+—H 31,095 253,348 31,521 9,131 325,095

Amortisation and impairment: # 8 &R {E :
At 1 April 2016 RZT—-"FMA—AH 13,872 127,153 21,124 1,733 163,882
Amortisation for the year ENEH

(Note 7) (KizE7) - 9,958 1,451 - 11,409
Exchange realignment EH AR (847) (7,768) (363) = (8,978)
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+$=R=+—-A 13,025 129,343 22,212 1,733 166,313
Amortisation for the year FR#H

(Note 7) (PEE7) - 10,408 1,548 = 11,956
Impairment losses BEEE (e - (b))

(Note 6, (b) and (c)) - 92,310 6,931 - 99,241
Exchange realignment i 5 % 1,395 14,460 830 = 16,685
At 31 March 2018 R-E-\E=ZR=1+—H 14,420 246,521 31,521 1,733 294,195

Carrying value: REE:
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\§¥=ZR=+—H 16,675 6,827 - 7,398 30,900
At 31 March 2017 R-E—+#=ZRB=1+—H 15,062 99,496 7,817 6,898 129,273
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted CREREEEBRAA
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nVT\

BRI

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(9

17

BEE (&)

B 7
As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, entire goodwill of the Group s allocated to (a) Z-NEFE=F —t =ZA=+—H'%K
the commodity trading segment representing an individual CGU. SEE2HEBHESIEEARES D MU
1IEJL%$§$$T¢1§U
For the purpose of impairment assessment, the recoverable amount of the RBETE RBRERARZREEEEML 2T
CGU as at end of the reporting period is estimated based on value in use W [B] & 88 T IR 6 A EE (R T - sk (et SR AR IR
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets prepared ERERENESSMAERERAFHN (=
by the management and approved by the Board covering a five-year period T—+F AF)ZHEAEEREZREEREE
(2017: five-year). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated A E - BARFHECHESRENUNERE
using growth rates estimated by management taking into consideration the A RIS EER At 2 B REHEE -
economic condition of the market.
The recoverable amount of the CGU containing goodwill is higher than the EEBBZRCELABNZKESERRE
carrying amount of the assets of the CGU and accordingly, the management SEABMCEERRE KUt EREBETH
determined that there is no impairment on the CGU for the year ended 31 E-T- \F=ZA=T+-BHILFEHERGE
March 2018 (2017: nil). BENHBERE(ZT—tF &)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows: ARG EERBEZEERRMT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+F
Growth rate on revenue for the first BREFE 2 REERE
five years 2.9% 2.0%
Growth rate on revenue beyond BAEREAFEE Z WESERE
the first five years 2.9% 2.0%
Inflation rate BIR= 2.0% 2.0%
Discount rate R & 20.3% 16.7%
Management determined the weighted average growth rate based on past EEEBREBATRAREEMISHE 2 AHE
performance and its expectations of market development. The discount rates TEMNEFIGERR - FrRA 2 TR R BR R KL
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the operating segment. R E DI ARRAR - BEERA
The management believe that any reasonable possible change in there key uf;j%@ﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁm}gzgzgﬁﬁﬁgﬁ“
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause HHZIMEEES: }HT@%B{E&%E{E
the carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the aggregate of its recoverable Az A AR E R B E AT U@ 48 58 o
amount.
Oil exploitation licences represent two rights for oil exploitation located at (b) BRI EELRNFEEZEIZOMEL
the Heilongjiang Province of the PRC which will expire in 2027 and 2028 SHFRER SO BR_E_tER_T -\
respectively. Detail of impairment assessment prepared by management was FER - BHEBRERIZAETGEFEINW
set out in Note 15(a). #15(a) °
Customer relationship arising from acquisition of a subsidiary has been () EWE BB ARELEZRFBAGRE LB

impaired as the customer base has been changed during current year
compare to the acquisition date of the subsidiary.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @R EEEHR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

18 HOH

B R AR M EE

=N 3

n‘/T\

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Cost of investments in associates B DRI E 2 AR
(Note (a)) (K@) 75,592 75,592
Contribution to unlisted associates MIELEMEE AR ZHE 9,327 9,327
Share of post-acquisition SR 2 EEE
comprehensive losses (84,919) (84,919)
Note: B 7 <
(a) Particulars of the Group's principal associate are set out as follows: (a) AEBMEBHENAZFBHINGT
Name of Place of Proportion of voting Measurement
the associate incorporation  power held indirectly Principal activities method
BERNR AR o A RS2 itk B BESERE-LS FEEH ATREE
2018 2017
=B-N\FE —T—+F
Lee Shing Mining Co. Ltd Hong Kong 43% 43%  Investment holding (Note (b)) Equity
(“Lee Shing Mining”)
MEEEBR AR ([FIKEZE]) i RE R (FFED)) & AR
Topclass Global Investment Ltd. British Virgin 47% 47%  Investment holding Equity
(“Topclass”) Island
Topclass Global Investment Ltd. EBREAES RAEER A

([Topclass |)

The Group held 43% equity interests in Lee Shing Mining, a private company
which directly holds 80% equity interests in Guizhou Rongfa Mining
Company Limited (& /N &85 % R 2 7)) ("Guizhou Rongfa Mining”),
which possesses an exclusive exploration right of vanadium mining in
Guizhou Province, the PRC. During the year ended 31 March 2016, Guizhou
Rongfa Mining did not renew its exploration right in view of the continuously
declining vanadium price, resulting in the Group’s share of an impairment
loss of approximately HK$21,409,000. Accordingly, the interest in Lee Shing
Mining was fully impaired in the year ended 31 March 2016 and there are no
movements in the Group’s interests in associates.

Lee Shing Mining is a private company and there is no quoted market price
available for its shares. There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group's interest in Lee Shing Mining.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted
Annual Report 2017-18 =&
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n‘/T\

BRI

19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

19 FE{IF

IR RS REME

RECEIVABLES Wk IE
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Deposits paid for acquisitions of 2T B E Rk
property, plant and equipment Bl PAEn 32,324 45,907
Deposit paid for investment MREFRN2ES 5,700 33,271
Advances to suppliers (Note (a)) M EH R (@) 120,849 163,240
Other receivables and prepayments  E th & W Zk 18 K T8~ 218
(Note (b)) (Mt5ED)) 62,665 58,289
Amount due from related parties JE W 2 388 77 R IE
(Note 35(b)) (HI5E35(0)) - 26,610
221,538 327,317
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (MEc))
(Note (c)) (46,399) (92,765)
175,139 234,552
Less: Amount shown under B IERBEEE
non-current assets TRy R& 5 (52,391) (32,346)
Amount shown under current assets R B EEE N5~ & 58 122,748 202,206

Notes:

(a) The balance represented the advances to the suppliers for trading of
commodities and chemical products. The advances to suppliers (net of
impairment allowance) at 31 March 2018 and 2017 were fully utilised
through purchase of commodities and chemical products as at the date when
the consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \« MREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(0

Included in other receivables and prepayments represents the non-refundable
prepayment to bond placing agents for investor relationship service
amounting to HK$41,957,000 as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$36,766,000).
The Group paid the investor relationship service fee in advance at a
discounted lump sum and recognised a prepayment when the amount was
paid. The prepaid investor relationship service fee is amortised on a straight
line basis over the service contract terms.

Allowance for credit losses of prepayments, deposits and other receivables

e IR R AR B A

19 FEfFE-REeE R EMmE
e Q| <,..;=é:>

B - ()

(b)

FAAHEMERRBEBREMREER -2
—“NE=ZA=+-—BRBEEBERE
MEFEERBEHZATREBMAR
18 %5 #41,957,000 (Z T —t & ;%&%
36,766,0007T ) © 7 5 [ 3% 47 $0{8 12 A

M %A E BR RS B R A R Iﬁiiﬁ
BHBAENF - BNREEBEREER
HEERREE QBN E G -

BENFOR B REMBRKFTBZEEER
g

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Financial assets EMEE
Other receivables (Note 3(a)(ii) H Wk TE (B RE3(a)i) ) 1,947 831
Non-financial assets FeMEE
Deposit paid for acquisitions of RUEY - B KR
property, plant and equipment (Note (i) B 2% (Hi&Ed)) 13,933 48,098
Deposit paid for investment (Note (ii)) MBI 2 RS (M) 5,700 =
Advances to suppliers (Note (i)) At FE R VR 2 Bk (B EEG)) 22,530 32,059
Other receivables H i e YRR 2,289 11,777
46,399 92,765

Details of impairment assessment for financial assets under other receivables
are set out in Note 3(a)(ii).

(i) The management considered certain deposit paid for acquisitions
of property, plant and equipment and advances to suppliers paid in
previous years were impaired as the Group was unable to receive
the property, plant and equipment and materials purchased from the
suppliers.

(ii) Included in the amount represented the impairment loss on
deposit for acquisition of financial assets at FVTOCI amounted
to HK$5,700,000. Detail of the investment and the impairment
assessment are set out as per Note 20(b).

HipERRBEE T2 ¢ BEEREN G EH
T EE3@) i) °

) EREEARRBESEKEYE
ERBHBENZETRE RAKEHS
2 BREHRAE  REAERER
B EHREREIFEE DR BRE R
R TR -

(i) FIAZ S EERKBIR AT EEBEAM
2EKBRIIEZEREEMNZEESZ
A E1E A #55,700,00070 ° BRI E
FOmE AT 2 1B R M 3E20(0) ©

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited #Z @i &= K EER A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nVT\

BRI

20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20 AP EEBHMEZEIW
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AR EMEE
INCOME

2018 2017
—E-N\E Bt F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST IT
(Restated)
(&%)
At 1 April RMEA—H 29,241 24,533
Addition i il - 7,000
Gain/(loss) on fair value change REMEEHEEERAFE
recognised in other gea (EE)
comprehensive income 4,635 (2,292)
Disposal o (29,797) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 4,079 29,241
Unlisted equity investment ELETMRARE
(Note (a) and (b)) (FF3E(a) & (b)) 4,079 6,129
Listed equity investment (Note (c)) ETBRAEE (HsEC) = 23,112
4,079 29,241

Notes:

(a)

Included in the financial assets at represents the Group’s long-term
investment of 19.9% equity interests in an unlisted entity engaging in
trading of fuel in Hong Kong. The fair value of this unlisted equity investment
is determined, using cash flow projections with the assistance of Colliers
International Hong Kong Limited, an independent valuer (Note 3(c)(ii)).

The listed equity investment represents the Group’s long-term investment of
8.6% equity interests in Gold Tat Group International Limited (”Gold Tat")
as at 31 March 2017. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
disposed of such investment with carrying amount of HK$23,112,000. Upon
disposal, total fair value gain of HK$6,685,000 was accounted to other
comprehensive income and the related FVTOCI reserves was debited by
HK$24,960,000 and transferred to accumulated losses.

Financial assets at FVTOCI are denominated in HK$.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited ¥Rl R EEE AR AE
Annual Report 2017-18 —ZE—+ % — \FEEHRE
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(b)

()

FASREAENEASERN —RESBHEMR
HESMIE LT EEN19.9% i RAKE -
ZELETEAREZ A FEEB L EEMSN
B YRR (B8) ERARZ B THRAR
& & TR (M EE3(Q)(i) ) 5

ETREREEARER Tt F=A=+—
BReESEEKRAERDAE ([£E])68.6%
MAEEL 2 REBRE-REE-T—\F=A
=+—HIEE AEREHEZSRE (REE
RE¥623,112,0007T) R E% - R FEKZ
4B EE 4 %56,685,0007T JyaT A E 2 U &
BAIR 1 B35 1B H th 2 B W a5 5| AR R T B B
#£24,960,0007C X H & = Rt 518 -

BATEEBEMEAKRINEZ SREEN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES

B R AR M EE

n\/T\

21 B 5 EWFIE

2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F —ET—+F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
(Restated) (Restated)

(geE5) (=E5)

Trade receivables féi ) FEW R IA 598,677 456,580 359,743

Allowance for credit losses = EEIERE (72,744) (44,843) (28,271)

At 31 March R=RA=+—A~ 525,933 411,737 331,472

Notes: B 3 <

(a) As at 31 March 2018, included in the trade receivables were amounts due (a) RZZE—/\F=ZA=+—8 BHERKFERE
from clearing houses of approximately HK$3,452,000 (2017: HK$2,027,000) FEUK 4 E R R IA 4 7 #53,452,0007T (=T —+
and amounts due from securities brokerage clients of approximately F A ¥2,027,0000) REKREBHFELT K
HK$781,000 (2017: HK$327,000). THA)7E#5781,0007T ( —Z—+ 4 : E#327,000

T e

(b) Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit (b) REMEAFEFR  NEESERABEET
assessment system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and BRRAEEBERFPZEEERRRTEFE
defines credit limits by customer. The management considers adequate HRFE - EEERARNFRECHELCHEREF K
allowance has been made at end of the year. Balances which are neither FEEMEREZREG ARG A BRIFER
past due nor impaired are all receivable from customers with good historical BRELHELARIFEEERZES 2 BWKIE -
repayment records and good credit quality.

(0 Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to maintain tight (c) EREPRERFHRE AEBMBEHH MR
control over its outstanding trade receivables in order to minimise credit risk. W el E 5 MR IER AR ARERE
Overdue balances are regularly monitored by management. B o EIEEE BRI B AR AR o

(d) The settlement terms of trade receivables attributable to the securities (d) BHCLEBREE P ERYPRE BEERB
brokerage business are two days after the trade date. For the remaining )«%EIHMEWE RAKE 2 B XM %’ =4
business of the Group, trade receivables are on general terms of 30 to 120 S RKKIETIIR30E 1208 2 — R IEFGE
days.

(e) Aging analysis of gross trade receivables based on invoice date is as follows: (e) BRI TEABBRERABZRRS TN

™~:

2018 2017 2016

—E2-N\F —T—+tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT BT T

Less than 30 days A E30H 4,423 342,332 178,547

More than 30 days #BiBH30H 18

but less than 3 months R=EA 20,596 - 72,463
More than 3 months HBB=EAE

but less than 1 year TR—F 534,973 104,109 94,768

More than 1 year BB —F 38,685 10,139 13,965

598,677 456,580 359,743

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted
Annual Report 2017-18 =&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21 BZEWNFEIE (#)

Notes: (Continued)

P &E - (s

(f) The carrying amounts of trade receivables are net of allowance for credit ()
losses denominated in the following currencies:

B5REGR (MR EEEERE) 2R
ETATIESHE

2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F —E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEF T BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (eE5)
HKS oL 51,024 66,062 12,545
RMB AR 271,633 64,915 250,370
us$ E 203,276 280,760 68,557
525,933 411,737 331,472
£
22 LOANS RECEIVABLE 22 EEWE R
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\E —T—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(=&E5) (=&E5)
Loans receivable from money lending E&T%%WZFEW
business (Note (a)) ER (ME@) 58,000 104,860 19,913
Margin loans receivable (Note (b)) KELISZ??E%,\M
(Ht5E (b)) 31,598 17,074 =
89,598 121,934 19,913
Less: Allowance for credit losses W EEBEERE
— loans receivable —ERER (7,367) (10,898) (1,673)
— margin loans receivable —BRFEER (8,298) - =
(15,665) (10,898) (1,673)
73,933 111,036 18,240
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \x REEEEARAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

B R AR M EE

an\

22 Jﬁq&j‘fﬂ'}\ II‘E)

B 7 <
Loans receivable to the extent of approximately HK58,000,000 (2017: (a) RAEREABLE=FRERBEREBME
HK$104,860,000), which arise from the money lending business of & 2 FEICE FR 478 #558,000,0000T (ZF —+
providing short-term loans to independent third parties in Hong Kong, are 4 1 ##5104,860,0007T) * Ty A EHE -
denominated in HK$.
The carrying amounts are determined using effective interest rates ranging BREEERAN T EF2%E54% (ZT—+5F:
from 22% to 54% (2017: 17% to 36%) per annum and are repayable with 17%%36% ) 2 B F LT - REEFE R
fixed terms ranging from three to twenty four months. BAF=Z=+M@EA -
As at 31 March 2018, loans receivable of approximately HK$9,820,000 RZZE—-N\F=ZR=+—H ERERDEBE
(2017: HK$58,438,000) bearing interests ranging from 24% to 54% (2017: 9,820,0007T ( =F —+ 4 : ##58,438,0007T)
17% to 36%) per annum, are unsecured and expected to be settled by BN T EF24%E54% (ZT—EF 1 17%
the borrowers within 1 year. The management considers that the second £36% ) REEREREHER —FRHEERA
mortgage loans are classified as unsecured loans due to the impediment B8 - R IR B3R 18 1) 3 77 5 PR B A R BESE
in repossession of the mortgage properties and the practical difficulties to ARRAZE-RRERAREEOTHREE
ascertain the residual collateral value after claim by first mortgagee. FHEERAS HERBRRZEE _RIBE
ROBREBRARER
As at 31 March 2018, loans receivable of approximately HK$48,180,000 RZT—N\F=ZA=+—H EBRERLBE
(2017: HK$46,422,000) bearing interests ranging from 22% to 36% (2017: 48,180,0007T ( — T — £ 4 : 5 ¥ 46,422,000
22% to 36%) per annum, are secured and expected to be settled by the ) 2R ENFHF2%E36% (ZT—+F:
borrowers within 1 year. These loans receivable are secured by unlisted equity 22%%36% ) REEREREBENR—FNEE
securities. RAEE - ZSERERIAIE ETRAEHE
?&ﬁ o
Interest income of approximately HK$15,941,000 (2017: HK$19,625,000) for FEERERKERZABERANER
non-credit impaired loans receivable has been recognised as revenue in the 15,941,0007T ( =& — £ 4 : B #19,625,000
consolidated income statement. L) ERRARERAERBEA -
The maturity profile of the loans receivable based on maturity date which are B AREE T R E 2 R EFRE RIS A G E
neither past due nor impaired is as follows: ZEBRERET
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Receivable on: LA B Hi 2 R R IE
1 month to 3 months —EAZE=@A - 74,320
More than 3 months but less than 1 year i@ =1{E 18 LR —4 14,528 3,569
14,528 77,889
As at 31 March 2018, included in loans receivable was advances to margin (b) RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—8 BREREER
clients in margin financing amounting to approximately HK$31,598,000 1%ﬂﬁmﬂé75ﬁ%?ﬁ%"ﬁ§)52¥ A7 W
(2017: HK$17,074,000), which are bearing interest at commercial rates, 31,598,0007T (= ZF — L4 : #%17,074,000
secured by the underlying pledged listed securities and are repayable on TO) TR EFIERT B LEREE R EhE
demand. FERRRAREREER-
In respect of the margin loans receivable advances to margin clients in PR DB 49 R 78 #523,300,000T (=T —+
margin financing with net carrying amount of approximately HK$23,300,000 1 8%17,074,0007T) 2 FRAME F HiE T
(2017: HK$17,074,000), the fair values of the collaterals of such margin BREFZEKFEERBRAME %ZEHEE
loans can be objectively ascertained to cover the outstanding amount of the FERRZAFEAEBREEAAEREH®RZ
loan balances. KEREE-
The Group's exposure to credit risk related to loans receivable are disclosed in () AEMATEZ A BRKERZ 8RBT
note 3(a)(ii). 3(a)(ii)# & °
The carrying amounts of the loans receivable are denominated in HK$. (d) EWE R R EREHE

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
Annual Report 2017-18 =%
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e TR MR

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

23 BAVFHEEBERSIRZ
TREE

2018 2017
—E-)N\F S
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(R2E5)
At 1 April RMA—H
Listed equity security in BB LMRAEH
Hong Kong (Note (a)) (FF3E@)) 46,747 256
Unlisted equity investment RETRAEEZRE
(Note (b)) (H5E(b)) 27,571 —
74,318 256
Less: Amount shown under BoERBEEETATRZ
non-current assets %8 (27,571) =
Amount shown under current assets REEEE NFIRZ &5 46,747 256

Notes:

(a)

The fair value is based on the current bid prices in an active markets.

Pursuant to the contractual agreement entered into between the Group,
the vendors and the guarantor in April 2015, the Group agreed to acquire
the 100% equity interest in Perfect Reward Limited (“Perfect Reward”) a
private entity incorporated in British Virgin Islands. Perfect Reward and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the liquefied natural gas (“LNG")
business and is a service provider of the LNG supply chain covering all the
upstream, midstream and downstream segments in the industry. A deposit
and prepayment of transaction costs amounted to HK$33,271,000 which
are refundable in aggregate was paid by the Group when it entered into the
agreement.

Subsequently, in February 2016, the Group, the vendors and the guarantor
mutually agreed and entered into a termination deed to terminate the
acquisition agreement and the deposit and prepayment of transaction costs
paid by the Group shall be refunded by the vendors forthwith without
interest with immediate effect. However, the vendors failed to refund the
deposit and prepayment of transaction costs to the Group after entering into
the termination deed with the Group.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @R EEEHR A
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—+&E— \FHEEHE
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e TR MR

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23 ATV EEBERIERZ
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) EREE (&)

Notes: (Continued) BRaE - ()
(b) (Continued) (b) (%)

With the management’s follow-up actions to recover the deposit paid, BEEEIEEHRIE R @ E R RERE
on 29 March 2018, the Group entered into a contractual agreement to RZZ—N\F=ZAZ+IB AEEFTIEHH
acquire 15% equity interests in Perfect Reward, at a cash consideration of # o RS RELEH33,271,0007T K Perfect
approximately HK$33,271,000, offset by the abovementioned deposit and RewardZ 15% % 4 + F 7% & [ 70 38 1 F /5 T X
prepayment of transaction costs paid by the Group in the prior years. In 2 PR SR 2 k@ KA RIE AT 85 o
addition, pursuant to the contractual agreement, the Group was granted UEAh - RIS R ek - A REER T ARSEA R
a put option exercisable by the Group within two years from the date of BB ST B B RN MTTHE 2 300 BA M - KA R
completion of the acquisition of which the Group has the irrevocable and SMEE TR ERE GG ET A IREREER
unconditional right to sell back the 15% equity interests in Perfect Reward to 33,271,0007T A& #1332 B 75 T 61 7 Perfect
the vendor of the contractual agreement at the price of HK$33,271,000. Reward; 2 15% % #

With reference to the valuation performed by an independent valuer, the BB UGEMET 2 EME Perfect
fair value of the investment in 15% equity interest in Perfect Reward as Reward15% /% ## < 1 & X FERE AL
at the date of acquisition amounted to HK$27,571,000. The fair value #£27,571,0007T - AU EE B Bl 2 & D FEER
of the investment as at the acquisition date was less than the aggregate AEERBEFEMINZRIRAZ RS R
carrying amount of the deposit and prepayment of transaction costs paid FERFEZ BREE Wt BE-_T-N\F=
by the Group in prior years and accordingly, impairment loss amounted to A=E+T—BUEFERHEHZBEREBENS
approximately HK$5,700,000 was provided for the year ended 31 March 7 #65,700,0007T ° L 5h - RAREHER AR AR
2018. Besides, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, as the Group AEERERBRMSBREREBEIDARER
was still unable to recover the deposit paid after the various follow-up B 2 iR e MASB A/ TEREHE B
actions taken by the management, the put option is not exercisable by the It RE TR A SRR ARER o

Group and accordingly, the put option is not recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company have elected to designate the investment in ARREREREBNBRATARNZIREETE
equity instruments at FVTPL. The fair value of this unlisted equity investment RAFEBBEEIIR -ZFELTRAREZ
is determined using cash flow projection with the assistance of Colliers REETBBE L HERSHBEEYEER (5
International Hong Kong Limited, an independent valuer (Note 3(c)(iii)). AR D BRAE &SR (M EE3(0i))
EE -

() Changes in fair values of financial assets at FVTPL are recorded in “other (© BAFESBERINEZEREEZATEE
losses, net” in the consolidated income statement. BRE R RA T g R - FEE ] R AR

(d) The carrying amounts of the financial assets at FVTPL are denominated in (d) RATESBERIIK eMEERDMBENLS
HKS. HatE-

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @t R EEEHR A A
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n‘/T\

24

BRI

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24 e RIBEE

AEREYS

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Cash at banks and on hand RITRFBERS 354,333 283,922
Less: Client trust bank balances B B EIRTTAR

(Note) (H3E) (5,410) (5,056)

Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBReSEIER 348,923 278,866

The carrying amounts of cash at banks and on hand are
denominated in the following currencies:

4T RFHR & WRBIETI A TFIRE
sHE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF T F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

HK$ ot 175,898 55,299
Us$ ETT 21,309 877
RMB AR 157,005 227,734
Others Hib 121 12
354,333 283,922

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’'s bank balances of
approximately HK$121,310,000 (2017: HK$54,774,000) were
deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

Note:

The Group maintains segregated deposit accounts with banks and authorised
institutions to hold clients” monies arising from its normal course of business. The
Group has classified the brokerage clients’ monies as client trust bank balances under
the current assets section of the consolidated statements of financial position, and
recognised the corresponding trade payables to the respective brokerage clients on
the grounds that they are liable for any loss or misappropriation of their brokerage
clients’ monies (Note 25(c)). Client trust bank balances are restricted and governed
by the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @ R ZEE AR A
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—+&E— \FHEEHE
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25 TRADE PAYABLES

e PR ERR M

2 5 EARA

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$000 HK$'000

BT BETT

Trade payables (Note (a)) 2 5 FETRIE (fFEa)) 19,085 132,005
Bills payable FE & - 3,192
19,085 135,197

Notes: Bt & -

(a) As at 31 March 2018, included in trade payables were amounts due to (a) RZFT—-\F=ZA=+—H BHEARER
clearing houses of approximately HK$4,969,000 (2017: HK$2,186,000) and 5 FE A 45 H BT IR K078 #4,969,000T (=2
amounts due to securities brokerage clients of approximately HK$4,884,000 —H4F  E#2,186,0007T) R EMEHLLE
(2017: HK$6,596,000). P RIAK) HE#4,884,0000T (Z B — L F: B

6,596,0007T) ©

(b) The majority of trade payables are repayable on demand except where (b) RN EHENFIBEAREREE HETE
certain trade payables to securities brokerage clients represents margin NEARLEEPHEREPRETXKBREF
deposits received from clients for their trading activities under normal course L??Z“ﬁ%?Eéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiZﬁEﬁ‘f?ﬁ%@ﬁl\°f§
of business. Only the excess amounts over the required margin deposits BB RESIRSEAKRERE
stipulated are repayable on demand.

(0 Trade payables to securities brokerage clients also include those payables () ERNBARLEF 2 ESEMNRERBETR
placed in trust and segregated accounts with authorised institutions of RRUBBZBIERRS ZENEROE
approximately HK$5,410,000 (2017: HK$5,056,000 (Note 24)). #5,410,0007T ( = F —+ 4 : # #5,056,0007T

(BEE24) ) ©

(d) No aging analysis is disclosed for amounts due to clearing house and (d) AREZRR BRNEEMRIEFELREPK
securities brokerage clients as in the opinion of the directors, it does not give B &G A UL AR AR AP 1B - E b 30 AR
additional value in the view of these businesses. BERER DT

(e) The following is an aging analysis of trade and bills payables excluding (e) NTABEZENFBERRER (TREEAEMR

clearing house and securities brokerage clients presented based on the date
of the bills at end of the year.

Aging analysis of trade payables is based on invoice dates as follows:

BHBLEP)RFERREZAMERERANZ
5| 2 BRER AT

BORNRERBERABPZIRRONNT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Less than 1 month 2—1@A 86 66,043

1 month to 3 months —ﬂilﬁ Z={EA 93 20,986
More than 3 months HBAE=MABTR—F

but less than 1 year 9,051 36,194

Over 1 year HBiA—F 2 -

9,232 123,223

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited #% 7
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e TR MR

. =7 o -
25 TRADE PAYABLES (Continued) 25 B 5 EFIE (#)
Notes: (Continued) B aE - ()
(e) (Continued) (e) ()
Aging analysis of bills payable is as follows: BNRBEZRESITIT
2018 2017
—2-N% e
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
More than 3 months but less than 1 year HBiB@=EAETE—F - 3,192
) The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables are denominated in the (f) BHRENERZEBET AT EEE:

following currencies:

2018 2017
—E-N% %
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
HK$ ok 10,268 44,189
us$ EVH 8,817 50,193
RMB ARK - 40,815
19,085 135,197
| == =
26 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 26 FEETFRIE R HAth B+ FIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ok e
Consideration payables FERRE - 5,640
Receipts in advance (Note (a)) AW RIE (KiFE@)) 13,874 104,232
Construction cost payables JE S B R AR AR 5,146 11,935
Other payables (Note (b)) H fth fE A /I8 (B EE(b)) 44,233 45,667
Loan payable (Note (c)) FERER (MEEQ)) 45,578 =
108,831 167,474
(a) The amount mainly represent the prepayment received from customer for (a) ZeBTEEERMMEIERE SHE P KR
trading of commodities and chemical products. 2 FEWRE -

23 2 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2 & & & £ E AR QA
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26 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

(b)

Included in other payables were commission payables to Fu Tian
International Trading Pte. Ltd. (“Fu Tian"”), the sales agent of the Group
and the salespersons of the Group of approximately HK$675,000 and
HK$14,875,000 respectively as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$11,968,000
and HK$10,700,000 respectively). During the year, commission expenses
of HK$15,083,000 and HK$4,175,000 (2017: HK$34,439,000 and
HK$10,700,000 respectively) were paid to Fu Tian and salespersons
respectively and the amount was included in selling and distribution
expenses. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Fu Tian and
salespersons are independent third parties, none of which is not related to
the Group or its related parties.

As at 31 March 2018, the amount mainly represent the loan payable to an
independent third party of HK$45,578,000. On 18 March 2018, the Group
borrowed an interest free loan with principal amount of HK$45,578,000
from an independent third party for business operation and the loan was
subsequently repaid by the Group on 21 April 2018.

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are denominated in the
following currencies:

e TR MR

26 FEETARIER HAE(SRIE

(%4&)

(b) RZT—\F=A=+—8 HtEMAFERE
& {Fu Tian International Trading Pte. Ltd. ([Fu
Tian | - REEZ HENRE) RAKEHEAE Y
€5 B4 A #E675,000T &1 14,875,000
T (ZZ—+F: 55 /R#EH¥11,968,000T
K #%10,700,0007T) e F R AL FL B
15,083,0007T & 7% #54,175,0007C (=T — 4
4 Bl /7% %34,439,0007T K 7% #10,700,0007T )
BRI FFru Tan RIHEAE - Mz EEE
ABHERDHEAEZN - RAREERA  Fu Tian
REEABYARBUE = HefE—HH
ANEBLHBEATHR-

(© RZE—-N\F=ZA=+—H ZeBEEkERE
N — & B L% =75 A ¥45,578,0007T 2 B K °
RZE-—NE=ZA+N\B AEEA—BBL
E=FER RS ERA L FEEN45,578,0007T
AREEBEBRZERBEEAEAEER T
—N\FOMA=+—HEE-

(@) B BURRE R ORI EE M AR
WEE

2018 2017

=B )\F —T—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

HK$ ol 37,352 38,896
RMB AR 71,479 38,977
us$ EP - 89,601
108,831 167,474

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited #Z @i &= K EER A A
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e PR ERR MR

27 BANK BORROWINGS

27 SR{TEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Bank borrowings, secured BEREBITEE 29,437 32,631
Bank borrowings, unsecured EIERRITEE 40 187
29,477 32,818
At 31 March 2018, the Group’s borrowings contained a RZE-—NF=ZA=+—H KEEE
repayment on demand clause. The Group’s borrowings were ESBERERKERBEI -AEEBER

repayable based on the scheduled repayment terms set out in the
loan agreements as follows:

BEEZHHEEHZBTEEGERE
Rl (N

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Within one year —FNR 3,290 3,367
Between one and two years —EMF 6,750 3,306
Between two and five years MERTF 10,790 10,299
Over five years HFUNUE 8,647 15,846
29,477 32,818
Notes: B 5 -
(a) Bank borrowings contained a repayment on demand clause which enables (a) RITEERSRITAIZEITEZIRERMER
the bank to exercise at its sole discretion. Accordingly, the entire balance was BHeElE RZE-—NEFRZT—+F=A
classified under current liabilities as at 31 March 2018 and 2017. =+—8B 2BERIIATBHERK-

(d)

As at 31 March 2018, the bank borrowings were interest-bearing with
variable rate at contractual interest of HIBOR plus certain basis points per
annum. The effective interest rate for the year was ranged from 2.5% to
12.6% (2017: 2.2% to 12.6%). The borrowings were repayable on monthly
instalment basis up to maturity in accordance with the terms set out in
respective banking facility letters.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group pledged investment properties with
carrying amount of approximately HK$103,887,000 (2017: HK$106,118,000)
(Note 16(c)); to secure the bank borrowings of the Group amounted to
HK$29,437,000 (2017: HK$32,631,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings at 31 March 2018 are
denominated in HK$ and approximate to their fair values.

Tou Rong Chang Fu broup meted RREEEEERA
Annual Report 2017-18 —ZE—+ % — \FEEHRE

(b)

()

(d)

R-ZE-—N\F=ZA=+—RH RITEBETIRZ
BEtE MZZELRBEBRITBEFELZNTF
ETEBHNANFEHE - FRABRIENT
25%%12.6% (=T —+F:22%%£12.6%) °
EBETBEHNSRITEERE 2GRN EH
Rz A D Eis ff o

R-ZZE-N\F=A=+—RH AEEEEHK
E A # % 1103,887,000C (=T — & : 7
#106,118,0007T) Z & & W% (M E16(c)ER
ERASEE G ABE29,437,0000 (ZF—+
£ 1 5#£32,631,0007T) ZRITIEE -

RZZ-N\F=ZA=+—8 AKHR{T
MAREET B AW RE A FERE -
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e IR R AR B A

. S g
27 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 27 RITEE (@)
Notes: (Continued) [SEREE )
(e) The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes and the (e) RER AREEENEZHABRANE
contractual repricing dates at the end of the year are as follows: MEEBEMT
2018 2017
—ZE2-N\F T —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
6 months or less LR6MEA 29,477 32,818
28 SHARE CAPITAL 28 B
Number of shares
(thousands) Share capital
RAEAE
(F8&) &
Note HK$'000
(i BT
Authorised: ETE
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017, RZE—A"FEMNA—B8-
1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 —T—tF
=ZA=+—H
“T—+FMA-BE
—T-N\F
=RA=+—H 15,000,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREAR:
At 1 April 2016 RZE—~"FMA—H 6,217,392 62,174
Placement of new shares it & # AR 1D (a) 1,333,332 13,333
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZZE—+F
=A=+—-HBk
“T—+tFHmWA—H 7,550,724 75,507
Placement of new shares e & # AR (a) 1,417,152 14,172
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\EF
=ZB=+—H 8,967,876 89,679
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @t R EEEHR A A
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n‘/T\

28

29

BRI

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Note:

(@) On 20 March 2018 (2017: 5 April 2016), the Company issued 1,417,152,000
(2017: 1,333,332,000) shares through placement with a price of HK$0.105
(2017: HK$0.13) each respectively. The net proceeds from the placement
was approximately HK$147,085,000 (2017: HK$165,533,000) after netting
off related transaction costs of approximately HK$1,716,000 (2017:
HK$7,800,000).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a) Share options

The Company has a share option scheme for eligible
directors and employees of the Group.

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 June
2013, a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) has been approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the
Company may, at their discretion, offer employees,
contracted celebrity, advisor, consultant, serial provider,
agent, customer, partner or joint venture partner of the
Company and its subsidiaries (including any directors of
the Group), the grant of options to subscribe for shares
of the Company representing up to a maximum of 10%
of the shares issue as at 24 June 2013 (excluding shares
issued on exercise of options under the Share Option
Scheme).

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group meted \ REREEEERA
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—+&E— \FHEEHE

28 M7 (&)

29

EBEFEAGERDTEE IR K
BoUBERARARRE LZFER—
ENRER-MEEARERARFN
MHEEZARSER -

B 5 -

(a) RZTE-\F=R=Z+RH(ZE—tF:=
Z-XEMARR) ARADFEBRER
FRABE0.105T (=T — 4 #%0.137T)
2 B E1T1,417,152,0000% (=T —+ 4 :
1,333,332,000/% ) * B2 2 P15 RIS BRAS IR
FERA R 5 K AR 407 #5147,085,0000T (= F —
4 : B #165,533,0007T ) 1% 49 /%% #1,716,000
Tt (=2 —+t 4 #47,800,0007T) °

LU A 2 5138
(a) HBRRAE

ARBAE-AEHTAKEAE
REENRER ZBRAEF S -

R-ZE—=FNA-1+HBL£1T
HIRRRFFRIAE | - ANA RIRRRAL
MR NF IR AR Rt ) ([REARE
sTEl]) -

RRERERT S8 KRR EEAH
ERAAAIREMBARES -
AR BB AL R OH
B RE -BF - -SEEHEKE
ERME (RN EEEMES) K
LB - AREHE N HZER
—E—=FXA-+HHEB®T
AR 1910% (B IE1T 6 R EE
ZITET A EREZEITHRMD) AR
NG E5)
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29 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 29 DABRAD XA ZFNE (@)
(a) Share options (Continued) (a) BIRHE |
Details of the Company’s share options granted under the RER RNRBREBEBRETE
share option scheme and their movements during the year REcBREREEH 2 HE
are as follows: m
Reclassified
Asat during Asat31
Exercisable 1 April Asat the year March
Date of grant period Exercise price 2016 Granted  Forfeited  1April2017  Forfeited gd;te) 201}?
N N W
- LV3 RZ%-tF ENPE -%-0\f
REBH i k8 BA-R BEY R  EA-B 2Rl (K& =A=1-A
000 000 000 000 000 000 000

Th Th Th Th TR TR TR

Executive Directors 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to
21 April 2018
#1782 “E-F Z’é NETAZTZRE
BAZTZR  ZF-\fmA=1-A
Mr. Li Zhenjun HK$0.193 = 5,000 = 5,000 = - 5,000
FRERE AB0.193T
Mr. Poon Sum HK$0.193 - 50,000 - 50,000 - (50,000) =
ERRE AE0.1937
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung HK$0.193 - 50,000 - 50,000 - - 50,000
REREE 019371
Mr. Poon Wai Kong HK$0.193 = 25,000 = 25,000 = - 25,000
ElERIEE EH0.1937
Non-executive Directors
FHTES
Mr. Zaid Latif - 1,000 (1,000) - - - -
Zaid Latif 4
Independent non-executive 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to
Director 21 April 2018
BUdnES “EF ZE-RETA-tZRE
BA-tZR  ZZ-\fEA=1-8
Mr. Chan Shu Kin HK$0.193 = 3,500 = 3,500 = - 3,500
RE2%s 501937
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung HK$0.193 - 3,500 - 3,500 - - 3,500
FEELLE #%0.1931
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu HK$0.193 - 3,500 - 3,500 - - 3,500
EEREE AB0.1937
Employees 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to HK$0.193 - 73,800 (500) 73,300 (1,500) 50,000 121,800
21 April 2018
] “EAF ZE-AETAZTCAE  BELI9T
BAZtZR  ZE-\¥@A=t-H
- 215,300 (1,500) 213,800 (1,500) - 212,300
Exercisable at end of the year - 215,300 213,800 212,300
RERATR
Weighted average exercise price - 0.193 0.193 0.193 0.193 0.193 0.193
MEFEER
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted CREREEEBRAA
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29 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(@) Share options (Continued)

The fair values of share options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2017 were calculated using the Binominal
Model. The inputs into the models were as follows:

Grant date
1 B 8

Grantee
ZE TN
Share price at grant date
REL B B2 RE
Exercise price
TE(E
Expected volatility
TR ERR 18
Risk-free rate
B b 2
Expected dividend yield
TRHRRR B X

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the most
recent period commensurate with contractual life of the
share options.

The Binominal Model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the options are based on the
independent professional valuer’s best estimate.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, 140,500,000 share
options and 73,300,000 share options were granted to the
Directors and certain employees respectively. The fair value
of the share options at the date of grant was HK$0.059
and HK$0.052 for the Directors and certain employees
respectively.

Tou Rong Chang Fu broup meted RREEEEERA
Annual Report 2017-18 —ZE—+ % — \FEEHRE

29 LUAR D 2 ¥ 2 FRIE ()
(a) BIRHE |
REEZT—tF=A=+—H
iﬁr%ﬁzﬁﬁﬂxﬁéz ~AEETD
KAZEAREEEERGTE - ZE
NZBABLT
22 April 2016 22 April 2016
—E-RF —E-RF
MA=+=H mA-+—-H
Directors Employees
BF EE8
HK$0.190 HK$0.190
B #0.1907T 75 #50.1907T
HK$0.193 HK$0.193
B#0.1937T B#0.1937T
73.48% 73.48%
73.48% 73.48%
0.65% 0.65%
0.65% 0.65%
Nil Nil
&= &=

TEHIRIE TR IE A D B AR E R

BREANBRBEE 2 RALHME
ZESMIGERE - —IAHEEER

AEN R AR AT BREZ Q¥
=

“EMEEERACARMGEE
P AFE - St REEREN AT
BEERAZE R8N RRTIIZE L
BEMGEM I RERBTER-

BE—_F—tH=-A=t—HL
% Z 140,500,000 f8 F 1 &

73,300,00017 f& Mk #E Th 5 Rl 4% T
EERATRE HYUBERE
FTEEZEREAFELBHZA
F{EH B A& EE0.059T KB
0.0527T °
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29 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
has recognised share-based payment expenses of
approximately HK$12,186,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group reversed
share-based payment reserve of approximately HK$78,000
(2017:HK$85,000) to accumulated losses in relation to the
forfeiture of 1,500,000 share options of certain employees
(2017: 1,000,000 and 500,000 share options of the Non-
executive Director and certain employees respectively).

As at 31 March 2018, 212,300,000 share options were
outstanding (2017: 213,800,000). Subsequent to the year
ended 31 March 2018, all the outstanding shares option
was lapsed on 22 April 2018.

Share Award Scheme

On 16 October 2008, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved the Share Award Scheme (“Share
Award Scheme”) in which selected employees of the
Group,
Non-Executive Director, officer, agent or consultant (with
payroll) of the Group, are entitled to participate in the
Share Award Scheme pursuant to the rules of the Share
Award Scheme.

including without limitation any Executive and

There was no shares award granted uring the year ended
31 March 2018 and 2017. During the year ended 31
March 2017, 30,000,000 awarded shares amounting to
approximately HK$5,370,000 were vested.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted S
Annual Report 2017-18 =&

29 U225

(a)

(b)

B R AR M EE

n\/-_r\
RNIE (48)
BB (@)

BE-_ZT—+tHF=ZA=+—HL
FE - AKEEBRAUBRDIHZ
FRIEF S 475 %12,186,0007T ©

BHEZZT-N\F=ZA=+—H1t
FE-AEEERIKRETEE
21,500,000 B #E(ZF—+
FEBTESRETEEZ
1,000,00017 }.500,00017 B& A% 4 )
BB AR 8 2 FIB R B 4078
#78,000c ( — T —+F: B
85,0007T) ZE R&TE1E -

R==F—NF=ZA=+—8"
2123000001*E§Hx¢érﬁ$m§
(=—Z—+%:213,800,00017
gE=—_T—-NF=A=+—H
WL FE% - FrA R TT 5 B
HR-_ZE—N\FEWNA=-+-HX
o

g B

E/\—v EUAN: S o= I AN = I N/N

BRI ERN R E ( ”&@
BEEE])  REBRHD EZEEE
ZHRE AEERTZEE B
BEARRARANEBEMEANITRIEH
TEE SMAE RIEASEM
(ZFH) - HBEES MR EE
FT &l

REBEE-ZT-—N\FERZZE—+tF
A=+t BILFEHELER
B S - REE =T —+
FZA-THLEFER LBk
5,370,0007T 2 30,000,0008% #£
R BRI -

BEEEEARAT
—t=E— J\Eif‘“"i&i
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e PR ERR MR

30 DEFERRED TAXATION

=
53
\\—I

The net movements in the deferred income tax are as follows: BEFEHRaBEFREgsmT:
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST
At beginning of the year J\S’\i?ﬂ (1,816) (2,224)

Credited to consolidated REEWEREFTA

income statement (Note 12) (FFsE12) 1,570 252
Exchange realignment EH % (301) 156
At end of the year RER (547) (1,816)

Deferred income tax liabilities mainly represent accelerated tax

depreciation recognised and movements thereon during the

current and prior years.

The deferred income tax liabilities are expected to be recovered

after more than 12 months.

At end of the year, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$256,496,000 (2017: HK$235,554,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised during the year ended
31 March 2018 has been recognised (2017: Nil) in relation to
unused tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
The unrecognised tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

Tou Rong Chang Fu broup meted RRREES
—tE-NFEFER ‘:.':
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RAFERBAEFE BELEMESHAE
TEACHERNMERBITE R L EE
BN o

BIEMGHABERANBEE T —EAR
Y[ -

REXR AEEHABDAFTEBELA
75 #256,496,0007T (=& —t4F : B
235,554,0007T) - REE=ZT—N\F =
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31 BONDS 31 &%

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Unsecured bonds ERERES 619,771 439,227

Less: Amount shown BmBAEET
under current liabilities Ty R&58 (591) (1,004)

Amount shown under 3'5/;\@7]%1,\157—

non-current liabilities Frol~& 619,180 438,223

The carrying amounts of the above bonds are repayable based on
the scheduled repayment term set out in the bond agreements as

follows:

tﬁlﬁ%%zEEE{EZ/E*ETF%#T%%E%%%@

ZIEEERIGHEE

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —TET—+tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within one year —FA 591 1,004
Between one and two years —EWME 41,671 =
Between two and five years MERSF 463,243 292,483
Over five years BBERF 114,266 145,740
619,771 439,227

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted CREREEEBRAA
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31 BONDS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company issued
new bonds with aggregated principal amount of approximately
HK$199,600,000 (2017: HK$75,000,000) to several independent
third parties with coupon rates ranged from 6% to 7% (2017:
6%) per annum, payable in 1 to 7 years (2017: 1 to 7 years)
from the respective issue dates, leading to a net cash inflow
of approximately HK$170,110,000 (HK$62,455,000) after
netting off the placing fee and transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the new bonds. The amounts of
bonds repayable at their maturities are disclosed in Note 3(a)(iii).

The carrying amount of the bonds are determined using the
expected future payments discounted at effective interest
rates ranged from 5.1% to 19.6% per annum (2017: 5.1%
to 13.41% per annum) prevailing at the respective dates of
issuance.

The fair value of the bonds as at 31 March 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$624,792,000 (2017: HK$436,672,000). The
fair values are determined based on cash flows discounted using
a rate based on the effective market interest rate of 5.6% to
20.2% per annum (2017: 5.2% to 12.8%) as at 31 March 2018.

The carrying amounts of bonds are denominated in HK$.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited iR EEEHR A
Annual Report 2017-18 —Z—+&E— \FHEEHE
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&% (#)

HE-_Z—N\F=A=+— EIJtEJ*
AARMETEIE=A%1T4A%
H#97%% 199,600,000 ( == ti
75 #75,000,0000) ZHfEH  FEE
ENT6%E7% (ZZE—+F:6%)
REZFTHHEMZIF(ZE—+
FNRTF)AIN KMEHEER
A& 5 EAE170,110,000T (B
62,455,0007T) (FEHNBEEBERAER
SRR E)ETHESFEZENEE
B AREREBEFIHRAEEEZSHE
% 52 BT EE3(a)il) ©

BEHFZRABEDNEREEERTESE
B2FEEBRFEN F51%E19.6%
(ZE—tF BF5.1%213.41%)
WETEHRRMARMETE

R-ZZE—NFE=A=+—H 'ﬁ%‘%zﬂ
F{EX AB624,792, 00075(_§

4 B #436,672,0007T) ° M‘MEE%
RR-_E—N\E=ZF=+—"HBHzZ&E
ERMHMENT5.6%E202% (=F
—+F:52%FE128% )W 2|/ER
EMEE -

BEHFREEDAEEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

32 DEREGISTRATION OF A SUBSIDIARY 32 —REKMEARREERL
During the year ended 31 March 2017, in view of the limited HE_ZT—+F=A=+—HILEE"
operations performed, the Group deregistered Beijing Arch EREITZBREE AEBERHEM
Technology Company Limited (“BJ Arch”), a subsidiary of the AEBCZHBARIL R EHERERK
Group with issued share capital of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent BRAR([HERTEHE])  BBEITRA
to approximately HK$2,980,000). Upon the completion date A AR #3,000,0007T (BBERLEE
of de-registration on 13 January 2017, BJ Arch ceased to be a 2,980,0007t) cR=ZZE—+F—A+=
subsidiary of the Group. HEE MK B 8% E R ERE

REAEEZHMBERE -
The aggregate net (liabilities)/assets of BJ Arch at the date of RS AR tRaEr (AE)
deregistration were as follows: BAEFEEBAOT
BJ Arch
bR
2017
—E—-+tF
HK$'000
BT
Consideration RE =
Net (liabilities)/assets: (afE) BEFE:
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERRIE - e R E M EBRIE 60
Other payables Ho4th B 5B (2,282)
Gains on deregistration of a subsidiary G NN W €k &
(Note 6) (FffzEe) (2,222)

Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal RAHESHEEA RS RLFE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FrtEReREESEIEE -

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @t R EEEHR A A
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On 15 August 2016, the Group entered into a shares purchase
agreement with two independent third parties to acquire
100% equity interests in People Insurance Broker Limited
(“People Insurance”) for a cash consideration of HK$2,400,000.
People Insurance is an insurance brokerage service company
incorporated in Hong Kong. People Insurance has a license to
transact all types of general insurance business and long term
insurance (incl. linked long term) business in Hong Kong.

On 20 June 2016, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to acquire 100%
equity interests in China Hong Kong Link Finance Group Limited
("CHKLFG") for a cash consideration of HK$6,000,000. CHKLFG
and its subsidiaries, China Hong Kong Link Asset Management
Limited and Golden Rock Asia Capital Limited (together, the
"CHKLF Group"”), are principally engaged in asset management
in Hong Kong.
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33 ACQUISITIONS 33 WiESE1E

R-ZZE-—RENATER AEEEMR
BEME=NILRNEE R AR
© X (B #2,400,0007T # i8R & (R B2
REARRA ([ReR]) 228K
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Al REBREM AL o R 2R R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T HRAR MR

33 ACQUISITIONS (Continued) 33 WEE1E (&)
Details of the acquisitions are as follows: W EIE 2B T
Aggregated
Total
HEE
HK$'000
BT
Consideration satisfied in cash LReAAZERE 8,400
Recognised amounts of identified assets acquired P W B 2 BT 85I B E B PR AR Y
and liabilities assumed: BEMRERE:
Intangible assets mEAE 7,805
Trade receivables Z SN IAE 145
Deposits and other receivables & I CE b JE W SR IE 507
Tax recoverable AU EIFE 1A 6
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESEEIEE 502
Trade payables H 5 ERIA (221)
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 3R I8 K B JE < 1B (68)
Bank borrowings RITEHE (276)
Total identified net assets AHBBEEFEAR 8,400
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: Wi EIEES 2 RS ML FHE
Cash consideration paid BfEERE (8,400)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WER e RIS SHEIEBER 502
(7,898)
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 17 & % % 5 R 2 7)
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e PR ERR MR

34 COMMITMENTS 34 EIE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EREE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Contracted but not provided &4 R BB -
for Property, plant and = K&
equipment 19,711 -
(b) Operating lease commitments — as lessee (b) REHERE-—FREABEA
At end of the year, the Group had future minimum lease RER - REBREE T B 2 HA
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which Z A REHA S E M AT B R
fall due within: REMEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
No later than 1 year —FR 8,979 8,920
Later than 1 year and —FABERFUR
no later than 5 years 1,985 9,663
10,964 18,583
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by KEHENFTEASERESE T
the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases MAEYHEENOES - HEZN
are negotiated in a range from 1 year to 5 years. No T —E 5 A FHIER o BB
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental THENRETEM L
payments.
246 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = S EHR AR
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e IR R AR B A

34 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Operating lease commitments - as lessor

At end of the year, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipt under non-cancellable operating
lease which falls due within one to two years.

34 AIE (4

S8

3)

() HEHEAE-FREEA

RER REBREBER —FEMF
MEIE 2 TR BEE G L HER R

REEHE R AR

2018 2017

=E2-N\F e

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

No later than 1 year —FA 2,856 -
Later than 1 year and —FUEBAFURN

no later than 5 years 135 -

2,991 -

Operating lease receipt represents rentals receivable by the
Group for its investment property. Leases are negotiated in
1 year term. No arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental receipts.

KREHERAERAEEREKE
MERKHEES - HER—FFH
%Fﬁ *E&ETJ-EHHHTfEi”&)\EAHTT£

] 22 5k
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 ERAEALTRS
(a) Transactions with related parties () HEBEALZRS
Compensation of key management personnel: TEEBENSHFHY:
All members of key management personnel includes FEXEERBASBEARAN
directors (executive and non-executive) and other members B (PITRERT) REEEE
of key management of the Company. Details of their REMAK B - HEFHMATE
remuneration are follows: U
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
Salaries and short term FeMEHEERT
employee benefits 11,864 12,172
Post-employment benefits EfBEBEA 167 128
Share-based payments VAR 19 2 1+ 2 5B - 9,026
12,031 21,326
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EEEBREATZHEER
2018 2017
—EB-N\F e
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Amounts due from JE Uk B8 A = 5RT8
related parties - 26,610
Notes: Bt & <
The balances at 31 March 2017 were unsecured, interest free and repayable RZT—tF=ZA=+—H ZEEBRAEER
within one year. B EERENR—FAEE-
248 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2 & & & £ E AR QA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

e M A MR
36 A0 F 2 BRI R R G

=z
COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company AT ZBBERRE
As at 31 March
=ZH=t+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$000 'HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(&g=E75)
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment E VS & 52 55
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR Z S 317,480 391,854
Prepayments, deposits and BHIE R Rk
other receivables H i Ye 8 31,724 29,232
349,256 421,141
Current assets wEgEE T T
Prepayments, deposits and BHIE - ZE R
other receivables H {th 8 Ug 51 T8 19,836 9,362
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Ug Tt 2 A 7 IE 533,035 450,053
Financial assets at fair value BAVEEBERSIRZ
through profit or loss SRMEE 52,074 =
Cash and cash equivalent HeMREEEER 116,557 27,367
721,502 486,782
Total assets wEE 1,070,758 907,923
Equity and Liabilities EaRkEE
Equity attributable to owners of ~ AR2A R EHE ARG
the Company
Share capital i@ \ 89,679 75,507
Reserves (Note (a)) i (MEE)) 344,626 381,696
Total equity BT 434,305 457,203
Liabilities afE&
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bonds (= 618,979 438,223
Current liabilities hBmee® 000 T
Accruals and other payables JE 5T K38 K E A B 7 5RIE 15,883 11,493
Amounts due to subsidiaries JETH B A 55 1,000 =
Bonds &5 591 1,004
17,474 12,497
Total liabilities S EHEE 643,453 450,720
Total equity and liabilities EERABELEE 1,070,758 907,923

The Statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 8 November 2019 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Wong Kwok Leung

EER
Director

BE

RRBZHMBRAKER —FE—NF
TTANRRESEHAETH TIES

Huang Guobiao
EHEHE
Director

BEF

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited #Z @i &= K EER A A
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AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Note (a) Reserves movement of the Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

36 AR A 2B FEAR R 3R K o

RS (®)

fist(a) AR R ZEERE

Share-based

Share Treasury Other payment  Accumulated
premium shares reserves reserve losses Total
HBRB X2
RAEE ERRH Rt RERE RAER #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2016 RZZ-"EWMA—A 764,306 (5,370) 5,450 6,440 (359,158) 411,668
Loss for the year (restated) FAFE (LE7) = = = = (194,358) (194,358)
Vesting of shares of share award scheme B {7 E2E) it &l 2 R R T - 5,370 - (5,370) = =
Placement of new shares REFRA 160,000 = = = = 160,000
Expense incurred for issue of shares BRRERTROEEZAX
by way of placing (7,800) - - - - (7,800)
Recognition of equity-settled TR AR A E AL
share-based payments RiAZ 2 3E - - = 12,186 = 12,186
Lapse of share options A% - - = (85) 85 =
Lapse of non-listed warrants I £ RRRAEE KN - - = (1,084) 1,084 -
At 31 March 2017 (restated) R=E—+F=A=1+—-A
(&FE50) 916,506 - 5,450 12,087 (552,347) 381,696
Loss for the year FAFBE - - - - (169,983) (169,983)
Placement of new shares F &R 134,629 = - = - 134,629
Expense incurred for issue of BRREET
shares by way of placing BRHEE AR (1,716) - - - - (1,716)
Forfeiture of share options BRI - - - (78) 78 -
At 31 March 2018 R=F-\F=A=1+-AR 1,049,419 - 5,450 12,009 (722,252) 344,626

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t R = S EHR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March n=

2018 and 2017:

n\/T\

37 B LT

Proportion of
nominal value of

—NEFR=F—
Az EEMBA

B R AR M EE

+tF=A=+—

RIBEMT:

Place/country of Nominal value of issued share capital/
incorporation or issued share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration/ operations  registered share capital held by the Company  Principal activities
AREfH
BRITRE/
E%Hﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ/ BRTRE/ER ERBAEE
WELRER Eens/AX REEE MEsL  TEEH
China Hong Kong Link Asset Hong Kong 700,000 shares of HK$1 each (2017: 100.00%  Asset Management
Management Limited 200,000 shares of HK$1 each)
MEREEERARAT A 700,0008 & R EES 1 THRY REER
(ZB—+£:200,000%
SREEFREITHRR)
China-Hong Kong Link Finance Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares of HK$ 1 each 100.00%  Money Lending
Company Limited
AR BERAR A 1,000,000% & KA E e
AEATHRI
China-Hong Kong Link Securities Hong Kong 33,000,000 shares of HK$ 1 each 100.00%  Brokerage of Securities
Company Limited
PERESARAA i 33,000,000 &R EfE EREL
BEITHNRG
Go Wealthy Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100.00% Property Investment
MEREARAA &k \RERAEAE TORE k2
Hai Tai Limited BVI 100 shares of US$1 each 100.00% Property Investment
BEARAT AERAES 100RERARIZTHRY UESE
PetroAsian Energy Finance Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 share of HK$1 each 100.00% Money Lending
nERHBARLE 35 1,000,000%% & R & Hi
BEITHARG
PetroAsian Energy Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 each 100.00%  Commodity Trading
HEERERAT & 10,000R B REEAK1 TR &%
Wing Shing Chemical Macao Commercial Macau MOP500,000 100.00%  Commodity Trading
Offshore Company Limited
KL TEFREAEREARAT A RF71500,0007C EmE 5
Shenzhen Galali Petroleum and PRC RMB5,000,000 100.00% Trading of Fuel Ol and
Chemical Limited Chemical Products
RTRREN DR IERAT G AR 5,000,000 WaRLIERES
EERE mME Lok PRC U5$9,200,000 9569%  Exploitation and Sale of
AREAR Crude O
EER ﬁm%ﬁEEﬁ? HE 9,00,000% T BRREER
BREMAR
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Umwted CREREEEBRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NT\

BRI

37 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

There are no subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that
are material to the Group as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

38 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

@)

During the period from April 2018 to September 2018,
IR R EZERAER2QF (“Zhejiang Tou Rong”), an
indirectly wholly-owned sub5|d|ary of the Company, which
Mr. Li Zhenjun (“Mr. Li”, the former chairman of the board
of directors and an executive director of the Company)
was the legal representative and one of the directors
of Zhejiang Tou Rong since its establishment, entered
into several supply agreements with certain suppliers in
the PRC and deposits of RMB48,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$56,364,000) in aggregate was made by
Zhejiang Tou Rong in relation to these supply agreements
with the authorisation of Mr. Li during the period from
April 2018 to September 2018. Besides, Zhejiang Tou
Rong made a prepayment amounting to RMB10,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,743,000) to a service
provider in July 2018, for the provision of technical
consultancy services. There is no valid contractual
agreement entered into between Zhejiang Tou Rong and
the service provider. According to the opinion from a PRC
legal adviser, the recoverability of the abovementioned
amount are remote, therefore, the prepayment to
supplier and service provider amounting to approximately
HK$68,107,000 will be fully written-off for the year ended
31 March 2019. The Group will engage an independent
PRC lawyer to take actions against the abovementioned
offence including, but not limited to, collecting relevant
evidence to the offence and reporting the offence to the
PRC police.

Tou Rong Chang Fu broup meted RREEEEERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

@

(ii)

(Continued)

In January 2019, the management was aware that certain
bank balance in a bank account of Zhejiang Tou Rong
amounting to approximately RMB19,794,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$23,131,000) has been frozen by
the governmental authorities since January 2019 as the
bank balance is suspected to be released to a case which
Mr. Li is one of the suspects. Up to the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue, the banks accounts remains frozen. According to
the opinion from a legal adviser, the recoverability of
the above mentioned amount is remote, therefore, the
the frozen bank balances amounting to approximately
HK$23,131,000 will be fully written-off for the year ended
31 March 2019.

On 3 May 2019, the Group entered into a provisional sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company to an independent
third party for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$104,782,000. The concerned subsidiary owns
investment property and is located at Units Nos. 11, 12,
13, 14 on 8th Floor, Wing On Plaza, No. 62 Mody Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The disposal transaction was
completed on 19 July 2019 and the cash consideration has
been fully settled by the acquirer in July 2019. The gain on
disposal is expected to be approximately HK$25,000,000,
which is calculated based on the consideration less net
asset value of the disposed subsidiary as at 19 July 2019.

39 COMPARATIVES

Due to early adoption of HKFRS 9, certain comparative figures
have been restated to conform current year’s presentation and
to provide comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed in

2017.

e AR MR

38 IREHIESEIE (@)

(i)

(#)

RZZE-—NF—A BEENESR
—E-NF-AR IR
BITHRPEMETRITAEBOA
R #19,794,0007T (FAERN K
#£23,131,0007T ) B #IUT# B R
- RARZBITESRW I ERE G
BEFTAERINEHREAZ W
R - BERE M BHRERERET
BB ZERTEREFDENE
@Eikee - BIBERBMCER - £
i E8 7 ATUR e MR E I - R
HEIRTTH SR 4B #523,131,0007T
BREE-FT-NF=A=1+—
B 1EFE R -

R-EBE-—AFRA=R K&£H
AIVEREERENR —EE
YE=ZFHEARRZEES
BEWBRAR ReREBHNRBE
104,782,000 48 B8 Bf BB A &)
EREMEREEEMREBE BN
BB K R ESHSEIE
NRE13E -UEZREME -
EXGERE-AELA+AN
AR EkREREER=-Z—H
FAAKEFBRES -HE
Wz T8 B8 %) & 7% #£25,000,000
TL WIRERER L EWE AR
RZZE—NFtAt+IhBZEE

Nord | A
FEETHE-

39 LEEEF

HRER AT BT B RELAF5
HETHBHEFORENDBRUNTE
FEZ2IWAARREHBEAR T —
FRHEBEZILBREER-
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Schedule of Investment Properties

BREY=EYR

As at 31 March 2018 RWZ_Z—N\F=A=+—H

Property
LIES

Type
5l

Remaining
lease terms

BT HM

Percentage of
interest attributable to
our Company

RATELEERA DL

1. Car Parking Space No. 1053
On 1st Floor
Manhattan Hill
No. 1 Po Lun Street
Kowloon
=
FEAT15%
SR
1
{2 EI5105358 E L

2. Flat B On 52th Floor of Tower 2
Manhattan Hill
No. 1 Po Lun Street
Kowloon
-
FEA15%
S 7\l
ZEES2IEBE

3, Unit 11-14 on 8th Floor
Wing On Plaza
No. 62 Mody Road
Kowloon
LR
JEE 3 38 625%
KR &
11-148 jT81&

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2 @& =% E
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Five Years Financial Summary

AFMBHE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-mF ZT-HF ZT—F ZT—tF ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT  BETL BT BT IT BT T

(restated)
(LE7)
REVENUE Wz 982,327 804,167 5,932,235 13,832,372 5,536,378
PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE ~ ARRARIEA A
TO OWNERS OF [ERER/ (B18)
THE COMPANY (151,155) (148,305) (227,059) 95,188 (199,630)
REVENUE Y% &
HK$'000
FBEFT
15,000,000 13,832,372
12,000,000
9,000,000
5,932,235
3,000,000

982,327 804,167

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY Z& 2 BB A {5 %A,/ (E#E)

HK$'000

50000

R 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
100000
0
95 188
-50000
-100000
-150000
(151,155) (148,305)
-200000

(199,630)
-250000 (227,059)
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Five Years Financial Summary

AFNBEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-mF ZT-HF ZT—F ZT—tF ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BB BET T
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (LE5)

TOTAL ASSETS BEE 934,955 1,156,171 1,057,058 1,391,626 1,371,502
TOTAL LIABILITIES BeE (329,141) (681,355) (693,943) (778,509) (778,720)
TOTAL EQUITY gtk 605,814 474,816 363,115 613,117 592,782

TOTAL EQUITY R H A

HK$'000
JETFT

700000
613,117

605,814

592,782
600000

500000 474,816

400000 363,115

300000

200000

100000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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